
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Monday, 12 October 2020

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE 
VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_Y2Q2OWZlNDctZWFhZi00Nzg3LWE3NTYtMWZ
lNWI3NDJjMTk3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226
8c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (Pages 1 - 14)

3b Play Streets (Pages 15 - 30)

3c Draft Crescent Development Framework - Public Consultation (Pages 31 - 134)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

Public Document Pack



No Items

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor
Tel No: 0161 793 3013
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


1

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (PLACE)

TO THE CITY MAYOR
AT PROPERTY & REGENERATION BRIEFING

ON 12 OCTOBER 2020  

TITLE: Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester – 
Partnership Agreement Briefing

RECOMMENDATIONS:
i. That the City Mayor endorses Salford City Council’s formal sign-up to the 

Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF) supported project which includes proposals for a 
solar farm on council land by Kenyon Way and a Hydro-electric installation at 
Charlestown Weir.

ii. That the City Mayor agrees to the amounts set out as match funding in the 
report.

iii. That the City Mayor agrees to the council signing a partnership agreement 
with Energy Systems Catapult to allow continued participation in this project 
and to access ERDF Grant.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford City Council is seeking to install solar PV at its site in Kenyon Way, Little 
Hulton and potentially a Hydro scheme at Charlestown Weir in order to increase local 
renewable energy generation and increase the flexibility of local energy supply as 
part of its contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-
neutral city region by 2038. Both Salford schemes have planning permission.

ERDF funding has been sought to address a gap in funding for the proposed 
investments and to ensure the City Council is able to generate a surplus across the 
lifecycle of each project.   The project “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater 
Manchester (UCEGM)” is led by the Energy Systems Catapult, with the consortium 
also including , Stockport, Wigan, Rochdale and Manchester Councils.

To access ERDF funds to support the Salford elements of the project Salford City 
council must now enter a partnering agreement with the Lead Partner – Energy 
Systems Catapult.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
 Five year Environment Plan for Greater Manchester
 Salford’s Climate Change Strategy – Creating a city prepared for the future

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1. Introduction

This report outlines the Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester European 
regional Development Fund (ERDF) project in which Salford is involved and includes 
a solar farm on council land by Kenyon Way and a Hydro-electric installation at 
Charlestown Weir. It seeks agreement to continue SCC involvement in the project 
and agreement to sign a partnership agreement with Energy Systems Catapult the 
Lead Partner. 

The report presents the background and timescales of the project before looking at 
the two sites and then the finances.
The paper builds on a previous briefing to the City Mayor from 21st October 2019 he 
agreed

i. To endorse Salford City Council’s continued participation in the Unlocking 
Clean Energy in Greater Manchester ERDF Bid which includes proposals for a 
solar farm on council land by Kenyon Way and a Hydro-electric installation at 
Charlestown Weir.

ii. Agreed in principle to the amounts set out as match funding in that report.
iii. Agreed to consider a further report seeking formal agreement to participate in 

the programme in due course if the bid is successful.

This bid has now been approved by MHCLG, and this report addresses the action set 
out in point iii) above. 

2. Background

The Greater Manchester’s 5-Year Environment Plan sets out GM’s long-term 
environmental vision, which includes a carbon-neutral GM by 2038. The plan sets out 
urgent actions that need to be taken in the next 5 years to help achieve carbon 
neutrality. On 17 July 2019 the council unanimously declared a Climate Emergency 
underlining the seriousness of the need to mitigate climate change.

Page 2



3

UCEGM brings together energy and clean growth experts, Energy Systems Catapult 
(ESC), and five GM local authorities (Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Stockport, and 
Wigan), all of which have declared a climate emergency in the previous year. 
The project has two workstreams: 

(1) GM councils will invest in new solar PV and hydroelectric generation 
schemes on council-owned, under-utilised land and buildings, 

(2)  ESC will use these schemes to develop, demonstrate and evaluate 
innovative business models to maximise value from flexible and diverse 
energy supply and demand. 

The workstreams will dovetail to establish replicable blueprints that will be shared to 
help unlock local (GM) and national clean energy investment.

Salford City Council is seeking to install a solar PV scheme and a Hydro-electric 
scheme on its land in order to increase local renewable energy generation and 
increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards 
Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The 
GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy 
generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this 
work. The “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” bid could 
generate 15% of the total GM target. The proposal for a solar farm at Kenyon Way 
would give Salford its first 2MW of ground-mounted solar PV capacity. Similarly it is 
proposed to take forward the Charlestown Hydro scheme. ERDF funding will address 
a gap in funding for the proposed investments and ensure the Council is able to 
generate a surplus across the projects’ lifecycle.   

Project Year 1 generation in kWh Year 1 CO2 emissions 
reduction in tonnes 

Little Hulton                          1,621,000                                  566 
Charlestown Weir                         710,000                                  247 

(the other GM projects can be found in appendix 1)

3.0 The 2 Salford Projects

In the section below we detail the two Salford Projects Kenyon Way Solar farm and 
Charlestown Weir Hydro,  plans of both these schemes can be found at appendix 2 & 
3.

3.1 Kenyon Way Solar farm in Little Hulton (Appendix 2)

Salford City Council is seeking to build a solar farm to boost local renewable energy 
generation and increase the flexibility of local energy supply. ERDF funding will 
address a gap in funding for the proposed investment and to ensure the Council is 
able to generate a surplus across the projects’ lifecycle. Feasibility work was carried 
out by AECOM and a planning application was submitted in March submitted 
following consultation with the local community in February 2020.   At the planning 
panel on Thursday 18 June plans where approved to locate a 3.79 hectare solar farm 
on coarse grassland to the west of Kenyon Way. 5,094 solar panels will be built in 

Page 3



4

rows 2.4 metres high with a four metre gap between the rows to avoid shadowing.  
This 2MW solar farm is expected to generate enough power for 438 homes a year.  
Works to build it will take approximately five months when contractors start on site 
during the spring / summer of 2021.

Application for a grid connection have been made to Electricity North West and this 
has been agreed and deposit paid.

3.2 Charlestown Hydro (Appendix 3)

The hydroelectric schemes on the River Irwell could deliver enough electricity to 
power 200 homes. This approach would entail Salford City Council buying the 
planning permission and permits for Charlestown weir back from previous developer 
Hydrosense and owning the Hydro-scheme itself, supplying the electricity produced 
back to the council through a sleeving arrangement.  The finance team have 
modelled the scheme and found that it would meet the City Council’s invest-to-save 
criteria 

The Local Authority employed the specialist consultants AECOM to review the Hydro 
Scheme to ensure that it is feasible.  AECOM developed the design of the scheme to 
a sufficient level to produce a high-level cost breakdown for the project.  AECOM has 
estimated that the construction element of the project, excluding the turbine and 
generator, is well within the estimate made at bid stage for ERDF support They also 
reviewed any restrictions on the development from the adjacent housing 
development. This found that the necessary cranes and vehicles would be able to 
access the site for delivery of the Archimedes screw. They also undertook a 
hydrology and energy generation assessment. associated with the Charlestown Weir 
in order to refine the energy generation assessment.  Based on engagement with 
Spaans Babcock (a specialist Archimedes Screw supplier), the annual energy 
production of the project is estimated to be around 710 MWh, a little lower than 
previous projections but still within invest-to-save criteria. 

4. Capital Budget 

Since AECOM conducted feasibility works and with Energy Systems Catapult and 
The NW Energy Hub this has helped to refine budget for these schemes. The 
programme capital budget, including ERDF match funding, is shown below. This 
budget remains within invest-to-save criteria.

Project Element Total Cost Salford Match ERDF
Little Hulton 
Solar EPC £2,174,694 £1,175,422.11 £999,271.89

Owners 
Engineer1/ Project 
management

£142,182 £76,849.37 £65,332.63

Charlestown 
Hydro EPC £1,500,000 £810,750.00 £689,250.00

1 The Owner's Engineer is a subcontracted role, undertaken to protect the City Council's interests by 
ensuring that the technical and build contractors are adhering to the project specification and that 
Solar and Hydro expertise is available for the projects.

Page 4



5

Owners Engineer/ 
Project 
management

£65,000 £35,132.50 £29,867.50

Total  £3,881,876 £2,098,154 £1,783,722

5. Partnership Agreement

The Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester European regional Development 
Fund (ERDF) project has now progressed to a point where funding has been 
confirmed. Salford City Council has two projects that have been identified to be part 
of this programme, set out in section 3 of this report. To proceed to delivery and to 
access the ERDF funding, it is now necessary that the City Council signs a 
partnering agreement with the Lead Partner (Energy Systems Catapult). This 
agreement enables ERDF funding to be transferred from the Lead Partner to the City 
Council for investment in the energy schemes.

Our legal team has reviewed the partnership agreement on behalf of Salford and are 
happy for us to proceed with it.   

6. Programme Governance

As Lead Partner, Energy Systems Catapult will co-ordinate the programme in 
accordance with MHCLG requirements and the Application and, with the assistance 
of the Technical Assistance Partner ( Manchester City Council), collate and submit 
claims for the programme, submit progress reports and pay the ESIF Grant to the 
Delivery Partners including Salford City Council.  Manchester City Council as the 
Technical Assistance Partner will be responsible for monitoring and compliance of 
the Project in accordance with the ERDF Grant Funding Agreement that Energy 
Systems Catapult have signed with MHCLG.  Energy Systems Catapult are 
establishing a Project Board which will have overall responsibility for the delivery of 
the Project. The Consortium Steering group of all partners which developed the 
project will continue to oversee delivery. Michael Hemingway and Hayley Nixon will 
continue to represent Salford on this group.

7. Conclusion

By declaring a Climate Emergency in 2019 and by signing up to becoming a Carbon 
Neutral City by 2038 Salford has underlined its commitment to tackling Climate 
Change.  The Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester European regional 
Development Fund supported project is a fantastic opportunity for the local authority 
to make use of two of its underused assets to produce renewable electricity.  Both 
these facilities will supply energy back to the council both saving the council money 
and ensuring cleaner greener consumption. By utilising ERDF support the council will 
be able to make a surplus across the life of the project and release funds to spend on 
vital services.  

Page 5



6

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester
 Salford’s Climate Change Strategy – Creating a city prepared for the future
 Climate Emergency Declaration

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

The programme has a risk register in place and mitigation measures.

It is essential that all procurement and work is carried out within ERDF rules to 
ensure there is no claw back, we will be supported by Manchester City Council’s 
Technical Assistance team to help ensure all necessary rules are followed.

Salford City Council will put in place a procurement plan, to be shared with ESC. 
Preparation sessions and periodic internal audits will be put in place.  A project wide 
procurement strategy has been prepared.

Programme management and compliance resource to cover finance, reporting, 
compliance requirements, to cover three years of project and closedown period. 
Partner responsibilities with regard to reporting, compliance and audit are set out 
clearly in the partnership agreement and will be monitored regularly by the lead 
partner. Details of processes are included within Programme Handbook and will be 
updated as needed to ensure that consistency and quality of process is applied 
throughout the project to minimise compliance risk.  Project performance and 
compliance to be reviewed internally at least twice a year to ensure that operations, 
processes and systems remain on track.

Future survey results on both the solar and hydro schemes could reveal issues 
requiring remediation or additional work or complication, or costs may have changed 
since design and feasibility work was completed. To mitigate this the detailed cost 
breakdown has some risk uncertainty priced in. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 
6323

EU funding from sources such as European Regional Development Funds (‘ERDF’) 
assists the UK address the carbon reduction challenge. A number of local authorities 
are currently applying to the ERDF to support clean energy projects, which will 
apparently no longer be available after Brexit as access to European Investment Bank 
funding is now uncertain. The terms of any grant funding agreement with ERDF will 
need to be adhered to in the event that there are clawback provisions for failure to 

Page 6



7

comply. Legal Services will advise further on any terms upon receipt of a copy of the 
grant funding agreement, and have already reviewed the partnership agreement 
between the Council, the other GM authorities involved in the project and Energy 
Systems Catapult.

All procurement activity that is required as part of the project must be undertaken in line 
with Salford City Council’s contractual standing orders, and comply with any 
requirements set out in the ERDF grant funding agreement, which will usually include 
compliance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Legal Services will be happy 
to advise further on that issue on receipt of instructions.

By way of further background, earlier legal advice has been obtained in respect of 
potential state aid implications, which concluded that “The analysis above 
demonstrates the funding of the SCC Sub-Projects in association with the Project 
management activity required for each Sub-project, each meet the requirements of 
Article 41 of GBER. Although the funding meets the State Aid tests, the funding is 
exempted under Article 41. The funding is also compliant with ERDF funding 
requirements.”

In respect of the planning permission referred to, Section 75 of the TCPA 
(copied below, for info) specifies that a planning permission "shall enure for the benefit 
of the land and all persons for the time being interested in it".  In respect of the planning 
permission referred to, Section 75 of the TCPA (copied below, for info) specifies that a 
planning permission "shall enure for the benefit of the land and all persons for the time 
being interested in it". Notwithstanding this, there may be a need to secure ownership 
of/rights in relation to any plans or other documents which the planning permission 
requires compliance with.  Further, it should be noted that the planning permission is 
granted for a limited time.  Steps will need to be taken to lawfully commence any 
development within that time limit, otherwise a further planning application may be 
required.
.

75.—  Effect of planning permission or permission in principle.
(1)   Without prejudice to the provisions of this Part as to the duration, revocation or 
modification of planning permission or permission in principle, any grant of planning 
permission or permission in principle to develop land shall (except in so far as the 
permission otherwise provides) enure for the benefit of the land and of all persons for 
the time being interested in it.
(2)  Where planning permission is granted for the erection of a building, the grant of 
permission may specify the purposes for which the building may be used.
(3)  If no purpose is so specified, the permission shall be construed as including 
permission to use the building for the purpose for which it is designed.

In view of this, it would be prudent to seek the advice of the Shared Legal Service as 
to the option to acquire / sale to the Council of the permissions and permits to 
facilitate the building of the proposed hydro-electric scheme in order to understand 
what is actually being acquired/sold, that the permissions and permits are capable of 
being sold/transferred to and acquired by the Council and whether it is necessary to 
acquire those permissions and permits at the consideration proposed.

Page 7



8

SCC will also need to secure all necessary and appropriate rights to enable them to 
construct and operate the hydro-electric project from adjoining owners of the land, 
the weir and the river along with all necessary and appropriate statutory consents 
and approvals. 

The Shared Legal Service will, on receipt of instructions in such regard, provide 
advice on the issues referred to above and also in regard to the terms of the 
documentation as shall be necessary to implement the proposals.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alex Archer 0161 778 0498

Both schemes were included on a self financing basis in the 2020/21 capital 
programme agreed by council in February 2020. At this stage the full cost of the 
schemes was estimated at £3.076m including £1.784m as Salford’s matched 
contribution. The difference in the revised match funding of £2.098m will need to be 
included as part of the 2021/22 capital programme. This remains on a self financing 
basis.
The schemes will allow Salford to access £1.784m of ERDF funding.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Heather Stanton xt 6241

Procurement has been engaged with the Climate Change Team and the GM Project 
Group and have identified a compliant route for tendering for this project.  It is 
expected that the CCS HELGA framework will be utilised which is compliant with the 
ERDF requirements and in accordance with SCC Contractual Standing Orders under 
the Council’s Constitution governing contract procurement

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 

The GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy 
generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this 
work. The “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” bid could 
generate 15% of the total GM target. 

Page 8



9

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

CONTACT OFFICER:  
Michael Hemingway

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Little Hulton &  Irwell Riverside

Page 9



10

Appendices

Appendix 1. 

Generation Schemes put forward in this project across Greater Manchester

Project Year 1 generation in kWh Year 1 CO2 emissions 
reduction in tonnes 

Hammerstone Road Depot 
- Manchester                             482,939                                  169 

Chamber House Farm - 
Rochdale                             608,000                                  212 

Little Hulton – Salford                          1,621,000                                  566 
Charlestown Weir - 
Salford                          1,000,000                                  349 

Stockport Exchange  - 
Stockport                             140,000                                    49 

Endeavour House  - 
Stockport                             287,433                                  100 

Makerfield Way - Wigan                             626,577                                  219 
Amberswood -  Wigan                          1,222,000                                  426 

Page 10



11

Appendix 2

Site of proposed Kenyon Way solar farm in Little Hulton

Page 11



12

Appendix 3

Site of proposed Hydro Electric Scheme at Charlestown Weir

Page 12



13Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION
12th October 2020 

Report on Play Street Policy and Guidance

RECOMMENDATION:  

1. That the Lead Member consider the report and approves the proposed policy and guidance for 
Play Streets.

2. That the City Mayor approves the content of the report and authorises the use of Section 16A 
of the of the Road Traffic Regulation Act to enable the making of special event temporary traffic 
regulation orders for the purpose of facilitating Play Streets and delegates this to the Strategic 
Director Place

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Ward Councillors have requested consideration of the introduction of Play Streets across the City to 
offer children a safe place to play near their home which will in turn increase physical activity for 
children. It can also build stronger neighbourhoods by increasing friendships and socialising for both 
adults and children.

This guidance offers a way forward that supports the provision of Play Streets on quiet, primarily 
residential streets across the City. The intention is that Play Streets will be supported by the 
Community Committee and will be funded from the Community Committee Highways Devolved 
Budget.

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:NONE

KEY DECISION: YES

Background and Context

1.1 ‘Play Streets’ are streets that are closed off by residents who want to close their street off to 
through traffic with the desire to give local children a safe area to play in for a limited period. 
The Council’s role as Traffic Authority would be to support and assess applications to enable 
streets to be legally closed off for the period of the Play Street in a safe manner. The council 
would pay for and facilitate the Special Event Temporary Traffic Regulation Order (SETTRO) 
and provide closure equipment.

1.2 Play Streets can have considerable benefits to the children and residents within that street 
and surrounding streets, in that they:

Page 15

Agenda Item 3b



2

 Give children a safe space to play in near to their home, 
 Make meaningful contribution to daily physical activity for children,
 Can help with community cohesion; create new opportunities for socialising and friendship, for 

both children and adults within the local neighbourhood.

1.3 Play Streets were first organised by a group of residents in Bristol in 2009 who wanted to give 
their children a safe space to play out. Several local authorities across England have started 
to facilitate road closures on a regular basis to enable the use of children to play on the street. 
In Greater Manchester both Stockport and Trafford Councils facilitate Play Streets.

1.4 Play Streets are organised and managed by residents and are usually implemented through 
the introduction a TRO to enable the street to be closed for a short period of usually 3-4 hours 
at a time. 

1.5 Legal advice has been sought from SCC’s legal team and can be summarised: 

Section 29 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act makes provision for the introduction of Play 
Streets by way of Permanent Traffic Regulation Orders (which may operate on certain days 
and hours).  However, section 29 requires the publication of a Public Notice in the Press at 
two stages in the process, increasing the costs associated with a scheme.  

As the demand for Play Streets has grown, Councils have therefore looked to certain 
temporary closure powers which don’t require statutory notices and are procedurally more 
flexible, such as section 21 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (the use of which we would 
not recommend for Play Streets) and section 16A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  
Section 16A  enables the making of road closure Orders to  facilitate ‘special events’ (the 
definition of which includes ‘social events’) of no more than three days’ duration in a calendar 
year (unless the Department for Transport has granted specific authorisation).  

The potentially difficulty with using section 16A for Play Streets has generally been seen as its 
limited duration.  However, in June 2019 the Department for Transport wrote to Councils 
stating that, whilst it acknowledges that section 16A was not intended to facilitate Play Streets 
(i) it supports the use of section 16A for that purpose; and (ii) it is prepared, on application, in 
appropriate cases, to grant to councils the necessary authorisation for the Play Streets 
‘events’ to take place on a number of occasions over a period of time.  In that context, a 
section 16A SETTROs could be made if the relevant tests of section 16A are met, providing 
that the Council has first obtained specific authorisation from the DfT for the proposed 
closures.  

Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act provides that it is a duty of every authority 
acting pursuant to the act to secure the expedient, convenient and safe movement of traffic, 
so far as practicable having regard to the specific matters set out at subsection (2). 

In terms of liability, the advice of the Legal Civil Claims Team is that: (i) a council cannot 
exclude liability for personal injury or death caused by its negligence (ii) most accidents that 
could occur would not involve any liability for SCC generally; and (iii) the Council as Highway 
Authority however would have the same potential liabilities as it does with any road-related PI 
claim

As per the Letter from DfT and our Legal advice it is proposed the most appropriate way 
forward to manage streets closures as part of a Play Street would be using a sec.16A 
SETTRO.

Organisation and Management of the Play Street

2.1 Any costs for the SETTRO would be funded from the Highways Devolved Budget available to 
each neighbourhood, to make the Play Streets more accessible to all residents. They will be 
subject to the approval of the relevant Highways Task Group.

Page 16



3

2.2 Applications for the Play Street should be considered only on roads which are managed by the 
Council, Salix Homes or City West Housing Trust (to be regulated by a SETTRO, a road must 
be a highway or ‘a road to which the public has access’). Roads should only be considered if 
they are cul-de-sacs or through routes with low traffic numbers and with a suitable alternative 
for traffic.

2.3 The Council would be responsible for making the SETTRO, however this temporary restriction 
will be in the main part advertised and managed by the applicant.  It should be noted however 
that the Council in its capacities of Traffic Authority and Highway Authority retains its duties 
and responsibilities under the relevant Acts. The engineers would assess the application with 
the applicant to see if multiple occasions of closures of roads are required. The cost of a Play 
Street closure would be greatly reduced, with the Devolved Budget funding the administration 
costs of the event and the supply of any road closure equipment. The applicant will carry out 
the prior notification of the event and manage road closure signage and the event on the day.

2.4 A risk assessment must be carried out for each Play Street Scheme, to quantify the potential 
risks of the Play Street. This will be carried out by the residents using a risk assessment 
template prior to the application of the Play Street. An example template is included in 
Appendix 5.

2.5 Many Play Streets operating do so without formal Public Liability Insurance. The organisation 
Playing Out have highlighted that of all the schemes that have been organised across 
England, no known claims have been raised from the operation of Play Streets. Given the 
foregoing, it is considered not appropriate to insist on public liability insurance as this could 
limit residents from applying for a Play Street. To encourage the uptake of Play Streets the 
process should be as simple as possible, with few barriers imposed on operating the event.  
Organisers of the Play Street will be asked to sign a waiver exempting SCC from any blame in 
the potentiality of any accident but will also be encouraged to take out Public Liability 
Insurance.  

2.6 Publicity, consultation and management of the Play Street will rest with the organiser. The 
Council will review the submitted documents and implement the TTRO to enable the event to 
take place on the highway.

2.7 Neighbours consultation will be carried out prior to the application, by the organisers. It is 
recommended that the organiser get a minimum of 60% of residents in favour of the Play 
Street before submitting any application to SCC to reduce future objections and show support 
for the road closure in principle. 

2.8 Application should be made electronically using guidance supplied on SCC website. The 
application will be assessed by the Traffic team and the applicant contacted to clarify any 
points.

2.9 When the application approved the organisers will be notified and asked to complete a full risk 
assessment, with a copy submitted and a copy to be on hand during the running of the Play 
Street. The Council will approach DfT with regards to the use of extending the SETTRO to 
apply on multiple occasions as and when necessary.

2.10 The Traffic Team will source and supply suitable ‘Road Closed’ signage as well as any other 
necessary equipment to enable the road to visibly be closed. This will be loaned to organisers 
of Play Streets to use when they are closing their streets during the agreed times.

Appendices

1.  Example Applicant Guidance Information
2. Example Letter for door knock Consultation
3. Example Street Closure Letter
4. Example Salford City Council Risk assessment for playing out street play sessions

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

Page 17



4

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low Risk

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

Supplied by: Paul Haley 

Date:- 17th September 2020

Section 16A wasn't enacted for the purpose of play streets as it contains the three day / once per year 
provisions.  However, the DfT state that they are willing to use their powers to provide the necessary 
authorisations to enable Play Streets.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS   

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer (Highways), tel. 925 1135 

Date:- 7th September 2020

There is sufficient funding within the Highways Devolved Revenue budgets, which can be made 
available to each neighbourhood, to support future costs associated with the events orders and 
making the Play Streets schemes more accessible to all residents. 

Future proposals will be reviewed on a scheme-by-scheme basis and will be subject to the approval of 
the relevant Highways Task Group.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS; N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All Wards

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Fisher  Tel. 0161 779 6103
Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, Salford, M27 5AW

Page 18



Appendix 1.

Example Applicant Guidance Information 

Page 19



Preparing for a Play Street
What is a play street?

Play Streets is are the name given to streets that are closed off to through traffic, for a few hours, 
usually during the evening or at the weekend, to give local children an area to play in. 
These are organised and run by local residents with Salford City Council (SCC) assisting with the 
road closure, through a temporary traffic restriction while the road is closed and supplying signage to 
let drivers know that the road is closed.

The first Play Streets were organised by a local group of residents and they now offer lots of helpful 
information on how to organise Play Streets on their website: https://playingout.net/

Before Applying for a Play Street

Anyone can apply for a Play Street to happen in their street but before you apply here are a few 
things that you will need to consider:

1. Is my road suitable for a Play Street? Most cul-de-sacs are likely to be suitable for a Play 
Street, as they are not a through route for traffic. If you don’t live on a cul-de-sac the street 
can be considered, but it will need to be:

 Low volume of traffic
 Have a suitable alternative route for vehicles during the time the Play Street is running

2. Thought should be given to where you want the Play Street to happen. If you live on a long 
road, or a road with lots of junctions it is unlikely that this would be suitable location for a Play 
Street. Play Streets should be of a suitable size and length for the street, to enable children to 
play, but not unnecessarily block extensive sections of the road. 
A narrow road that is lined with parked cars may be unsuitable as there is not very much road 
space for children to play on. You may be able to encourage residents to park in an 
alternative location while the Play Street happens. 

3. Is there enough demand for a Play Street? If you are the only family living on the street it is 
unlikely to happen. We would recommend that before applying for a Play Street you gauge 
the opinion of your neighbours to see how many children will benefit from the Play Street. 

4. When do you want to hold the Play Street and how often? A Play Street is usually held on a 
weekend day or on a bank holiday, when children will be able to most benefit from the 
closure. It is usually held for 3-4 hours at a time. It is also possible o hold them in the evening, 
but consideration of the traffic volumes of residents returning home from work/school will 
need to be considered.

.
5. Would my neighbours object to the road being closed? You will need to speak to all the 

neighbours who will be affected by the Play Street before applying to make sure that they 
have no objections, or that their concerns can be overcome. While some people may be 
against the road closure, we would recommend that you get at least 60% of the street in 
agreement of the road closure before applying. This will help reduce any conflict on the day 
and help publicise the event. Please check SCC Play Street web page for an example 
consultation letter.

6. Who is going to manage the Play Street? If the Play Street is approved, it will need named 
stewards who are responsible for closing the road and explaining the road closure to anyone 
who is using the road. We would suggest that a minimum of 2 stewards per event, depending 
on the number of closures the Play Street requires. The stewards will need to stand by the 
road closure signs for the duration of the Play Street.

Page 20

https://playingout.net/


7. While we cannot eliminate all the risks we can try to reduce and manage the risks. Carry out a 
walk though of the Play Street to identify any potential things that could cause a hazard. For 
example:
 The biggest risk is from motorists, how many roads will you need to close off? How many 

roads will need to be closed off?
 How much traffic is there usually on the road?
 Is there room for cars to park off the road, or can they park outside of the Play Street
 How many stewards will you need?

8. Do I need to obtain public liability insurance (PLI) for the Play Street? SCC will not insist that 
the organiser obtain PLI for the event, but it is up to the organiser to manage the event. While 
it is unlikely that any problems will occur during the event, the organiser may be held 
responsible if any accidents do occur.  In any respect the organiser will be required to sign a 
waiver exempting SCC from any blame in the potentiality of an accident.

 
Applying for the Play Street

To apply for the Play Street, go to https://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-
travel/roadworks/request-a-temporary-road-closure/, web page. Here you will find the application form 
and other relevant information. You will need to supply the following information:

 Name and contact details of organiser of the Play Street
 Road to be used for the Play Street;
 Where the Play Street is to start end, e.g. 12-40 The Street;
 Dates and times that you want to organise the Play Street on;
 Confirmation that you have at least 60% of residents in agreement with the road closure;
 Any potential risks that have been identified that will need to be managed during the road 

closure;

Once the application has been received by SCC this will be assessed and you may be contacted to 
clarify any details.

Any application will be processed as quickly as possible, but it is recommended that you give as much 
notice as possible before the first event is due to take place, in order for the necessary checks to be 
carried out and the highway traffic orders to be raised.

Once the application has been assed you will be notified of the outcome. SCC will apply for the 
necessary Road traffic Order to legally close the street. This will take a minimum of 4 weeks for the 
order to be processed.

Once the Play Street has been agreed, you will need to notify the neighbours and publicise the event. 
This can be done electronically through Facebook or Twitter, but we also recommend that you send a 
letter to all residents affected to notify them of the event. An example letter can be found on SCC Play 
Street web page.

You will need to carry out a Risk Assessment of the street before the event takes place. An example 
form can be found on SCC Play Street web page. This should be carried out jointly between the 
organiser and the stewards, with a completed form sent to SCC. This should be carried out prior to 
the event, with a copy emailed to ctsdtmanagement@salford.gov.uk. A risk assessment must be 
updated on the day of each event to see if there are any additional risks not picked up on the initial 
risk assessment.

One the day

Before the road is closed, a risk assessment should be carried out to identify any risks which were not 
present previously. We would recommend that any litter, including glass is picked up to avoid any 
incidents.
Road Closure Signage and Hi-viz vests will be delivered to the organiser before the event, who must 
be responsible for setting them up and storing them until they are collected or the next event. 
A fee may be charged for lost or damaged equipment.

Page 21

https://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roadworks/request-a-temporary-road-closure/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roadworks/request-a-temporary-road-closure/
mailto:ctsdtmanagement@salford.gov.uk


A stewards’ briefing should be carried out with an agreement on how you are going to handle any 
drivers who want to drive down the road during the event. 
There’s no need to organise games or anything special to entertain the children. Kids will do it for 
themselves and will enjoy coming up with their own fun. Some basic items that always work well are 
chalk, skipping ropes, hula hoops and soft balls, but it’s always best to let the children take the lead 
and encourage them to bring out what they want to play with.
Take lots of pictures and document how successful the event was and any problems you 
encountered on the day.

Page 22



Appendix 2.

Example Letter for door knock Consultation

Page 23



Example Letter for door knock consultation – adapt as required

[INSERT YOUR ADDRESS AND CONTACT DETAILS]

[INSERT DATE]

Dear Neighbour,

I live in our street and I’m getting in touch about the idea of organising a Play 
Street on… Street. In case you haven’t heard of them, Play Streets are short, 
stewarded road closures (up to four hours), organised by residents who volunteer 
to steward. They typically take place at weekends at pre advertised times and 
dates. 

These days many children don’t get the opportunity to play out, with traffic being 
the biggest barrier. Play Streets give children the chance to play more safely in 
their neighbourhood and make new friends. They also help bring neighbours of 
all ages together - making the street feel friendlier for everyone. 

If our play street went ahead – this would not stop you from having car access to 
your house at those times. You would also not need to move your car – only if 
you wanted to. Through traffic would be diverted, but any residents wanting to 
park here or exit the street would be asked to drive in and out at walking speed, 
escorted by a volunteer steward. Also please note, at play streets 
parents/careers remain responsible for their children as on any other day.

I’m keen to talk to as many people in the street as possible and am door 
knocking as much as I can. But if I miss you today, or if you have comments, 
questions or concerns, please do get in touch or just call by.

Play streets are also known as ‘playing out’ sessions after the national 
organisation Playing Out (www.playingout.net) which first introduced this model 
of street play and supports people to get involved nationwide. 

If you want to discuss the Play Street with someone at Salford City Council you 
can do so by contacting them at PlayStreets@Salford.gov.uk

I look forward to chatting to you about the idea and seeing what you think!

Best wishes, 

INSERT YOUR NAME(S)

Page 24

http://www.playingout.net/
mailto:PlayStreets@salford.gov.uk


Appendix 3.

Example Street Closure Letter 

Page 25



Dear neighbours,

I am writing to let you know that following consultation with residents on the street, [INSERT 
NAME] Salford City Council has approved the closure of [INSERT NAME OF 
STREET/AREA TO BE CLOSED TO TRAFFIC] under sec 16A of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act between the times of [INSERT TIMES] for children to play safely in the street 
on the following dates:

[INSERT DATES AND TIMES]

Playing Out sessions are short, stewarded road closures, giving children the chance to play 
safely near home, but also making the street feel safer and friendlier for everyone. Parents 
will be responsible for their own children’s safety and behaviour as normal.

We want to reassure you that this is not going to stop you from having car access to your 
house. Through traffic will be diverted but anyone wanting to park on the street will be asked 
to drive in and out at walking speed, escorted by a volunteer steward from the street. 

We really hope you like the idea but please talk to us if you have any questions please contact 
the organiser on the number below or Salford City Council on PlayStreets@salford.gov.uk or 
0161 123456.

Please let us know if you would be able to help with stewarding, as this role is crucial to the 
success and safety of the sessions. 

Best wishes, 

[INSERT NAME OF ORGANISER AND CONTACT DETAILS]

Page 26

mailto:PlayStreets@salford.gov.uk


Appendix 

Example Salford City Council Risk assessment for playing out street play 
sessions

P
age 27



Salford City Council Risk assessment for playing out street play sessions

Street name:

Date:

Named organiser(s):

(N.B. This is a draft to be adapted by each street – categories and actions are only given as examples).

General benefits of street play sessions:

 Getting residents and families active in their own streets and working together
 Improving the health and wellbeing of children and their families
 Reducing social isolation for older people
 Developing more cohesive and joined up neighbourhoods 
 Supporting the Councils’ reputation (as an enabler for community action) in local communities. 

The risk assessment should be carried out before the day of the first Play Street and a copy sent to XXXX@salford.gov.uk.
The risk assessment should also be checked on the day of each event to see if any additional risks have been identified or been removed.

P
age 28

mailto:XXXX@salford.gov.uk


Hazard Risks Actions to reduce risk Notes
Moving vehicles 
and cyclists

Injury to volunteers when 
setting up road closure, or 
to children when playing

1. Parents to be clearly informed they are still 
responsible for children’s safety

2. All volunteers to wear high visibility jackets
3. Road closure points to be clearly marked with 

traffic cones and appropriate signage
4. Road closure notices and door to door 

leafleting prior to event to warn neighbours in 
advance of the road closure

5. Children to be asked to stay out of the road 
until all road closure points in place

6. Volunteers to alert each other and ensure there 
are no children in the road if a vehicle needs 
to pass through the road closure, before 
removing the barrier

7. Cars passing through the barrier to access 
their property to be slowly led to a parking 
spot by a steward

8. Full steward briefing by event organisers to 
cover every point of the risk assessment

9. Plan how to ensure children know that the 
session has ended and the street is ‘live’ to 
cars again. (It can be a good idea to take 
children inside their houses.)

10.
Children going 
beyond the 
barriers

Children will go past the 
road closure barriers into 
the active Street

Volunteer marshals to be stationed at each barrier 
to make sure children stay within the limits of the 
Play Street.

Passing 
members of the 
public 

P
age 29



Hazard Risks Actions to reduce risk Notes
Angry drivers Drivers will want to drive 

down the Play Street
Negotiate with driver to see if they need to drive 
down the street or can wait till after the event has 
finished.
If the driver is adamant that they need to drive 
down the street and can’t wait, they can be 
walked through the Play Street with an escort.

Rubbish in the 
road

Any debris in the road, 
that may cause children to 
fall, or may be picked up 
by young children.

A quick litter sweep of the road before the road 
opens should be carrid out.

Rain / heat / ice

Anything 
particular about 
your street? 
Steep hill / 
street off busy 
main road…?

Additional Risks 
identified on the 
day of the event 
or during the 
event

P
age 30



For Decision ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 

FOR BRIEFING ON 12th OCTOBER 2020 

TITLE: Public consultation on Draft Crescent Development Framework 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the City Mayor:

1. Notes the content of this report; and
2. Endorses the Draft Crescent Development Framework for the purposes of public 

consultation and notes that the final version will be brought back to a future meeting 
for endorsement. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

In March 2020 the City Council and University appointed the English Cities Fund as Private 
Sector Partner to deliver the Crescent Masterplan. Since March, the partners have been 
reviewing and testing the initial Masterplan proposals developed by 5plus architects (endorsed 
by Cabinet in February 2018) and developing the delivery programme. 

The Partners are eager to build on current project momentum and the wealth of work already 
undertaken to prepare and adopt a new Development Framework for the area by the end of 
2020, to replace the now outdated Crescent Development Framework (2014).

An initial scoping consultation on the draft vision and objectives for the Development 
Framework was undertaken between June-August 2020. Letters were issued to all properties 
within the proposed red line boundary of the Development Framework area (and properties 
located within 150m of the red line boundary) and to statutory consultees. Comments received 
have been reviewed and incorporated into a Draft Development Framework and approval is 
now sought to commence public consultation on the Draft Development Framework. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

- Report of the Head of Development to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 13th 
February 2017.

- Report of the Strategic Director, Environment and Community Safety to Property and 
Regeneration Briefing on 10th April 2017.

Page 31

Agenda Item 3c



- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 22nd 
May 2017. 

- Presentation to the City Mayor by 5plus architects on 4th December 2017. 
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to City Issues Briefing on 5th February 2018.
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 12th 

February 2018. 
- Report of the City Mayor to Cabinet on 27th February 2018.
- Development Team Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 21st May 

2018.
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing - 

Crescent and University Masterplan 26th November 2018.
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 11th 

March 2019
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Procurement Board on 13th March 2019. 
- Development Team Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 25th March 

2019.
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Salford Crescent and University District Masterplan: Appointment of Private Sector 
Partner), 24th February 2020. 

KEY DECISION: NO 

This stage of public consultation on the Draft Development Framework is to seek views on the 
proposed vision, objectives and future approach to development across the Crescent area. As 
no decisions are being made in relation to the city council’s policy approach at this stage, the 
decision to approve the Draft Development Framework for the purposes of public consultation 
is not considered to be a key decision. 

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1 In March 2020 the City Council and University appointed the English Cities Fund as 
Private Sector Partner to deliver the Crescent Masterplan. Since March, the partners 
have been reviewing and testing the initial Masterplan proposals developed by 5plus 
architects (endorsed by Cabinet in February 2018) and developing the delivery 
programme. The preparation of a new up-to-date Development Framework which fully 
reflects the partners ambitions for the area has been a key focus of the project team 
over recent months. Following an initial scoping consultation with properties within the 
proposed red line boundary of the new Development Framework (and properties 
located within 150m of the red line boundary) and statutory consultees, a Draft 
Development Framework has been prepared and approval is now sought to 
commence public consultation on the document. Subject to future approvals, the new 
Crescent Development Framework will be endorsed by the Council and will replace 
the Crescent Development Framework which was adopted in 2014. 

2.0 The need for and scope of a new Development Framework for the Crescent area

Page 32



2.1 The 2018 Crescent Masterplan prepared by 5plus architects was indicative only, and 
as such has no ‘weight’ in planning terms. The existing Crescent Development 
Framework was adopted in 2014, but no longer functions as an effective planning tool 
to guide future development across the area as it does not reflect the refreshed 
ambitions of the Council, University and the English Cities Fund, nor did it anticipate 
the scale of development that has been seen across the area in recent years (such as 
the Adelphi Wharf, Local Crescent and Outwood Wharf developments). A refreshed 
up-to-date Development Framework is therefore required to set out the future 
development ambitions of the partners and to help guide future development across, 
and secure investment in, the Crescent area over the next 15-20 years. It should be 
noted that the new Development Framework will have limited weight in planning terms, 
compared to a formal statutory planning document, but its weight will be enhanced by 
taking the document through both the scoping consultation which has already taken 
place, and the proposed public consultation process discussed in this report. 

2.2 The proposed red line boundary for the new framework is almost identical to that of 
the existing Crescent Development Framework. The key difference being that a small 
area of additional land is to be included in the vicinity of McDonald’s / Albion Way. This 
area has been included as it is important that the new framework considers future 
infrastructure opportunities in the area surrounding Salford Crescent Station in light of 
the partners ambitions to develop a new transport hub and secure Metrolink 
connectivity to the area. 

3.0 Overview of the Draft Crescent Development Framework 

3.1 The new Development Framework will provide a planning framework for the Crescent 
area that is up-to-date, robust and provides clear direction regarding what can be 
delivered in the area to ensure it becomes a successful and vibrant new city district. 
The proposals aim to create an inviting, attractive and unified place which provides a 
range of quality new homes and generates jobs and knowledge, enhancing the wider 
Salford economy. It promotes a radical improvement to public realm and sustainable 
transport, the celebration and enhancement of the areas wealth of green, blue and 
heritage assets and aims to establish strong physical connections between the 
University Campus and surrounding communities, to create a coherent, modern and 
connected place which benefits existing and new residents, students, workers and 
visitors. The Draft Development Framework supplements a number of saved policies 
in Salford’s adopted Unitary Development Plan (primarily Policy MX1 which sets a 
vision for the Regional Centre as a vibrant mixed-use area) and is also framed by 
policies in the emerging Salford Local Plan.

3.2 The Draft Development Framework incorporates the following new vision for the 
Crescent area:

“The Salford Crescent Development Framework aims to transform this part of Salford 
into a globally recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit, play and be 
active. It will build on the existing positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic 
environment around the Crescent Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive sense of 
place. It will create an inspiring, attractive and sustainable place which generates 
professional and educational opportunities for the benefit of the wider community 
whilst also protecting and enhancing the natural environment.”

3.3 The following key objectives have been developed collaboratively with the partners 
and align with the Council’s ‘Great 8’ priorities, local and national planning policy and 
the UN sustainability goals:  

Page 33



Learning and Innovation
 Support and enhance the future development of the University
 Enhance the local experience for students and University staff

People, Community and Tackling Inequality
 Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures
 Respond to and integrate with local communities
 Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind
 Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and enhanced opportunities to 

be physically active

Culture and Creativity 
 Create a place with culture at its heart

Strong and Diverse Economy
 Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling 

innovation district

Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport
 Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm

Environment and Blue-Green infrastructure
 Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase 

biodiversity
 Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment

Climate Change 
 Lead the way to carbon neutrality

3.4 The Development Framework then goes on to set out in more detail the proposed 
overarching development principles for the area, the application of those principles in 
each of the 6 development zones / character areas and the overall illustrative 
masterplan for the area. The framework concludes with a discussion about the 
implementation and phasing strategy for future development across the area. The 
scale of ambition set out within the Draft Development Framework is significant and 
brings with it delivery challenges that will need to be considered further. The proposed 
public consultation on a Draft Development Framework will provide an opportunity to 
explore future development options with the community and statutory stakeholders. 

4.0 Next Steps

4.1 Subject to the recommendations in this report being agreed, the draft Development 
Framework will be subject to a 6 week period of public consultation commencing on 
20th October 2020.  The consultation process will make use of a virtual consultation 
tool in addition to real word ‘drop-in’ events (which will observe social distancing 
requirements).  

4.2 Comments received during the public consultation process will be incorporated into 
the final Development Framework (where appropriate) and approval to endorse the 
final Development Framework will be sought in due course.

Page 34



KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies
 City of Salford Publication Local Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

A draft Community Impact Assessment of the Draft Development Framework has been 
prepared. The draft CIA will be reviewed following the end of the formal consultation period 
and will inform the final version of the Development Framework. Approval to endorse the final 
Development Framework will be sought in due course and the final CIA will be submitted 
alongside the final Development Framework to inform the decision. 

SOCIAL VALUE: 

In addition to the Crescent Development, the Council, University and the English Cities Fund 
are also preparing a Social Value Strategy for the Crescent area. Public consultation on social 
value matters commenced in August 2020 and will run until the end of November 2020. The 
outcomes of the consultation will inform the preparation of the final Social Value Strategy for 
the area. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

The Development Framework will act as key additional guidance for the delivery of significant 
new development across the area.   

Following endorsement of the Development Framework, there is potential that land assembly 
will be required to achieve strategic ambitions of the partners. This land assembly may need 
to be supported by the use of the Development Framework, the emerging Local Plan, future 
planning applications across the area and Compulsory Purchase Powers.  

The Council and its developer partner are highly experienced in the above processes, as 
evidenced in the ongoing regeneration of the Salford central area.  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton

A final version of the Framework which will include the results of the public consultation 
exercise proposed above will be brought back for endorsement. Once the Framework has 
been endorsed it will become a material consideration for the City Council as Local Planning 
Authority. 

Legal Services will support the team in taking the proposals forward to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislative and constitutional requirements   

Page 35



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Natalie Birchall

The report details the need to quickly prepare a new up-to-date Development Framework for 
the area to replace the now outdated Crescent Development Framework (adopted in 2014) 
and at this stage there are no financial implications. As the scheme progresses further 
approvals will be required.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christine Flisk

There are no procurement implications contained within the report.

HR IMPLICATIONS: No comments have been sought on HR implications.  

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Dan Welsh

The Draft Development Framework objectives have been informed by the United Nations 
Sustainable Development Goals and the framework includes a specific objective related to 
climate change. In addition to the Draft Development Framework, the partners are also 
preparing a specific Sustainability Strategy for the Crescent area, which will set out more 
detailed objectives and KPI’s to guide future development across the area. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: A range of Council directorates and teams have 
been engaged as the Draft Development Framework has progressed and will continue to be 
involved moving forwards.

CONTACT OFFICER: TEL NO: 

James Shuttleworth Currently working from home and available on via email 
(james.shuttleworth@salford.gov.uk) and MS Teams 

Kurt Partington Currently working from home and available on via email 
(Kurt.Partington@salford.gov.uk) and MS Teams 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: The Draft Development Framework boundary 
includes land within Broughton, Irwell Riverside, Langworthy and Ordsall wards. 

Page 36

mailto:james.shuttleworth@salford.gov.uk


October 2020

1

Draft Development Framework
October 2020

THE CRESCENT
SALFORD

Page 37



Fire Station Square and A6 Crescent Cross-Section Visual

P
age 38



October 2020

4 5

Partners

Project Team

01 Introduction

02 Salford’s Time  

03 The Vision

04 The Crescent: Contextual Analysis

05 Development Framework Area: Development Principles 

06 Character Areas: Development Principles

07 Illustrative Masterplan

08 Delivering The Vision: Implementation & Phasing

APPENDICES

Appendix A 
Planning Policy

Appendix B  
Regeneration Context

Appendix C 
Strategic Options

Contents

8

24

40

52

76

134

178

182

Draft Crescent Development Framework

P
age 39



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

6 7

Salford Crescent Visual - Aerial

P
age 40



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

Introduction01.

Draft Crescent Development Framework

8 9

October 2020

P
age 41



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

In recent years, Salford has seen a substantial 
amount of investment in new homes, businesses, 
infrastructure and the public realm. The delivery 
of major projects such as MediaCityUK, Salford 
Central, Greengate, Port Salford and the AJ Bell 
Stadium, and the revitalisation of road and riverside 
corridors, has transformed large areas of Salford 
and had a significant impact on the city’s economy 
and profile. Investment in Salford is ongoing and 
increasing numbers of people are choosing it as a 
place to live, work and visit.

City Centre Salford, Salford Quays, and some 
adjoining areas have experienced significant 
growth and investment in recent years and provide 
a major concentration of employment, retail, leisure, 
tourism and cultural opportunities. However, there 
are still high level of deprivation in some of the 
inner neighbourhoods surrounding the City Centre. 

The Framework area lies within City Centre Salford 
bordered to the south-east by Chapel Street, 
an area of the city which has seen significant 
development in recent years with residential 
projects such as Timekeepers Square and Vimto 
Gardens and investment in traffic calming, public 
realm and landscaping. The Framework area is 
served by Salford Crescent mainline train station 
and is within walking distance of Manchester City 
Centre to the east. 

It is centred around the University of Salford’s 
campus, which is a large employer in the City 

The next 20 years are going to be very 
important for Salford; substantial progress has 
been made in securing the city’s regeneration 
with the city attracting continued investment 
from all over the world. Major developments 
such as MediaCityUK have put Salford on the 
map and development in the city continues at 
pace, rivalling that of neighbouring Manchester. 
Salford has its challenges and it is essential that 
new development is carefully integrated into the 
city in such a way that maximises benefits for 
all Salford residents and responds to identified 
challenges so that the city continues to prosper.

and contributes significantly to Salford’s economy, 
but is currently divided by natural and man-made 
infrastructure including the River Irwell, railway line 
and the A6/Crescent. This has led to parts of the 
Framework Area being left vacant or under-utilised. 
The expansion of the City Centre provides a unique 
opportunity to build on the areas existing assets 
including strong transport connections, heritage 
assets, and high quality green space to create a city 
district which links education with local industry, 
culture, heritage and residential development. 

The Draft Development Framework promotes radical 
improvements to the public realm and aims to 
establish strong links between the University and the 
surrounding communities. 

The Draft Development Framework has been 
prepared by Salford City Council (‘SCC’) working in 
close collaboration with its Partners, the University 
of Salford (‘UoS’) and The English Cities Fund (‘ECF’), 
to set out an ambitious long term vision for the area 
which will guide future regeneration over the next 20 
years. The Framework sets out development principles 
that will facilitate high-quality place-making, 
capitalise on the area’s unique existing assets and 
meet the needs of local communities. 

In order to fully realise the transformational vision 
for the area and the significant benefits that can 
be generated locally, a clear implementation and 
delivery strategy is proposed that forms a ‘golden 
thread’ running through the Development Framework.

01. Introduction

1110

Figure 1.1 / Transport Hub - Visual

Figure 1.2 / The Crescent - Visual

P
age 42



Draft Crescent Development Framework

12

The Crescent: 
A Unique 
Regeneration 
Opportunity

The area covered by the Development Framework 
sits within City Centre Salford and extends to 
approximately 102 hectares.  The Development 
Framework area primarily falls within the Irwell 
Riverside and Broughton wards with a small 
area to the south and south-east falling within 
the Langworthy and Ordsall wards (although it 
is noted that the ward boundaries are currently 
being reviewed).  

One of the key Development Framework drivers 
is to ensure that development proposals are 
brought forward in a way that maximises 
placemaking opportunities and ensure social 
value is generated through the application of the 
Development Framework.

Zone 1 
Innovation Zone

Zone 2  
Parks & River

Zone 3 
Peel Park Campus

Zone 4 
Transport Hub

Zone 5 
Adelphi Village

Zone 6 
The Crescent

The Crescent represents one of the UK’s most exciting 
regeneration opportunities and builds upon the successful 
renaissance of Salford in recent years as a key component of 
the Northern Powerhouse. The area has the potential to be 
a world class, globally recognised destination for people to 
live, learn, work, visit and play.

The Development Framework area has been divided into 
six ‘zones’ which will form distinct character areas. Each 
has a key role to play in delivering the required level of 
transformation for Salford Crescent:

01. Introduction

2

ZONE 1
INNOVATION ZONE

ZONE 4
TRANSPORT HUB

ZONE 2
PARKS & RIVER ZONE 5

ADELPHI VILLAGE

ZONE 3
PEEL PARK CAMPUS

ZONE 6
THE CRESCENT

13

The Framework area contains the Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses of the University of 
Salford, the SCC owned Salford Innovation Park and 
civic amenities such as Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, Peel Park and the Meadows. Surrounding 
the Framework Area are established communities 
centred around Pendleton, Lower Broughton and 
Chapel Street.  The area is a major gateway into City 
Centre Salford from the west and represents Salford’s 
principal cultural and higher education hub.

Figure 1.3 / Development Zones

October 2020

P
age 43



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

01. Introduction

1514

Figure 1.4 / Aerial Image showing Key Existing Assets

INNOVATION FORUM

FREDERICK ROAD

DAVID LEWIS 
PLAYING FIELDS 

PEEL PARK

THE MEADOWS

RIVER IRWELL

CRESCENT (A6)

ALBION WAY

ALLERTON BUILDING

BRIAN BLATCHFORD 
BUILDING

SMAG

PEEL PARK 
QUARTER: STUDENT 
ACCOMMODATION

FARMER NORTON 
CAR PARK

OLD PINT POT

FORMER POLICE HQ

HEMSLEY HOUSE 
HUMPHREY 

BOOTH HOUSE

FARADAY HOUSE
CRESCENT HOUSE

PEEL BUILDING

OLD FIRE STATION

MAXWELL BUILDING

NEW ADELPHI 

NEWTON BUILDING

SALFORD 
CRESCENT 
STATION

MARY SEACOLE 
BUILDING

OLD ADELPHI

CENTENARY 
BUILDING

P
age 44



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

16 17

The Delivery Partners

Salford City Council will oversee the preparation of the Development 
Framework in collaboration with Partners and other landowners. 
The Council has a strong track record in delivering large-scale 
mixed-use regeneration schemes across the City, working in 
partnership with the private sector and other key stakeholders. 

The University of Salford is one of Salford’s biggest employers 
and makes a significant contribution to the local economy. The 
University of Salford has been undergoing a transformation over 
recent years, much like the City of Salford itself. Rooted in Salford 
for almost 125 years through its founding institution the Royal 
Technical Institute, the University today has global reach and 
impact. Students are attracted to the city from around the world 
and the University has over 170,000 alumni in every corner of the 
globe, across all sectors and at all levels.

Salford graduates are supporting key growth sectors in the city, the 
city region and beyond – these include Acoustics; Energy; Robotics 
and AI; Health Innovation; and Automotive and Autonomous 
Vehicle Technology. The University of Salford is committed to 
building sustainable growth which includes striving to continuously 
innovate the curriculum through partnership with industry to give 
students future-proofed, real-world skills and mind-sets. 

In March 2020, The English Cities Fund (ECF) was selected as the 
Private Sector Partner (PSP) for the regeneration of Salford Crescent 
and the University District. ECF is a partnership formed in 2001 
between Muse Developments, Legal and General and Homes 
England. Since then ECF have been working with councils, landowners 
and communities to create exceptional places across the UK, 
bringing together investment, regeneration expertise and long-term 
commitment to shape our towns and cities for the better. 

ECF has delivered some of the country’s most complex and successful 
urban regeneration projects. These also include a number of schemes 
in Salford including Chapel Street, New Bailey, Valette Square, Vimto 
Gardens, Timekeepers Square and Carpino Place (these schemes form 
part of the wider Salford Central regeneration project).

01. Introduction

P
age 45



Draft Crescent Development Framework

18 19

2014 
The Crescent Development Framework
In May 2014, SCC adopted the current Crescent Development Framework. 
This was subject to public consultation and forms a material consideration 
in the determination of planning applications in the area. Due to the 
changing regeneration and policy context, this guidance is now out-of-
date and will be superseded by the new Development Framework.

Progress So Far
The process of change across the Crescent area has 
already started, and this Draft Development Framework 
builds on the significant progress made by SCC and UoS 
over recent years. A summary of masterplanning work 
undertaken to date is provided below:

01. Introduction

2020 
University Estate Masterplan Refresh
In 2020, UoS prepared a Masterplan ‘Refresh’ setting out updated proposals 
for its campus over the next 15 years (2020 -2035). Following the appointment 
of ECF in March 2020, the updated development proposals for the University’s 
Peel Park Campus are set out in this new Draft Development Framework. 

2018 
University of Salford & Salford Crescent Masterplan

In May 2017, 5plus architects were appointed by SCC and  
UoS to prepare an indicative Masterplan for the Crescent.

The Masterplan explored the opportunities for SCC and UoS to combine 
their assets across the area to create a development proposition of 
scale and duration. The Masterplan established an initial vision and 
set of key objectives for the area and identified a comprehensive 
pipeline of development and investment opportunities including:

Public consultation was undertaken with local residents, businesses and 
interested investors / partners on initial proposals throughout August-
September 2018.  However, the indicative Masterplan had no statutory ‘weight’ 
in planning terms as it was never formally adopted by the Council. 

3,000 residential new build 
apartments / townhouses

1.6 million sq ft of new 
commercial floorspace

New multi-storey car parks

Nearly 2 million sq ft of public realm

1.5 miles green landscaped routes

1.5 miles cycleways

1,000 trees

1.1 million sq ft of new educational floorspace

Over 700 new student accommodation 
beds on campus

New hotel and University events and 
conferencing facility

October 2020

P
age 46



Draft Crescent Development Framework

20

Purpose of the 
Development Framework
The overarching purpose of this Development Framework is to establish a clear 
vision, objectives and set of development principles that will catalyse the delivery 
of transformational change over the next 20 years, securing a range of long-lasting 
economic, social and environmental benefits across the Framework area and adjoining 
communities. It has been prepared in the context of Salford’s wider regeneration 
initiatives and embeds the following seven key Partner policy priorities at its heart:

The key objectives that flow from these priorities will provide the structure for a 
series of Framework-wide and character area specific development principles that 
will establish overarching parameters and aspirations, guiding future development. 
The Illustrative Masterplan contained within this Draft Development Framework is 
a diagrammatical embodiment of these development principles. It is accompanied 
by a delivery strategy which provides an indication of how development could be 
accommodated across the area over time, informed by a detailed understanding of 
existing challenges and opportunities and proposed interventions. 

01. Introduction

Next Steps
Building on the extensive work undertaken to date, this 
new Development Framework will look to formalise the 
development proposals for area and will be used to 
guide future development over the next 20 years. 

Learning and 
Innovation

People, Community 
and Tackling Inequality

Culture and Creativity

Strong and Diverse Economy

Status of the 
Development Framework 
Following adoption by SCC, the Crescent 
Development Framework will guide 
development across the Framework area over 
the next 20 years and will form a material 
consideration in the determination of all future 
planning applications across the area. 

The Development Framework does not form part 
of SCC’s adopted Development Plan. However, 
it has been prepared having had full regard to 
relevant legislation including national planning 
policy contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) (2019), the ‘saved’ policies 
of the Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004-
2016 (UDP) (2006), the Draft Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (2019), and emerging policies 
within the “A Fairer City” Publication Salford 
Local Plan: Development Management Policies 
and Designations (2020). 

Once adopted by SCC, the Crescent Development 
Framework will supersede the previous Crescent 
Development Framework (adopted May 2014).   

Benefits of the
Development Framework 
There are a number of benefits that will be derived 
from the preparation of a Development Framework 
for the long-term regeneration of the Crescent 
including:

• Taking a holistic view of the existing challenges 
and opportunities and developing a robust 
response, informed by technical evidence 
and public consultation, that will facilitate 
high-quality place-making and deliver 
transformational change in the longer term;

• Enabling the local community and key 
stakeholders to feed into the Vision and 
development principles for the area at an early 
stage, providing vital local knowledge that will 
help shape future proposals and interventions;

• Integrating the proposals with a wider strategy 
for regeneration and infrastructure initiatives (i.e. 
large scale transport proposals), ensuring that 
proposals recognise and respond to surrounding 
communities and land uses;

• Providing certainty to investors on expectations 
for development across the area, whilst 
maintaining adequate flexibility to respond to 
development and investment opportunities 
which may come forward over the next 20 years; 

• Acting as a promotional tool to highlight the 
fantastic assets that already exist within the area 
and to demonstrate what could be achieved;

• Providing additional guidance in order to direct 
and deliver the aspirations contained within 
relevant policies of the emerging Salford Local 
Plan and ensure their effective implementation; 
and

• Establishing an indicative implementation 
and delivery strategy, plotting out how and 
when various sites will be brought forward for 
development in a phased manner.  

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport

Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure

Climate Change and 
Sustainability

21

October 2020

P
age 47



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

23

Consultation

SA/SEA Screening
At an early stage of the process, CBRE Limited 
was commissioned to complete a Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA)/ Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) Screening Statement for the draft 
Crescent Development Framework Document.  
The purpose of the Screening Statement was to 
identify whether there is a need for a standalone 
SEA/ SA to accompany the Development 
Framework.

Although non-statutory documents (such as 
this) are not required to undertake a SA/SEA, in 
the interest of ensuring that the Development 
Framework is as robust as possible, a Screening 
exercise was undertaken to screen the need 
for SEA/SA to be undertaken alongside the 
Development Framework. The Screening exercise 
was undertaken against the criteria from 
Annex II of the SEA Directive and Schedule 1 of 
the Environmental Assessment of Plans and 
Programmes Regulations (2004). 

The Screening Statement concluded that the 
Development Framework is not likely to have 
any significant effects on the environment and 
therefore a full SEA is not required. Conversely, it 
shows that a number of positive benefits will be 
generated.  In addition, the emerging Local Plan 
policies will be subject to a full SEA.

The SA/SEA Screening was issued to Natural 
England, Historic England and the Environment 
Agency and it was confirmed that SA/SEA 
was not required. Notwithstanding this, a 
Sustainability Checklist will be published 
alongside the Draft Development Framework.  

Scoping Consultation
An initial Scoping Consultation was undertaken 
by SCC from 6 July – 3 August 2020.  SCC sought 
the views of stakeholders and consultees through 
a scoping consultation letter on its intention to 
refresh the Crescent Development Framework.  
This contained details of the revised vision and 
objectives and set out the next steps in terms of a 
review of the Masterplan.

The Scoping Letter was sent by post to 
approximately 6,000 residents and local businesses 
falling within the Framework area, and the area 
immediately adjacent to the Framework area, and 
all statutory consultation bodies.  

Details of the scoping consultation were also 
published on SCC’s website and an electronic 
version of the letter was available to download.

Finally, details of the scoping consultation were 
also published on the dedicated website for the 
project where an electronic version of the letter 
was available to download. 

Accompanying this Draft Development Framework is a Consultation 
Statement which has been prepared in accordance with Salford’s 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2010 (as amended). 

The Consultation Statement sets out who the project team have 
engaged with in preparing the Draft Development Framework; a 
synopsis of the main issues raised by consultees, and how those 
issued have been addressed in the Draft Development Framework. 

www.salfordcrescent.com

01. Introduction

Public Consultation 
SCC’s Cabinet approved the commencement of 
public consultation on the Draft Development 
Framework for a 6-week period commencing on 20 
October - 30 November 2020 to allow consultees to 
provide views on the draft proposals. 

The representations received will be fully considered 
by the Council in the preparation of the final 
Development Framework, with formal responses 
presented within the final Consultation Statement. 

A summary of the key stages of the Development 
Framework preparation process is set out below.

22

P
age 48



02. Salford’s Time

24 25

October 2020Draft Crescent Development Framework

P
age 49



26 27

02. Salford’s Time

Context for Change

Greater Manchester

Greater Manchester is home to over 2.8 million people, and has 
seen an increase of over 200,000 residents in the last 10 years 
alone. The population is forecast to grow by around another 
250,000 by 2037 (GMSF Revised Draft, January 2019).  

The region is one of the most economically diverse 
in the UK, and is the main driver of the northern 
economy, generating nearly 40% of total output 
(GVA) in the North West and 19% across the North 
of England.  At present, around 1.4 million jobs are 
provided within Greater Manchester. The baseline 
economic forecasts predicts an increase of around 
110,000 jobs by 2037, increasing to 180,000 in the 
accelerated growth scenarios.

Employment opportunities are largely focussed 
around the City Centre and adjoining areas such 
as Salford Quays which collectively account for 

20% of jobs. Baseline economic trends suggest that 
the majority of employment growth would be in 
Salford, Manchester and Trafford. 

Greater Manchester’s overarching aim is to evolve 
into a world-class global city. Whilst the region has 
seen considerable growth and investment in recent 
years under the Northern Powerhouse agenda, 
in order to realise this vision, it will be critical to 
ensure that a strong economy, skilled residents, a 
high quality place and the environment, and lastly 
a diverse portfolio of investment and development 
opportunities are delivered. 

3m+  
POPULATION

£25.9m  
GVA

1.5m  
JOBS

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 50



Draft Crescent Development Framework

28

02. Salford’s Time

KEY

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGE
HARBOUR CITY

BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

CORNBROOK

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

TOWN
HALL

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY
TR

A
FF

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

Metrolink Extension

Metrolink

Rail link

Main Roads

The Crescent Site Boundary

Salford City Council Boundary

City Centre Salford

29

October 2020

Figure 2.1 /  Context

P
age 51



Draft Crescent Development Framework

30

With a population of 251,300, the city has 
experienced significant growth over the last 15 
years, and this has been at a considerably higher 
rate (16.2%) than Greater Manchester (10.9%) or 
the North West (7.0%). 

Salford is a major employment centre which 
makes a significant contribution towards Greater 
Manchester’s economy. There are estimated over 
9,500 active businesses in the city, and a significant 
number of these are concentrated within City 
Centre Salford and Salford Quays. The city’s 
unemployment rate has seen a substantial recent 
reduction, falling to 4.9% in the year to June 2018. 

Housing is an issue of great significance within the 
city. Average house prices have increased rapidly 
in recent years and are now around 15% above the 
previous peak of 2007. The house price to income 
ratio has risen above 5.6 (with above 4 being 
deemed unaffordable), indicating that there are 
affordability issues in the city. Although the ratio is 
considerably lower than the average for England 
as a whole (over 7.9), a significant number of 
households still find it financially difficult to access 
the right type of housing.

There are also considerable challenges within the 
city with regards to health, education and skills. 
Salford currently suffers from significant health 
inequalities, and average health levels in the city 
are much worse than the national average.

The ongoing investment and development 
currently being undertaken in the city is moving 
it forward and addressing these challenges but 
there is still progress to be made. 

Salford’s Story
Salford, along with the other Greater Manchester 
authorities, has a key part to play in accommodating 
much of this anticipated growth. Salford has not yet 
reached its full potential and increasing numbers of people 
are choosing it as a place to live, work, invest and visit. 

The following key challenges have been identified by 
Salford City Council within it’s emerging Local Plan: 

Tackle inequality, promote fairness, and ensure 
that all residents share in the benefits of growth 

Increase average levels of health and 
educational attainment, and reduce disparities 

Accommodate Salford’s growing population, in 
housing that meets the full range of needs 

Continue to develop a strong, diverse economy 
that can withstand economic shocks and provide 
a range of accessible employment opportunities 

Facilitate the continued growth of those 
locations that are essential to Greater 
Manchester’s future prospects, such as the City 
Centre and Salford Quays 

Cope with the additional demand for travel 
associated with the growth in population, 
businesses and tourists, in a sustainable way 
without worsening congestion 

Deliver the infrastructure required to support a 
growing population, including transport, schools 
and health facilities 

Ensure that growth has a positive impact 
on environmental and heritage assets, and 
contributes to attractive and distinctive places 

Minimise contributions to climate change and 
adapt to its effects, including reducing the risk 
and impacts of flooding 

When developing the key principles for the 
Development Framework these challenges have all 
been considered. As the Crescent area is developed it 
is important that the ongoing challenges for the city 
as a whole are addressed to ensure places are not 
left behind as regeneration takes place.

Regeneration in Salford

Salford’s growth strategy has in recent years 
focused on investment in iconic buildings, new 
infrastructure and public realm, new homes, 
education, health facilities and business.  

From major developments to city parks, revitalised 
waterways and green spaces, Salford is being 
rebuilt and now more people than ever before 
are choosing it as a place to live, work, invest and 
visit. The City is also investing in its transport 
infrastructure, both to improve connectivity, and to 
support the sustainable growth of the city. 

Salford is capitalising on its unique identity, 
assets and entrepreneurial skills to provide real 
benefits for its growing population.  Key recent 
achievements include:

The £550 million MediaCityUK development 
at Salford Quays

The £26 million Salford City Stadium and 
future associated development

The completion of Greengate Square which 
is set to be the catalyst for £400 million in 
private sector investment

New innovative projects like the Soapworks 
and The Landing

The revitalisation of key areas along Chapel 
Street and the riverside corridors of the 
Bridgewater Canal and the River Irwell

The £650 million scheme to transform 
Pendleton which has 1,500 new homes built, 
1,300 homes modernised and 500 new jobs.

The brand new riverside development at 
New Bailey which includes hotels, offices and 
restaurants and residential accommodation 
in close proximity to Manchester’s city centre.

Building on the success of the recent and planned 
development in the surrounding area, the Crescent is on course 
to become a major new city district over the next 20 years. 

CGI: Riverside development at Two New Bailey Square

02. Salford’s Time

31

October 2020

P
age 52



Draft Crescent Development Framework

The Greater Manchester context is critical in understanding 
Salford today. Salford, and particularly City Centre 
Salford, sits at the heart of the metropolitan area. Due 
to this strategic location, Salford has seen a turnaround 
in its fortunes over recent years, reversing decades of 
population decline and securing high levels of investment. 
This significant growth and investment in recent years 
now provides a major concentration of employment, retail, 
leisure, tourism and cultural opportunities.

The city is now delivering high levels of growth, in both 
new housing and new jobs, and is helping to drive forward 
both Salford’s and the Greater Manchester economies.

The Development Framework area sits within City Centre 
Salford which represents a major opportunity: City Centre 
Salford is directly adjacent to Manchester City Centre and 
to the Trafford Wharfside area. This area of Salford, more 
than any other, is experiencing a period of considerable 
transformation and growth, and has potential to catalyse 
development across the rest of Salford.

02. Salford’s Time

32

A Strategic Location
City Centre Salford

Regeneration Areas:

SALFORD

Charlestown 

Chapel Street

Lower Broughton

Middlewood Locks

MediaCityUK

Greengate 

Pendleton PFI

Adelphi Riverside

Salford Central

Liverpool Street

Irwell River Park

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9

10

11

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

CORNBROOK

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGEHARBOUR CITY
BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

 MEDIACITYUK

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

TOWN
HALL

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY

TR
A

FF
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

A576

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

8

St Johns

St Mary’s Parsonage

Medieval Quarter

Ramada Complex

NOMA 

Northern Gateway 

1

2

3

4

5

6

MANCHESTER

33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

910

11

1

2

3

4

5

6

Private & Confidential (Draft v.3.0)

Figure 2.2 / Strategic Location

P
age 53



Draft Crescent Development Framework

34

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGE
HARBOUR CITY

BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

CORNBROOK

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

TOWN
HALL

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY

TR
A

FF
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

A576

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

Innovation Triangle
Not only is the Development Framework area located 
within a strategic location in terms of the Greater 
Manchester context, it also sits within the highly 
significant ‘Innovation Triangle’.  This comprises 
MediaCityUK, Salford Royal Hospital and the University 
of Salford.

MediaCityUK has changed the face of the city, creating a 
globally important home for creative, digital and media 
industries. This, coupled with the work being undertaken 
by the University of Salford, and Salford Royal Hospital, 
creates a unique Innovation Triangle across the area. 

In light of this, the Framework area should not be 
viewed in isolation – it is a critical component that 
can unlock a wider transformational opportunity to 
deliver an innovation district at scale - mixing future 
employment, residential and cultural uses. 

As a broader investment proposition, it builds on and 
will benefit from the other components of Salford’s 
Innovation Triangle including:

A Strategic Location

02. Salford’s Time

SALFORD ROYAL 
HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY 
OF SALFORD

35

Continued growth of the  
Tech cluster already thriving at 
MediaCityUK & the Quays and 
the wider sector across GM

Rapid growth of the 
City Centre Salford

Planned doubling in size of 
MediaCityUK and the wider Quays 
areas over the next 10 years

Future development opportunity 
areas at Liverpool Street and 
the area immediately north of 
MediaCityUK.

October 2020

Figure 2.3 / Innovation Triangle

P
age 54



Draft Crescent Development Framework

36

The Opportunity
The Framework area is an attractive location 
for investment due to its accessibility and 
successful existing assets. It has already seen 
some major development in recent years. 

This Development Framework seeks to 
provide further guidance to direct investment 
to the right locations to ensure that the area 
reaches its true potential and provides a 
lasting legacy for the people of Salford.

It covers one of the largest regeneration 
areas in Greater Manchester and its strategic 
location as part of City Centre Salford, close 
to the boundary with Manchester City 
Centre, at the heart of the metropolitan area, 
provides a unique opportunity to deliver 
significant and far reaching benefits. 

Planning Policy Context
In preparing the Draft Development Framework, 
consideration has been given to national, 
regional and local planning policy. This includes 
both adopted and emerging policies in order to 
establish a full picture of the planning context 
and direction of travel. A full summary of relevant 
planning policy is provided at Appendix A and 
details of the regeneration context is provided at 
Appendix B. 

A synopsis of the key policies which have informed 
the preparation of the Draft Development 
Framework is provided in this section. 

02. Salford’s Time

Greater Manchester Spatial
Framework (GMSF) Revised Draft 
January 2019
The Spatial Framework sets out a clear vision for 
Greater Manchester. The vision is to bring forward 
brownfield land for development, reduce the net 
loss of Green Belt and provide stronger protection 
for important environmental assets. This will enable 
Greater Manchester to meet its local housing need, 
promote a new approach to town centres, support 
wider strategies around clean air, walking and 
cycling and underpins the ambition for the city to 
be carbon neutral by 2038. 

The ambition is for Greater Manchester to become 
a top global city with higher levels of international 
trade, investment, visitors, academic research and 
students. It will continue to develop research and 
development capabilities which are underpinned 
by the existing academic institutions as well as 
investing in strengthening existing and creating 
new employment locations so that all part of the 
city region become part of the thriving northern 
powerhouse.

The revised GMSF is due to be published in Autumn 
2020 and full account of this will be taken in the 
Final Development Framework.

Planning for the Future 
August 2020
On 6 August 2020, the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
launched the ‘Planning for the Future’ White 
Paper which proposes significant reforms of 
the planning system. Through these changes, 
Government is looking to streamline and 
modernise the planning process, bring a new focus 
to design and sustainability, improve the system 
of developer contributions to infrastructure, and 
ensure more land is available for development 
where it is needed. In the new system, local areas 
will develop Local Plans for land to be designated 
into three categories, or zones:

Growth areas are areas suitable for ‘substantial 
development’, with development approved at 
the same time plans are prepared, meaning new 
homes, schools, shops and business space can be 
built quickly and efficiently, as long as local design 
standards on parameters (such as land use, height 
and density) are met. In effect, adoption of the 
Local Plan confers outline planning permission 
(within those parameters).

Renewal areas will be suitable for some 
development - where it is high-quality in a 
way which meets design standards (such as 
land use, height and density) and other prior 
approval requirements the process will be quicker, 
utilising a new ‘statutory presumption in favour 
of permission’. If not, development will need 
planning approval in the usual way. 

Protected areas where development will be 
restricted to carry on protecting our treasured 
heritage like Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
and National Parks.

Communities will be consulted from the beginning 
of the planning process – and help shape the 
design codes to guide what development can 
happen in their local area.

The consultation on the White Paper runs to 29th 
October 2020. Following this, there will be further 
development of the proposals, and then there 
will be need for primary legislation, secondary 
legislation and a new NPPF. The White Paper sets 
out an aspiration for new local plans in place by 
the end of this Parliament e.g. 2024. 

Policy E3
Knowledge Capital 
A Knowledge Capital, consisting of a cluster of 
knowledge-based employment, education-related 
uses, cultural facilities, and other complementary uses, 
will be developed based around the internationally 
important University of Salford and linking through 
to the universities within the city of Manchester.

Policy MX1/2
Mixed-Use Area 
Policy MX1 seeks to develop a vibrant mixed-use 
area with a broad range of uses and activities, and 
development within these areas will be required to 
support this.

SCC is now preparing a new Local Plan for the city 
which, once adopted, will supersede the policies 
within the UDP. 

https://map.salford.gov.uk/
proposalsmap/

Figure 2.4 / Unitary Development Plan

The City of Salford Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) 
June 2006
The ‘saved’ policies of the Unitary Development 
Plan (UDP) form part of the city’s current 
Development Plan. 

October 2020

37

P
age 55

https://map.salford.gov.uk/proposalsmap/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/proposalsmap/


Draft Crescent Development Framework

38

The Salford Local Plan: 
Development Management Policies 
and Designations (SLP:DMP) 
Publication Version (January 2020)

The publication version of the Local Plan was 
published for consultation in January 2020 with 
comments invited until March 2020. The plan is 
expected to the submitted to the Secretary of State 
in late 2020. The following key policies have been 
considered in the preparation of this Development 
Framework. 

Policy F1 
An Inclusive Development Process
Developers are strongly encouraged to involve 
local residents, businesses and other stakeholders 
throughout the development process. 

Policy F2 
Social Value and Inclusion
Development shall be located, designed, 
constructed and operated so as to maximise its 
social value and contribution to making Salford a 
more socially inclusive city. 

Policy EF2 
Coordinated Development
Development will not be permitted if it would 
unacceptably hamper or reduce the development 
options for adjacent sites or the wider area. 
Development must make provision for, and be 
phased with, supporting infrastructure, facilities, 
and appropriate environmental mitigation.

Policy AP1 
City Centre Salford - Crescent, University 
of Salford and Innovation Park (G)
The area will provide a distinctive western entrance 
to the City Centre. Its historic buildings, coupled with 
enhanced views and connections to surrounding 
open spaces, will offer an attractive context for any 
further development. The green character of Peel 
Park will be extended across the A6 around Fire 
Station Square, and high quality public realm will 
unify the important cluster of heritage, cultural and 
university assets, providing a strong, active focus 
for the area. The university campus will continue 
to be improved and the adjacent Innovation Park 
enhanced for knowledge-based uses. Residential 
uses will be focused in the area to the south of The 
Crescent. The line of the former Manchester Bolton 
and Bury Canal provides an opportunity to open up 
new green infrastructure through this area.

Policy AP4 
Salford Innovation Triangle
Development shall:

• Support its role as the key focus for innovation-
led economic growth within the city;

• Enable enhancements in the area’s 
infrastructure, including: 

• Delivering the latest digital infrastructure 
throughout the area; 

• Providing a new Metrolink line between Salford 
Quays and Salford Crescent Station, potentially 
with a bus transit scheme being developed 
initially, better connecting the two anchors of 
MediaCityUK and the University of Salford.

Policy A1 
Supporting Sustainable Transport 
Development shall: 

• Help to reduce the overall need to travel 
through its location, density and mix of uses;

• Enable a modal shift towards more sustainable 
forms of transport such as walking, cycling and 
public transport; 

• Minimise any adverse impacts on transport 
networks; and 

• Be phased with the provision of sufficient 
transport infrastructure and services. The above policies, alongside those outlined in Appendix A, form the framework 

for the development of the Draft Development Framework.

02. Salford’s Time

39

Figure 2.5 / Emerging Salford Local Plan

Policy ED3 
University of Salford
The continued enhancement of the facilities and 
campuses of the University of Salford will be 
supported.  Development shall:

• Form part of a comprehensive development 
strategy to ensure that the university’s 
estate is properly coordinated and managed; 

• Support an increase in use of public 
transport, cycling and walking; 

• Take advantage of opportunities for 
greening the campus; and

• Promote links between business sectors and 
the university’s skills and research strengths 
to support the Industrial Collaboration 
Zone aspirations, including enhancement of 
Salford Innovation Park.

Policy HE6
Canals
The canals in Salford will be protected as important 
heritage assets, including the Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury Canal and its former line. 

• Development alongside the line of the canal 
shall facilitate its restoration or, where 
this is not practicable, provide open space 
incorporating walking and cycling routes and 
heritage interpretation  features along its line 
so that the potential for future restoration is 
retained and people can appreciate the history 
of the canal. 

• Development that would prevent or 
significantly hinder the future restoration of the 
canal or its tow-path will not be permitted. 

October 2020

https://map.salford.gov.
uk/publication-local-plan-
policies-map/

P
age 56

https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/


03.

40

The Vision

41

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 57



42

“The Crescent Development Framework aims to transform this part 
of Salford into a globally recognised destination for people to live, 
learn, work, visit, play and be active. It will build on the existing 
positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic environment 
around the Crescent Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive 
sense of place. It will create an inspiring, attractive and sustainable 
place which generates professional and educational opportunities 
for the benefit of the wider community whilst also protecting and 
enhancing the natural environment. “

03. The Vision

Draft Crescent Development Framework

The Draft Development Framework presents a strong 
vision for transformational change together with a set of 
key objectives and overarching development principles 
for high-quality place-making to meet the needs of a 
growing population and the expectations associated 
with changing lifestyles. 

October 2020

43

Figure 3.1 / Frederick Road Podium - Visual

P
age 58



Draft Crescent Development Framework

44

The UN SDGs are an internationally recognised set of objectives 
to 2030 that seek to achieve a better more sustainable future 
and were adopted by all United Nations Member States in 2015. 

There are 17 Sustainable Development Goals all 
of which are intrinsically connected.

United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals (UN SDGs)

In order to deliver this ambitious Vision, twelve key 
objectives for the Development Framework have been 
identified, informed by the regeneration context, national 
and local planning policy (set out in Section 2) and the site’s 
constraints and opportunities (set out in Section 4).  
In developing these objectives regard was also had to the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals (UN SDGs) and the 10 characteristics set out within the National Design 
Guide which are discussed in the sections below.

Flowing from these key objectives are a set of overarching development principles at both the 
Framework-wide level and the character area level in order to ensure high-quality placemaking 
in order to deliver this ambitious vision. These are set out within Sections 5-8 of this Framework.

03. The Vision
The following SDGs are of particular relevance to the 
Framework area and have formed a key consideration in the 
development of the objectives outlined on the following pages. 

Goal 1 
No Poverty
Economic growth must be inclusive to provide sustainable jobs 
and promote equality

Goal 3 
Good Health and Well-Being
Ensuring healthy lives and promoting the well-being for all at 
all ages is essential to sustainable development.

Goal 8 
Decent Work and Economic Growth
Sustainable economic growth will require societies to create 
the conditions that allow people to have quality jobs.

Goal 9 
Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure 
Investments in infrastructure are crucial to achieving 
sustainable development.

Goal 11 
Sustainable Cites and Communities
There needs to be a future in which cities provide opportunities 
for all, with access to basic services, energy, housing, 
transportation and more.

Goal 13 
Climate Action
Climate change is a global challenge that affects 
everyone, everywhere.

45

Figure 3.2 / UN Sustainable Development Goals

October 2020

P
age 59



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

Climate Change
Salford City Council is targeting 
Net Zero Carbon by 2028 
and the UK Government has 
a target of 2050. Adapting 
to and mitigating against 
climate change and the drive 
towards sustainable and 
carbon neutral development 
is a key consideration of the 
Development Framework. It will 
play a major role in the design 
of future developments within 
the Framework Area. 

The National Design Guide (October 2019)
In developing the Objectives for the project, the National Design 
Guide has also been referenced, building upon the Vision and UN 
SDGs identified in previous sections. The National Design Guide 
identifies 10 characteristics grouped into three key pillars of climate 
change, community and character.  These ten characteristics are 
then used to create physical character, nurture and sustain a 
sense of community and work to address issues affecting climate 
change. They all contribute towards the cross-cutting themes for 
good design set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG).

These three key pillars are considered to be key drivers for the Development Framework. 
They have informed the Framework-wide and character area development principles for 
the Crescent, set out in Section 5 and Section 6 respectively.  The matrix adjacent outlines 
how they link directly with the key Partner policy priorities, which are set out on page 20.

Character
The Development Framework 
identifies six zones across 
the Crescent area, taking 
their existing characteristics 
and weaving them 
together to create an area 
in with distinctive physical 
characteristics running 
through it. 

Retaining and building 
upon the areas existing 
character whilst bringing new 
development forward presents 
a major opportunity to deliver 
a unique and distinctive new 
district in Salford. 

Community
The Framework area 
comprises a varied and 
diverse community, including 
University students and local 
residents. 

The Development Framework 
has been prepared with a focus 
on integrating the existing 
communities in order to ensure 
that both the existing and 
future communities can thrive. 

03. The Vision

46

8

Introducing the ten characteristics
35 Well-designed places have individual 
characteristics which work together to 
create its physical Character. The ten 
characteristics help to nurture and sustain a 
sense of Community. They work to positively 
address environmental issues affecting 
Climate. They all contribute towards the 
cross-cutting themes for good design set out 
in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
36 The ten characteristics set out in Part 2 
are:

■■  Context  – enhances the surroundings.

■■  Identity  – attractive and distinctive.

■■  Built form  – a coherent pattern of 
development.

■■  Movement  – accessible and easy to 
move around.

■■  Nature  – enhanced and optimised.

■■  Public spaces  – safe, social and 
inclusive.

■■  Uses  – mixed and integrated.

■■  Homes and buildings  – functional, 
healthy and sustainable.

■■  Resources  – efficient and resilient.

■■  Lifespan  – made to last.

The ten characteristics of well-designed places

A well-designed place

C
l i

m
a

t e                         C h a r a
c

t e
r

 

C o m m u n i t y

  L i fespan

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
H

o
m

es
 a

n
d 

 

P u b l i c  s p a c e s

  R
es

ourc

es Identi t y

C ontex t

N a t u r e

  Built form

U
s e s

M

ove m
en

t

Enhanced 
and 

optimised
Safe, social 

and inclusive

Mixed and 
integrated

Functional, healthy 
and sustainable

Efficient and 
resilient

Made to last Enhances the 
surroundings

Attractive and 
distinctive

A coherent 
pattern of 

development

Accessible and 
easy to move 

around

Co
nt

ex
t

Id
en

ti
ty

Bu
ilt

 fo
rm

M
ov

em
en

t

N
at

ur
e

Pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

s

U
se

s

H
om

es
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Li
fe

sp
an

Learning and Innovation

People, Community and Tackling Inequality

Culture and Creativity

Strong and Diverse Economy

Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport

Environment and Blue-Green Infrastructure

Climate Change and Sustainability

47

10 KEY CHARACTERISTICS - NATIONAL DESIGN GUIDE

7 
PA

R
TN

ER
 P

O
LI

CY
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

Figure 3.3 / 10 Key Characteristics 
(Source: National Design Guide, MHCLG, October 2019)

P
age 60



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

49

Key Objectives
Underpinning the Vision are a series of key 
objectives, grouped under the key Partner policy 
priorities. These form the structure around which 
the Framework-wide and character area specific 
principles and Illustrative Masterplan have been 
formulated to guide future development and 
investment across the area over the next 20 years.

03. The Vision

48

Learning and Innovation
1.  Support and enhance the future 

development of the University 
• Transform the University’s Campus and the 

surrounding area to make it an outstanding 
place to study, work, live and visit and raise the 
profile of the University regionally, nationally 
and internationally.

• Enhance the Campus, bridge barriers between 
the various University zones and enhance 
existing assets.

• Create a new innovation district to forge 
stronger links between University teaching and 
research and industry and employers, bringing 
economic growth and added value to the 
Salford economy.

• Crystallise new opportunities to better connect 
the University with industry. New infrastructure 
and public realm will better connect the 
campus to cultural facilities and fantastic 
green recreational spaces across the area.

2.  Enhance the local experience for 
students and University staff

• Enhance the local experience for students and 
University staff and ensure that the University 
campus and wider Crescent area provides an 
attractive and safe long-term home-from-
home base to improve academic performance 
and graduate retention rates within the City.

• Create a ‘sticky campus’ which would include 
24/7 activity to drive economic growth and 
provide a vibrant and exciting staff and 
student experience as well as opportunities for 
local businesses. A ‘sticky campus’ refers to one 
which encourages students to stay on campus 
longer rather than go home or elsewhere for 
entertainment or food and beverage options.

People,  Community 
and Tackling Inequality
3. Provide high quality homes and 

a mix of tenures
• Bring forward a varied mix of high-quality, 

adaptable, low energy home for all.

4.  Respond to and integrate with 
local communities 

• Respond to, and fully integrate with existing 
communities which surround the area.

• Create new connections to surrounding 
communities to ensure that new buildings, 
places and infrastructure created within 
the Development Framework area benefit 
communities adjoining the area.

5.  Create opportunity for all and 
ensure nobody is left behind

• Create opportunities for everyone, reducing 
inequality, with the aim of leaving a positive 
legacy for communities within and surrounding 
the area.

• Deliver social value for the local area by 
promoting social, economic and environmental 
sustainability through the project’s life cycle 
employing a Social Value Strategy for the 
design, construction, occupation and estate 
management of the site.

6.  Support healthy lifestyles, improved 
well-being and enhanced opportunities to 
be physically active 

• Support healthy lifestyles and the improved 
well-being of students and University staff and 
of current and new residents and employees 
through the provision of safe and accessible 
green infrastructure, sustainable transport, 
enhanced public realm, quality new homes and 
a range of employment opportunities.

• Explore opportunities to develop and enhance 
physical health infrastructure and facilities 
in the locality.

P
age 61



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

50 51

03. The Vision

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport

9.  Radically change and enhance existing 
infrastructure and public realm

• Enhance existing and provide new green 
infrastructure and public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and connectivity throughout 
the area and into adjacent communities.

• Opportunities will be explored to create a new 
high-quality transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, including potential new 
Metrolink connections to Salford Quays, creating 
a destination that is accessible to all. 

Strong and Diverse Economy 

8. Generate high quality employment 
opportunities and create a truly unique and 
compelling innovation district 

• Generate high-quality employment 
opportunities across the area.

• The innovation zone will be an attraction to 
both skilled and creative workers, innovative 
firms, researchers and investors.

• The innovation zone will be interconnected 
with the University, MediaCityUK and Salford 
Royal NHS Foundation Trust to help realise the 
ambition of the Salford Innovation Triangle.

• The University Industrial Collaboration Strategy 
(ICS) will be used as a fundamental principle to 
encourage industry partnership schemes.

Culture and Creativity 
7.  Create a place with culture at its heart 
• Build on the fantastic existing assets across 

the area to create a place rich in culture.
• Create a new cultural hub, centred around 

the landmark Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery and former Fire Station.

• Redevelop Maxwell Hall to create a modern 
conferencing and event centre. Connectivity 
between assets across the cultural hub will 
be significantly enhanced by high quality 
public realm enhancements.

Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure;

10. Enhance the wealth of existing green assets 
and significantly increase biodiversity

• Capitalise on the fantastic green spaces and the 
River Irwell that already exist in the area and 
create new infrastructure and public realm full 
of rich greenery that will encourage walking, 
cycling and recreation. 

11. Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique 
historic environment

• Establish a positive strategy for the conservation 
and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, celebrating the 
areas many listed buildings and structures, 
historic parks and archaeological sites. 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability

12.  Lead the way to carbon neutrality
• Lead the way to carbon neutrality with 

sustainability placed at the heart of new 
development proposals; creating sustainable 
transport and infrastructure, ensuring 
climate resilience, increasing biodiversity, 
creating healthy streets and public realm 
and developing highly sustainable and 
environmentally friendly buildings.

P
age 62



04.

52 53

The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 63



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

Proposed Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework Red Line Boundary
July 2020

B6186 - Fredrick Road

A6 - Crescent

A5063 - Albion Way 

A6 - Broad Street

Salford Crescent Station

The Meadow

Peel Park

A6 - Chapel Street

The Crescent lies within City Centre Salford, 
approximately 2km to the west of Manchester 
City Centre and 1.5km to the north east of Salford 
Quays. It is easily accessible due to the various 
transport links and network of walking and cycle 
routes. The A6 is a primary spine road that leads 
into Salford from Manchester City Centre.

The red line plan provided at Figure 4.1 below shows 
the extent of the Development Framework area.

The Development Framework area is comprised of 
a diverse range of existing buildings, predominantly 
associated with the University of Salford, including 
those in educational, commercial, industrial, leisure, 
cultural and residential use. 

Context

54

The Framework area also contains substantial areas 
of greenspace and parks including Peel Park, the 
Meadows and the David Lewis Playing Fields which 
all adjoin the River Irwell, which traverses the site. 

It is surrounded by the well-established residential 
communities of Lower Broughton, Pendleton, 
Charlestown, Chapel Street and Adelphi Street 
together with a range of local businesses and 
industrial operations.   

This section provides a description of the 
Framework area as it is today and identifies the key 
opportunities and challenges that have informed 
the preparation of the Development Principles and 
Illustrative Masterplan.

The Framework area covers approximately 102 hectares (252 
acres). It encompasses an extraordinary array of unique 
natural, physical, historic and cultural assets centred around 
the River Irwell and the University of Salford. 

Within the Framework area there are a diverse 
range of land uses present all centred around the 
University of Salford’s Peel Park Campus including 
educational, industrial, commercial, leisure, 
residential and cultural uses, as shown in the 
figure below.

Land Uses

To the north of the Framework area around 
Frederick Road, the Salford Innovation Park 
and the Innovation Zone there are a cluster 
of industrial buildings interspersed by low rise 
residential properties known as Strawberry Hill. 
Beyond the boundary to the north the area is 
characterised by low rise residential communities 
and industrial uses. 

The central and western elements of the 
Framework area comprise the University of Salford’s 
main campus and include associated uses including 
teaching facilities and student accommodation. 

Education

Industrial

Residential

Commercial 

Cultural

Leisure

This area also forms the heart of the Crescent’s 
rich and diverse cultural offer focussed around 
Salford Museum and Art Gallery, the Working Class 
Movement Library, Peel Hall, Maxwell Hall and New 
Adelphi Theatre. 

To the south of the A6 along the Crescent the area 
is mixed-use in nature with University buildings, 
commercial units, community uses, residential 
properties, leisure uses and industrial units together 
with a large expanse of surface car parking. 
Within this area there are a number of vacant 
buildings including the former Police HQ. Beyond 
the boundary to the south is the railway line and 
industrial uses associated with CEMEX operations 
on Hope Street. 

The east of the Framework area is characterised 
by the green spaces of Peel Park, the Meadows 
and David Lewis Playing Fields which adjoin the 
River Irwell. To the east of the river is the emerging 
Adelphi Street community, vacant buildings 
including the Old Adelphi and Centenary Building 
and surface car parks. Beyond this to the north 
and east are the well-established communities of 
Chapel Street and Lower Broughton. 

Careful consideration will need to be given as to 
how the proposals refer to and integrate with 
surrounding uses and communities.

55

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Site Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Commercial

Mixed Use

Industrial

Pubs/Bars/Restaurants

Cultural

Educational

Religious Buildings

Salford City Council

Vacant Buildings

Institutional

KEY

Figure 4.1 / Red Line Plan

Figure 4.2 / Land Usage Plan

P
age 64



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

56 57

Salford City College;

Network Rail;

Electricity North West Limited;

Travis Perkins Limited;

Canal and River Trust;

Salix Homes;

Done (Property) Limited;

Myliko International (Wines) Limited; 

Private Residential Properties; and

Citroen UK Limited.

Land Ownership
The majority of the land within the Framework 
area (approximately 90%) is under the ownership 
or leased by the University of Salford and Salford 
City Council. However, as shown on the figure below 
there are also a number of private ownerships 
within the Framework boundary including 
landholdings controlled by:

Given that the majority of the Framework area 
is controlled by the Partners, this will enable 
the coordinated delivery of the proposals over 
the next 20 years. The Partners have worked 
collaboratively to ensure that the proposals 
presented in this Framework have been 
prepared in a holistic manner in order to secure 
the widest possible range of regeneration 
benefits locally and across the City. 

It is recognised by the Partners that existing 
businesses, social enterprises and residential 
communities contribute to the vitality and 
viability of the area as a place to live and work. 
The Partners are committed to engaging with 
the local community to understand the issues 
that are important locally and to generate 
significant social value over the next 20 years. 

Scale and Density
As shown on Figure 4.4, the scale and density of 
existing development varies across the Framework 
area, typically ranging between 1-4 storeys in 
height. However, there are also a number of taller 
buildings present including:

The Local Crescent    16-22 storeys

Outwood Wharf   18 storeys  

Maxwell Building    10 storeys 

Peel Park Student Residential  10 storeys

Allerton Building    9 storeys

Adelphi Wharf     7-9 storeys 

The scale of development in the area 
continues to evolve, particularly around the 
A6, influenced by the large-scale regeneration 
schemes that have come forward in Salford 
Central and Chapel Street. The north of the 
site consists of lower-rise industrial buildings 
ranging between 1-3 storeys. 

The residential communities surrounding the 
Framework area including Pendleton, Lower 
Broughton, Charlestown and Adelphi Street 
are generally characterised by lower rise 
family housing.  

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

KEY

>9 Storeys 

5-9 Storeys

2-5 Storeys

<2 Storeys

Site Boundary 

KEY

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

UNIVERSITY OF SALFORD

SALFORD CITY COLLEGE

ELECTRICITY NORTH WEST 
LIMITED

MYLIKO INTERNATIONAL 
(WINES) LIMITED

TRAVIS PERKINS LIMITED

CANAL & RIVER TRUST

SALIX HOMES LIMITED

DONE (PROPERTY) LIMITED

PRIVATE HOUSING

OTHER OWNERS

Figure 4.3 / Land Ownership Figure 4.4 / Scale and Density

P
age 65



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

58 59

04. The Crescent 

Historic Environment
The name ‘Salford’ is rooted in its riverside location 
as it is derived from ‘sallow’, a type of willow, and 
‘ford’, meaning a crossing. In the early 13th Century, 
Salford began to evolve as a small town just 
east of the Framework area in a triangle of land 
bounded by the River Irwell, Sergeant Street - now 
Chapel Street, Gravel Lane and Greengate. 

By 1794, development had extended from Salford’s 
historic core to the Crescent creating large 
townhouses and gardens overlooking the River 
Irwell and surrounded by fields to the south. These 
were later largely replaced by housing and coal 
yards linked to the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal following its completion in 1808.

With the creation of Peel Park, the first public 
park in England in 1846, and the Museum and 
Art Gallery in 1850, the area became a new Civic 
Centre for Salford, home of the Fire Station, Police 
Headquarters and Technical College. 

The development of the Royal College of Advanced 
Technology (later University of Salford) and Peel 
Park Technical College (later the Salford College 
of Technology) and then the University College 
Salford during the 1960’s and 70’s, established the 
area as the main centre for higher education in the 
City. This position was further enhanced following 
the merger of these institutions in 1996 to form 
what we now know as the University of Salford.   

L. S. Lowry studied at Salford School of Art, housed 
in the present Peel Building, between 1915 and 
1928. Lowry was fascinated by the relationship 
between the Park and its industrial setting. He 
often painted Peel Park and also fantasy versions 
of Peel Park: ‘Sunday Afternoon’ features a boating 
lake, ‘The Bandstand, Peel Park, Salford’ (1931).

Heritage Designations
As shown on Figure 4.5, the Framework area a 
contains a rich history which can be observed from 
the number of designated and non-designated 
heritage assets and parks. 

Conservation Areas 
Much of the Framework area falls within the 
Crescent Conservation Area and part of the area 
to the south-east falls within the Adelphi Bexley 
Square Conservation Area:

• The Crescent Conservation Area was 
designated by SCC in 1981 and covers an area 
of 11.42 hectares which includes Peel Park 
and David Lewis Recreation Ground to the 
north and the Civic and Educational Centre 
to the south, together with buildings along 
the Crescent. SCC prepared and adopted 
the Crescent Conservation Area Character 
Appraisal in May 2008. 

• Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation Area was 
designated by SCC in 1978 and covers an area 
of 6.70 hectares including Chapel Street to the 
south together with the two distinct areas 
around St Philip’s Church and Bexley Square.

Listed Buildings 
There a number of Listed Buildings within the 
Framework area as listed within the table adjacent 
and shown on Figure 4.5.  These contribute to the 
area’s distinctive character. 

Non-Designated 
(Locally Listed) Buildings 
The Framework area contains a number of locally 
listed buildings as identified in Salford’s Local List 
of Heritage Assets as shown on Figure 4.5. 

Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal
The former line of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal is located to the south of the Crescent within 
the Framework area. The canal was commissioned 
by local landowners and businessmen and was 
constructed c.1791-1808 to connect Bolton and Bury 
with Manchester. The canal, when fully opened, 
was 15 miles long and was accessed via a junction 
with the River Irwell in Salford. It has since been 
culverted and is now largely in-filled. 

Salford Museum & Art GalleryQueen Victoria Statue

LISTED BUILDINGS
Ref. Description Grade

1 Three totem sculptures in front courtyard of the 
Allerton Buildings on Salford University Campus II

2 Former Nurses Home II

3 Peel Building II

4 Gazebo to east of Peel Building II

5 Joule House II

6 2, 4 and 6 Acton Square II

7 Royal Art Gallery, Museum and Library II

8 Statue of Queen Victoria II

9 War Memorial in Albion Place II

10 The Old Fire Station II

11 Statue of Prince Albert II

12 Telephone Kiosk Adjacent to Albion Place II

13 1 Hulme Place II

14 22-34, The Crescent II

15 1 Massey Street II

16 19,20 and 21, The Crescent II

17 17, The Crescent II

18 Lancashire Fusiliers Memorial II

19 Islington Mill II

LOCALLY LISTED BUILDINGS
Ref. Description Salford ref.

1 Adelphi Building HE_LLIW22

2 NatWest Bank, Albion Place HE_LLIW11

3 Fire Station, Albion Place HE_LLIW01

4 1-30 Fire Station Square HE_LLIW17

Peel Building

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Conservation Areas

Nationally Listed Building  or structure

Locally Listed Building or structure

Site Boundary

KEY

1

18
3

8
2

6

4

7

11
9

10

13 14 16

15
17

19

12
5

1
2
3
4

Figure 4.5 / Heritage Designations

P
age 66



Draft Crescent Development Framework

60

Peel Park Campus
The Peel Park campus has an indiscriminate 
character, which has been the result of many 
years of sporadic improvement and investment. 
The University has acknowledged that further 
investment and intervention is now required 
which has been reflected in the previous 
masterplanning efforts relating to the University 
campus, including the most recent 2020 
Masterplan Refresh. This Development Framework 
provides the opportunity to consider this 
holistically in the context of the wider Crescent 
area which presents a significant opportunity.

The University exerts a strong presence onto the 
A6, characterised by the red-brick grandeur of the 
Peel Building and Salford Museum and Art Gallery 
to the north - known as the ‘civic gateway’, with 
Fire Station Square and nearby Victorian villas 
of the Working Class Movement Library located 
directly opposite to the south.    

Moving further north into the campus, the history 
fades and the character of the campus becomes 
much less clear, with buildings of differing ages 
and characters. Most notably, the Newton Building, 
housing part of the School of Science, Engineering 
and Environment (SEE) is a low-rise workshop 
and laboratory building set low into the campus 
topography and built of concrete blocks and 
aluminium windows and now clearly showing its age. 

The original 1960’s masterplan established a North-
South pedestrian route, linking the civic gateway 
described above to a ‘college green’ at the heart of 
the campus - this pedestrian-friendly route is still 
strongly evident today.

The central area of the campus is dominated by the 
New Adelphi Building, built as part of a previous plan 
to relocate the School of Art and Media onto the main 
campus from the remote and disconnected Adelphi 
area of the campus.

Other central campus buildings such as Lady Hale and 
the Clifford Whitworth Library make little contribution 
with the latter, and whilst having recently undergone 
significant internal refurbishment, provide a very poor 
external image of a contemporary library service for 
prospective visitors and students.

Beyond the Library and New Adelphi Building, the 
campus character opens up again to reveal the 
‘college green’.  

Further north, the campus is largely characterised by 
student accommodation village, the Students Union 
Building and the Tom Husband Sports Centre.  Here 
there is a strong community feel with high quality 
residences set within a green, parkland setting 
consisting of Peel Park to the east and David Lewis 
Sports Ground to the north.

University Campus
The University of Salford has grown significantly 
since its creation in 1896 and has a proud 
heritage rooted in the Industrial Revolution. It is 
passionate about engaging with and developing 
local communities across Salford and Greater 
Manchester, through pioneering exceptional 
industry partnerships to lead the way in real 
world experiences, preparing students for life after 
University.

The University has two campuses across Salford: 
Peel Park and MediaCityUK. Peel Park is the site of 
the former Royal Technical Institute of Salford, as 
set out in the previous section; MediaCityUK is the 
digital, creative and media campus. 

61

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Campus Colour Palette
The colour scheme of the University buildings is 
dominated by shades of red which vary in hue 
across the site.

Many of the older buildings are red brick which has 
meant terracotta hues dominate the areas with 
more heritage. Newer buildings have incorporated 
stronger reds often used as accents against white 
façades.

This identity of built form gives the Peel Park 
campus a certain level of placemaking identity 
which is currently not echoed in other site features 
and materiality.

To reach the Frederick Road Campus, from Peel 
Park requires crossing the railway line via a 
footbridge, only to arrive on the edge of the A6 
rather than on campus. Connectivity is poor and 
the character of the Frederick Road campus has 
no consistency with that of the Peel Park Campus. 
The Mary Seacole building turns it back on to the 
A6 which further emphasises this.

Equally dominant is the Allerton Building - a 
vast and sprawling 20,000 sqm 1960’s concrete 
framed building which sits amongst car parking. 
Isolated yet connected to a sequence of other low 
lying support buildings, the arrangement forms a 
small but wind-swept courtyard accommodating 
the Grade II listed totem structures.  The Allerton 
Building is in poor repair and is surplus to 
requirements.  

There is a clear need to provide an appropriate 
University experience for students and staff on the 
Frederick Road site, therefore, as much as there 
is a need to provide investment in new academic 
facilities, the issues of connectivity, arrival and 
sense of place also needs to be resolved.

October 2020

P
age 67



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

62 63

Sustainable Transport, Connectivity and Movement
The Crescent is situated in a highly sustainable 
location within City Centre Salford. It is well 
connected to public transport via Salford Crescent 
Rail Station and a wide range of bus services that 
use the A6 Crescent, all providing good opportunities 
to access the site from varied destinations. The area 
is also bisected and surrounded by cycle routes 
(both off road and on road). 

Walking & Cycling
Cycling 
The Bee Network represents a vision for Greater 
Manchester to become the very first city-region 
in the UK to have a fully joined-up cycling and 
walking network: the most comprehensive in 
Britain covering 1,800 miles. As shown within 
Figure 4.7 there are a number of routes that have 
been identified as part of the Bee Network. The 
A6 and most of Frederick Road is identified as a 
‘Busy Beeway’ - a corridor on busier roads that 
will require a higher level of design intervention 
to improve cycling and walking.  TfGM currently 
has proposals to expand the network in the 
vicinity of the Framework area around Chapel 
Street, Islington and Trinity Way. 

Route 6 of the National Cycle Network bisects the 
Framework area from north to south partially 
travelling alongside the banks of the River Irwell 
along Meadow Road and linking to Wallness 
Lane. Improvements have been made locally 
to the riverside walkway adjacent to Peel Park 

Cycle Network (TfGM)

Beeways

Cycle Network (Sustrans)

Public Rights of Way (PROW)

Site Boundary

and David Lewis Playing Fields to enhance off-road 
pedestrian and cycle connections.  

The Draft Development Framework represents a 
generational opportunity to significantly reduce car 
dominance and to create safe cycle infrastructure 
linking with other sustainable modes including Salford 
Crescent Railway Station. 

Walking
A Public Right of Way runs along the western edge of 
the River Irwell. Current pedestrian connections and 
infrastructure throughout the Framework area are 
disjointed with major arterial routes such as the A6, 
Frederick Road and Albion Way creating barriers to 
efficient permeability across the area. The quality of 
the public realm and footway treatments varies across 
the area; however, the overall pedestrian experience 
as it currently stands is generally poor, especially 
around the periphery of the Framework boundary.

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

However, the level of vehicular traffic using the 
A6 and the physical barrier the A6 presents in 
certain locations along the Crescent, can result 
in a poor pedestrian environment during busy 
periods and limits north-south connectivity in 
some areas.

Figure 4.6 / Connectivity

Figure 4.7 / Walking and Cycling

16

| 
   

T
h

e
 c

r
e

s
c

e
n

T
 m

a
s

T
e

r
p

l
a

n

liverpool street 
& regent road

lower 
Broughton

chapel street 
& Islington

pendleton

Towards 
charlestown

Towards manchester 
city centre

A6

Frederick Road (B
618)

NCN 6

P
age 68



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

64 65

Bus
The Framework area is well served by several 
high frequency bus routes that stop along the A6, 
Frederick Road, Lower Broughton Road and Adelphi 
Street including services 26, 27, 34, 35A, 36, 50 and 
100C. Services connect the area to wider region 
traveling east towards Manchester City Centre and 
west across Salford and onto destinations such as 
Bolton, Leigh and the Trafford Centre. The A6 is a 
busy travel corridor with approximately 40 buses 
per hour travelling along the Crescent. 

In association with the movement of some 
University departments to MediaCityUK, there is a 
direct bus service from Salford Crescent Station to 
MediaCityUK running at 10 minutes intervals.

Train 
Salford Crescent mainline rail station lies at the 
heart of the Framework area, fronting onto the A6 
Broad Street/ Crescent, a dual carriageway radial 
route into the city fed by the A580 East Lancs Road. 
The station is built on a short common section of 
route heading north west, with platforms located 
hard up between two junctions, known as Windsor 
Bridge South Junction and Windsor Bridge 
North Junction.

Of the two diverging routes heading south east 
from the station, the northerly route heads 
towards Salford Central and Manchester Victoria. 
The southerly route, also known as the ‘Windsor 
Link’, heads towards Manchester Piccadilly via 
Manchester Oxford Road and Deansgate stations 
(the ‘Castlefield Corridor’), and a complex series 
of junctions in the Ordsall Lane area. Of the two 
routes heading north west from the station, 
the more easterly leads towards Bolton and 
Preston, and the westerly route towards 
Atherton and Wigan.

There are frequent services from the station 
and the railway in this area is heavily used. 
There are usually 11 trains per hour (tph) in each 
direction. The station and all trains serving it are 
operated by Northern (10 tph in each direction) 
and TransPennine Express (1tph in each direction). 
Destinations served include Manchester Victoria, 
Manchester Airport, Leeds Wigan Wallgate, 
Southport, Bolton, Blackpool and Edinburgh. 

The Crescent Station building as existing provides 
no sense of arrival into the Crescent area and is 
uninspiring.  The building is small and contains only 
a ticket office, ticket machine, limited waiting space 
with minimal seating.  Only one toilet is provided, 
not on the platforms.  There is no retail unit, coffee 
shop or similar anywhere in or close to the station. 
While the canopy on the platform was recently 
improved, there is still a large gap where rain falls 
directly onto the platforms.

On leaving the station, signage and legibility is 
lacking and it is unclear how to access either the 
University campuses or the wider area.

As part of their 2040 Vision, TfGM is pursuing 
a number of tramway extensions, both as 
conventional tram services, as now, and also as 
tram-train services, with vehicles capable of sharing 
infrastructure with conventional heavy rail services 
and complying with Network Rail standards. 
The Atherton line is one of four routes which 
TfGM is developing for the purpose of expanding 
connectivity in the city centre, relieving the 
congested existing central routes, and increasing 
service frequency.

Public Transport

Overall, the majority of the Framework area has a Greater Manchester 
Accessibility Level (GMAL) of 8, the highest possible accessible. Despite 

this, there clear opportunities to enhance sustainable movements in 
the area and to encourage walking and cycling locally.

Strategic Road Network 
The Framework area is situated approximately 
three miles from Junction 3 of the M602 which 
connects to the M60 and M62 Motorway 
network. 

The A6 ‘Crescent’ and its continuation on to 
Chapel Street is a key primary route into Salford 
and Manchester City Centre from the West. It 
connects the City with the A580 ‘East Lancashire 
Road’ and wider locations to the West including 
Bolton and Preston. In recent years SCC has 
implemented significant traffic calming measures 
and public realm improvements around the 
Crescent and Chapel Street. Furthermore, public 
realm improvements have also been carried 
out on Oldfield Road to enhance the pedestrian 
experience. 

The A6 remains a very busy through route for 
traffic heading into Manchester City Centre and the 
existing road system represents a continued barrier 
to pedestrian and cycle movement. 

The area remains ‘car dominant’ as evidenced by 
the number of City Council and University surface 
car parks currently in operation. The existing surface 
car parks represent an inefficient use of land with 
many located in prominent locations better suited 
to alternative uses. Through a rationalisation of the 
current car-parking offer and taking a holistic view 
of future connectivity, there is a clear opportunity to 
better utilise prime brownfield sites and also assist 
in transitioning away from motor vehicle use.

Frederick Road (B
618)

Highways

Railways

Railway Stations

Site Boundary

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Vehicular Access

A6

Salford Crescent

Salford Central

Figure 4.8 / Strategic Road Network

P
age 69



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Resources
Public Realm  
The public realm across the Framework area lacks a consistent high-quality unifying 
materiality and suffers from poor legibility which negatively impacts of pedestrian 
movement and flows in places. The photographs and key plan below provide an 
illustration of the range of treatments currently observed within the public realm. The 
numbers provided on Figure 4.9 correspond with the numbering of the photographs.

66

13

6

9

12

7

1
2

4
14

5

8
15

10

11

16

3

Cool tones - tarmac,
Concrete dominate

Cold tones - shades 
of grey granite, 
some terracotta

Natural tones - 
Golden gravel

Cool tones - 
tarmac, concrete 
and grey granite

Matte tones 
-  grey tarmac and 
concrete dominate

Warm tones - Yorkstone 
slabs/cobbles and 
Terracotta tarmac

12. Gravel path

Gravel paths are found 
throughout Peel Park dividing 
up the grassed areas, linking 
up various parts of the 
campus.

7. Concrete slab paving

Concrete slab paving is used 
in various places across the 
site including the Frederick 
Road Campus and parts of 
the crescent pavement.

1. Yorkstone slab paving

This yorkstone paving is 
found mostly in Albert Bentley 
Place and around the Salford 
Cenotaph in the conservation 
area of the site near.

9. Concrete slabs (large unit)

These large concrete units 
sit along the west bank of 
the Irwell in Peel Park and 
contribute to the river's flood 
defences whilst offering 
another pedestrian route.

11. Terracotta tarmac 
road surface

Terracotta tarmac road 
surface has been used in 
busier pedestrian crossing 
areas to signal caution to 
drivers.

16. Terracotta tarmac 
central reservation

Terracotta central reservations 
divide the busy carriagreways of 
the A6, the colour change and 
kerb helps to direct traffic flow.

8. Concrete block banding

Concrete block banding 
is used in various places 
across the site at edges of 
paved areas like the crescent 
pavement.

10. In-situ concrete surface

In-situ concrete areas have 
been used to surface less 
busy road areas including 
parking and drop off points.

5. Resin bound gravel

The resin bound gravel sites 
at the entrance to Peel Park 
at the gateway point from 
the A6.

4. Clay paving

The clay paving is found 
around the Peel building 
in the conservation area of 
the site and  echoes the red 
brickwork.

3. Granite paving (coloured)

This granite paving is found 
around the newer parts of the 
university campus including 
the Students Union and the 
New Adelphi building.

2. Yorkstone cobbles

The areas of yorkstone 
cobbles are found in Albert 
Bentley Place and in front of 
the Salford Institute for Public 
Policy in the conservation 
area of the site near.

6. Granite paving (buff)

This buff granite paving is 
found around the Statue 
of Joseph Brotherton and 
echoes the more stately 
setting of this monument.

67

14. Tarmac pavement

Tarmac pavements are 
found across the site and a 
large area of it runs from the 
University bus stop area up to 
Salford Crescent train station.

13. Tarmac path

Tarmac paths are found 
through some wooded and 
more natural north areas of 
the site near the David Lewis 
sports ground.

15. Tarmac road surface

Tarmac is used for much of 
the busier roads across the 
site including the A6.

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Figure 4.9 / Key showing location of public realm elements identified

October 2020

P
age 70



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

68 69

Greenspaces and the River Irwell
One of the defining features that makes the 
Crescent area such a unique and distinctive 
character is its abundance of high-quality green 
and open space that sits alongside the River 
Irwell. Indeed, this amount of open space located 
in the City Centre is extremely rare and provides a 
significant recreational, cultural and educational 
opportunity. The key elements of the green and 
open spaces comprise:

Peel Park 
Peel Park was the original City Park and is one 
of the oldest public parks in the UK. Lark Hill 
Mansion, dating from 1792, originally stood to 
the north of the Crescent. The house was sold 
with 7 acres of land to the Parks Committee and 
a public park was laid out and opened in 1846 
on the ground surrounding the mansion and 
meadowland to the north. This was one of three 
public parks opened on the same day within 
Manchester and Salford. 

The Park was named in honour of Sir Robert 
Peel who had been a prominent figure in the 
campaign for public parks and who had also 
contributed to the purchase. The park was typical 
of its period with a formal avenue leading down 
from the ornate gateway constructed on the 
Crescent. Historic maps indicate that the park was 

later enlarged and further developed with formal 
terracing and a flight of steps. This can still be 
appreciated today.

Peel Park is an attractive greenspace comprising 
lawns, mature tree planting, formal flower beds, 
footpaths and play space which has recently seen 
the benefit of Heritage Lottery Funding (HLF) and 
Council investment. The park provides a strong 
recreational offer for families in the surrounding 
communities and visitors from further afield. 
Opportunities exist to improve the relationship of 
the park with the River and enhance wayfinding. 

The Meadows
The Meadows is the largest area of open space 
within the Framework area at 7 hectares. It is a 
distinctive area located within the meander of the 
River Irwell that provides an important recreational 
offer for the local community as well as providing 
natural meadow, woodland and wetland habitats 
to encourage wildlife. 

As part of recent works, a new pathway has been 
installed together with seating and public art. The 
area currently represents an underutilised asset 
which results from its poor connectivity from the 
wider area, especially the A6 Crescent. 

Nature/ Public Spaces

The 
Meadows

Crescent
Vegetation

Green Corridor

Peel
Park

David Lewis 
Playing Fields

Site Boundary

David Lewis Playing Fields 
The David Lewis Playing Fields comprise of 
four full-size grass pitches and one full-size 
Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) which recently 
opened in February 2020, together with 
clubhouse and changing facilities. The area 
is accessed via a poorly defined entrance 
off Frederick Road to the north and it sits 
adjacent to Peel Park and the River Irwell. 

The pitches are currently owned and 
operated by the University of Salford.  
The new AGP pitch is fully floodlit and is 
available for use by the community and 
local schools and is therefore a key asset.

Other Open Space
Other areas of public space include:

• Allerton Courtyards;
• Mary Seacole Square;
• Land in front of the Salford 

Museum and Art Gallery; 
• Albion Place; and 
• Acton Square.

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Figure 4.10 / Green and Open Space

P
age 71



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

70 71

Landscape and Biodiversity Designations
Statutory Designations
The River Irwell is a designated Site of Biological 
Importance (SBI). SBIs include priority habitats 
identified in national and/or local biodiversity 
action plans, although such habitats are also 
found in other locations across the city. 

Invasive species
There is evidence of Japanese Knotweed and 
Giant Hogweed on the banks of the Irwell 
surrounding the Meadows. These invasive 
non-native species are major threats and their 
presence on site must be addressed.

Priority Habitat (Deciduous Woodland)

Open Mosaic Habitat

Priority Habitat (no main habitat)

Evidence of invasive species

Site boundary

Mature trees in grass provide 
setting to heritage buildings

Dense riverside vegetation

Open field with 
informal paths

Parkland with 
mature trees

Sports fields

Steep embankment

Formal gardens

Figure 4.11 / Landscape and Biodiversity Designations

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Risk of Flooding
The River Irwell is the main source of flood risk 
for the Framework area. As shown on Figure 
4.12 a large proportion of the Framework area 
is designated as Flood Zone 1 (low probability) 
however, the low-lying areas of Peel Park, 
David Lewis playing fields and the Meadow are 
considered Flood Zone 2 (shown on the plan 
in grey), which is an area having an annual 
probability of 0.1% to 1% for flooding to occurring in 
any year (medium probability).

An area of Peel Park falls within Flood Zone 3, 
which is an area having an annual probability of 
greater than 1% for flooding to occurring in any year 
(high probability), however the Environment Agency 
(EA) has undertaken flood defence improvements 
in recent years to manage this risk. 

Flood Zone 2 extends into the lowest elevations 
of the Innovation Zone with the existing houses, 
commercial units and industrial units off Wallness 
Avenue, Broughton Road East and Fredrick Road 
being effected by this.

Additionally, the northern area of the Adelphi Zone 
lies in Flood Zone 2, with an area of Flood Zone 

Flooding and Drainage

3 benefiting from the flood defences. This affects 
Cannon Street, Damask Avenue and Silk Street.

To mitigate the risk associated with flooding 
around the River Irwell, in 2018, the Environment 
Agency, Salford City Council and the University of 
Salford, together with local partners, completed 
the £10m Salford Flood Improvement Scheme. Built 
on the former University of Salford Castle Irwell and 
sports campus the scheme delivered on a long-
held vision to reduce the risk of flooding from the 
River Irwell and provide a boost to local wildlife 
populations by including a 5+ hectare high quality 
urban wetland habitat. 

There is a significant risk of surface water flooding 
at the southern and western sections of the 
David Lewis playing fields and along Wallness 
Lane, extending to the north, affecting sections 
of Fredrick Road and Broughton Road East. The 
proposed development of these areas should be 
sympathetic to the flood risk and key Blue-Green 
Infrastructure should be implemented to mitigate 
this risk. Any development should work with the 
natural flowpaths allowing flood water to move 
around without increasing the existing issues.

Flood Zone 2

Areas benefiting from flood defences

Flood Defence

Main River

Site Boundary

KEY

Biodiversity
The site includes a number of priority habitats 
which offer considerable ecological benefit to 
the local surroundings. The Forestry Commission 
has classified certain areas of woodland and 
woodland fringe as having high spatial priority in 
the woodland priority habitat network. The priority 
species for countryside stewardship targeting is the 
lapwing making the provision of their habitat a 
high priority. 

Figure 4.12 / Flooding and Drainage 
(Source: Environment Agency)

P
age 72



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

72

Topography and Levels
An ordnance datum or OD is a vertical datum used 
by an ordnance survey as the basis for deriving 
altitudes on maps. A spot height may be expressed 
as AOD stands for “above ordnance datum” and is a 
commonly used measure of height, where ordnance 
datum is vertical by ordnance survey as the basis 
for deriving altitudes. 

Topography
The topography of the Framework area undulates 
across it with the highest elevation to the north-
west at 48m AOD to the low levels of 25-27m AOD 
of the River Irwell. 

River Irwell
The River Irwell enters the Framework area with 
a channel level of 25m AOD and top of bank level 
being approximately 29m AOD. As it exists within 
the Framework boundary, the Irwell has a channel 
level of 25m AOD and a bank level of 27m AOD.

Rail Corridor 
The rail corridor enters the Framework area in a 
cutting between three and four metres depth up to 
Salford Crescent Station, although the ground drops 
away to the east off the cutting. The rail corridor 
follows southern boundary of the Framework area 
remaining in a cutting of between two and three 
metres depth. The rail corridor continues past the 
area and rises to meet the Salford Central Station to 
the east. Salford Crescent Station has a rise of over 
three metres to University Road West.

Primary Road Features
The Frederick Road bridge crosses the River Irwell 
at an approximate level between 30- 31m AOD. 
The A6 passes over the rail corridor or at a height 
of approximately 8 metres, with the underpass to 
Albion Way sitting approximately 1m higher than 
the rail corridor. As the A6 passes above the River 
Irwell, there is a 13m height difference between the 
road surface and the river channel.

Other Notable Features
Peel Park is between 6 and 10 metres lower than 
the surrounding university campus providing an 
area of flood resilience adjacent the River Irwell, 
with a sloped embankment providing a rapid level 
change at the perimeter of the park. This level 
change continues along Wallness Lane towards 
Frederick Road, with the David Lewis playing fields 
lying 3-4m lower than the industrial developments 
to the west.

A footbridge crosses the River Irwell from Peel Park 
to Hydra Close with a clearance of approximately 
2-3m above the river bank.

Site Conditions
Air Quality
The area around Albion Way, Crescent/A6 and 
Adelphi Street falls with the Greater Manchester Air 
Quality Management Area (AQMA) where national 
air quality objectives for a specific pollutant (i.e. 
NO2) are likely to be exceeded.

Noise 
Surrounding the Framework area, are a number of 
existing cultural and industrial uses. Any proposals 
will need to take account of existing noise levels 
when developing proposals. 

Environmental Issues

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

73

Constraints and Opportunities

The Framework area contains a number of unique 
opportunities but also some challenges that 
need to be overcome. In order to facilitate the 
transformational change required and to harness the 
potential of the area, a holistic approach needs to be 
taken to developing proposals within the Framework 
area. This needs to be coupled with a clear vision as 
to how and when these proposals will be delivered. 

The following section provides an overview of the key issues that have been 
raised as part of the scoping consultation and identified by the Partners that must 
be carefully considered in developing proposals for the area. These issues have 
informed a series of development principles and an Illustrative Masterplan that 
will guide development within the Framework area over the next 20 years. 

P
age 73



Draft Crescent Development Framework

74

Car Dominance 
Major road routes and surface car 
parks in key gateway locations 
dominate the area. This is turn 
creates a poor pedestrian experience 
and fractured public realm. 

Surrounding land uses 
Industrial land uses adjoining the 
Framework area to the north and 
south of the Crescent beyond the 
railway line impact on the potential 
strategic regeneration options in 
these locations. 

Severance 
The site is currently severed by 
a number of infrastructure and 
amenity elements including the 
railway line, the A6 and the River 
Irwell. These provide a barrier to 
permeability and connectivity 
through the Framework area. 

Vacant Land and Buildings 
There are a number of vacant and 
poor-quality buildings in the area 
that detract from the appearance 
and perception of the area.

Energy Efficiency 
Many of the existing buildings 
within the Framework area, 
particularly the older stock across 
the University campus, have poor 
energy efficiency and will require 
significant investment if they are to 
be retrofitted. 

CONSTRAINTS
Land Ownership 
Whilst the majority of the land is 
in the ownership of the University 
of Salford and Salford City Council 
there are also a number of smaller 
private ownerships within and on the 
edge of the Framework area which 
may impact on the realisation of 
regeneration aspirations. 

Key Gateways 
There is currently no sense of arrival or 
gateway to the Framework area.

Heritage 
The Framework area is covered by 
the Crescent Conservation area and 
Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation 
Area within which there are a number 
of statutory listed and locally listed 
buildings. Furthermore, the route of 
the former Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury Canal falls within the area. 

Topography and Levels 
There is a considerable change in level 
across the Framework area particularly 
around Salford Crescent station and 
down to the River from the A6. 

Flood Risk 
The Framework area in parts is 
situated within Flood Zone 2 and 3. 

?

Transformational Change 
Potential to realise a once in a 
generation opportunity to build on 
the areas extensive existing assets 
to create a high-quality development 
that benefits all.

The University 
Build on the University’s outstanding 
reputation to facilitate the 
implementation of its ambitious 
campus improvements. 

Parks and Rivers 
Potential to enhance and better 
connect the existing parks, open 
space and river edge. Enable better 
pedestrian accessibility to the 
Meadows and around the River. 

Re-thinking Road Structures 
Potential to de-engineer the A6 Crescent 
road and assess how road traffic flows 
through the Framework area.

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 
Opportunity to de-engineer the A6 
Crescent road, enhance pedestrian/ 
cycle permeability and improve public 
transport provision. 

OPPORTUNITIES
Social Value 
Opportunity to embed social value 
in the delivery of the Framework 
vision and ensure that the needs of 
the local community are addressed. 

Activation of building 
frontages along the Crescent 
Active frontages will create interest 
and enliven this important Gateway 
to the Framework area.

New Gateways 
Potential to provide active hubs and 
gateways of distinctive character. 

Re-assess car parking 
strategy and rationalise 
surface car parking 
Opportunity to review the current 
car parking strategy in light of 
future sustainable transport 
proposals and to look to utilise 
inefficient surface car parking in 
prime areas for alternative uses. 

October 2020

75

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

P
age 74



Draft Crescent Development Framework

05.

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Development 
Framework Area

Development Principles

76 77

October 2020

P
age 75



October 2020 

79

The Crescent

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The purpose of the Development Framework is to help 
guide future development across the Crescent area over 
the next 20 years. In this context, a series of overarching 
development principles which apply to and cover the entire 
Framework area have been developed, which flow from the 
Vision and Objectives, the UN SDGs, and take cues from the 
10 characteristics of well-designed place and the associated 
Design Principles set out in the National Design Guide. 

This section focuses on the following overarching 
development principles for the Crescent as a whole. These 
principles link directly with the characteristics covered above 
and the key objectives outlined in Section 3. 

Finer grain development principles have then been 
identified for each of the six zones as set out in Section 6.

78

Draft Crescent Development Framework

PRIORITY 1

Learning and Innovation

PRIORITY 2

People, Community 
and Tackling Inequality

PRIORITY 3

Culture and Creativity

PRIORITY 4

Strong and Diverse Economy

PRIORITY 5 
Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 

PRIORITY 6 
Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure

PRIORITY 7 
Climate Change 
and Sustainability

LEARNING AND 
INNOVATION

PEOPLE, 
COMMUNITY 
AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITY

CULTURE AND 
CREATIVITY

STRONG AND 
DIVERSE 
ECONOMY

CONNECTIVITY, 
MOVEMENT AND 
SUSTAINABLE 
TRANSPORT

ENVIRONMENT 
AND BLUE-GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE

CLIMATE 
CHANGE AND 
SUSTAINABILITY

VISION

KEY OBJECTIVES

SEVEN PARTNER POLICY PRIORITIES

Development Framework Area / Development Principles

Character Areas / Development Principles

UN SDGS

10 DESIGN 
CHARACTERISTICS – 
NATIONAL DESIGN 
GUIDE

OPPORTUNITIES 
AND CONSTRAINTS

PLANNING POLICY 

REGENERATION 
CONTEXT

Figure 5.1 / Flow Diagram – Vision and Objectives

P
age 76



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Learning and 
Innovation 

PRIORITY 1

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

80 81

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 77



October 2020 

83

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The ‘Learning and Innovation’ theme encompasses 
a large part of what the Framework is looking to 
achieve; on one hand, the University of Salford is 
located at the heart of the Crescent Development 
Framework area, and transformation of this key 
asset will be fundamental to the success of the 
wider area. On the other hand, there has long 
been an aspiration to develop the University’s 
research and create a purpose-built and dedicated 
Innovation Zone to facilitate collaboration 
between the University’s research and industry 
and employers in the relevant fields.  In this 
context the ‘learning’ element and ‘innovation’ 
element go hand in hand together. 

82

This desire reflects the Crescent’s strategic location 
within Salford’s ‘Innovation Triangle’ which is an 
internationally significant clustering of innovative 
activity across a range of sectors, incorporating 
Salford Quays and MediaCityUK, the University of 
Salford and Salford Royal Hospital (as set out in 
Policy AP4 of the emerging Salford Local Plan). 

There is potential for further major intensification 
within the Triangle; the Triangle does not have 
rigid boundaries, and inevitably there will be 
nearby locations that can contribute to and benefit 
from innovation and research activities. There 
are separate policies in the emerging Local Plan 
relating to key parts of the Triangle, such as Salford 
Quays (Policy AP2), the University of Salford (Policy 
ED3), and Salford Royal Hospital (Policy HH3).  

This Development Framework provides the basis 
for the transformation of the University’s Peel Park 
and Frederick Road campuses (as set out in Section 
6 under Zone 2) alongside the development of an 
identified ‘Innovation Zone’ (as set out in Section 6 
under Zone 1) to the north and west of the campus.  
The siting of the Innovation Zone is deliberate 
and takes account of this strategic location, 
seeking to maximise the opportunity to develop 
both learning, research, innovation, industry and 
employment in parallel.  

The Crescent area will contribute significantly 
to the Innovation Triangle and through the 
Innovation Zone will encourage innovation 
and research activities and partnership and 
collaboration between research and industry.  

This Framework will facilitate this interaction and 
will provide collision space alongside exceptional 
buildings and public realm in order to ensure 
collaboration and ultimately the success of this 
Zone.  Further details and parameters for the 
Innovation Zone and Peel Park Campus Zone are 
set out in Section 6. 

The remainder of this section sets out the vision, the 
key themes, the rationale and justification for the 
future development of the Innovation Zone and the 
thinking around how this may be achieved.

Draft Crescent Development Framework

1

3

5

2

4

6

1. Peel Building - School of SSE

2. Humphrey Booth House

3. Maxwell Building & Maxwell Hall

4. Peel Park Student Accommodation

5. Fire Station Square

6. New Adelphi

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

P
age 78



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

84

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Innovation Zone Vision 
In late 2019, a vision for the development of an 
Innovation Zone, based on primary research covering 
activities at the University of Salford and Salford Royal 
NHS Foundation Trust, and on the needs of the local 
population as expressed in various City Council and 
NHS Reports. That vision was based upon research and 
analysis which sought to identify themes that:

Built upon strengths or key attributes of the local area;

Are complementary to other research activity in the 
wider Greater Manchester (GM) area;

Represent sectors with business growth potential; and

Could positively impact on the health and well-being of 
the local and wider population.

A review of ongoing research at the University 
of Salford highlighted activities in the areas 
of Robotics and Autonomous Systems, Built 
Environment, Acoustics and Health as being of 
most importance and which could form the basis of 
the future development of the Innovation Zone.  

These activities represent a dynamic mix of 
interests that together, contribute towards 
achieving an overall ‘Healthier Living’ vision 
to meet the challenges of Salford's community and 
economy.  It will also act as a draw to prospective a 
diverse range of occupiers that will support growth.  

As a result, Healthier Living has been embedded 
as the overarching theme for the development 
of the Innovation Zone for the purposes of the 
Development Framework.  

The key themes for the Innovation District that will 
support the overarching Healthier Living vision, and 
will generate a commercially active and sustainable 
community of business, work for the benefit local 
people, and which will draw upon local expertise are:

Theme 1 
Robotics & Automation, as an anchor 
capability, one which will sustain 
and encourage innovation into other 
disciplines and knowledge areas, 
particularly the second and third themes

Theme 2 
Built environment 
(including Acoustics)

Theme 3 
Healthcare 
(including Prosthetics & Orthotics)

These interlocking core themes impact across 
multiple sectors (e.g. manufacturing, transport, 
healthcare, etc.) all of which, from an innovation 
perspective, represent growth sectors, have a 
significant role to play in the GMCA Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS), and have a role in developing 
better environments (home and work) to support 
Healthier Living.

The Innovation Zone provides a unique opportunity 
to capitalise on the concept of a Living Lab; a 
location where innovation, community, research 
and business are intertwined to develop a real 
world test bed for new innovations that support the 
ambition of developing Healthier Living for all.  

85

Figure 5.2 / Innovation District themes

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

P
age 79



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

86 87

Existing Assets in Innovation Zone Development Principles
There are a number of existing assets and committed projects 
within the Innovation Zone which will be further developed and 
enhanced through the Development Framework. A number of 
these assets were included within the University’s 2020 Masterplan 
Refresh and are at the heart of the ‘learning and innovation’ 
agenda. These assets are summarised below along with a brief 
description of their interdependencies and synergies:

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The technology areas are growing and receiving 
investment, with a new build planned to create 
the North of England Robotics Innovation Centre 
for Robotics and Autonomous Systems (Theme 1), 
including space to work with SMEs.  Energy House 
2 is under construction to the west of the Zone 
to a create a state-of-the-art climate-controlled 
testing environment for the building industry 
(Theme 2). These interlocking research areas 
create an interdisciplinarity that is attractive to a 
broad range of businesses across many industrial 
sectors, from manufacturers looking to use 
automation and robotics to increase productivity 
and reduce waste, to new prosthetics device 
developers needing to work with specialists in 
those areas and in robotics, or the development of 
new materials and (automated) techniques for the 
construction industry to create healthier, cleaner 
living and working environments, either through 
new build or retrofit solutions to properties.

Energy House 2.0 will provide access to facilities for 
testing and monitoring the performance of new 
construction methods and materials. In addition, 
the University’s Institute of Acoustics and Vibration 
Research is developing plans for a new set of 
facilities that will add capability to the materials 
testing capacity to support the Built Environment 
businesses in the area.

With respect to Acoustics and Vibration research 
(Theme 2), Salford has a strong teaching and 
research offering in the context of the UK. Acoustics 
is a broad and diverse discipline that impacts 
multiple industries, products and areas of society. 
The UK Acoustics sector is estimated to employ 
16,000 people and generates £4.6bn in output 
annually with around 750 companies in the field. 
Salford’s research expertise has been established 
over 20 years with interests in the testing of 
materials for their acoustic properties, whether that 
is in modelling and testing of materials to create 
a particular sound (e.g. the sound of a car door 
closing), or materials to reduce noise and create a 
healthier environment for work, travel and living. 

The University of Salford is 1 of 60 United Kingdom 
Accreditation Service (UKAS) accredited sites for 
acoustic testing of materials in the UK, and 1 of 
only 10 organisations with accreditation to perform 
acoustic calibration services. This highlights the 
unique expertise within the University.

Centre of Excellence in Intelligence 
Automation & Robotics (EIAR)

Innovation Forum

Energy House 2

Centre of Sound and Vision

Centre for Prosthetics and Orthotics

New Health and Society + Clinic

University at it's Heart 
The Development Framework will acknowledge 
the University at the heart of the Development 
Framework and will support and enhance the 
future development of the University.

Raise the Profile of the University 
Build on the University's world-class reputation 
and raise the profile of the University regionally, 
nationally and internationally to make it an 
outstanding place to study, work, live and visit.

Transform the Campus 
Transform the University’s Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses through proposals 
for refurbishment and enhancement of existing 
assets, new buildings and an enhanced public 
realm.

Increase Accessibility through Infrastructure 
Include major infrastructure and transport 
proposals to make the University more easily 
accessible to those travelling to it from inside 
and outside the region.

Create a 'Sticky Campus' 
Support proposals which will create a vibrant 
student and staff experience through a mix of 
land uses, to encourage a 24/7 economy which 
is currently lacking.

Learning and Research Innovation and the Economy
Bridge the gap between Research and Industry 
Develop an Innovation Zone (including circa 3 
million sq ft of floorspace) which bridges the gap 
between research and industry, forging strong links 
between University teaching and research and 
industry and employers.

Foster Economic Growth 
Create conditions for significant economic growth 
in this Zone to add value to the Salford economy 
and act as a catalyst for further development and 
investment in the area.

Increase Permeability and Improve Public Realm 
Break down existing barriers in the Framework 
area and improve connectivity by creating stronger 
links between the University’s Peel Park and 
Frederick Road campuses, major transport and 
infrastructure proposals and new and existing 
green spaces through improved pedestrian and 
cycle access.

Improve Student and Staff Experience 
Improve the staff and student experience and well-
being through placemaking activities, public realm 
improvements and the built environment to ensure 
the wider Crescent area provides an attractive and 
safe long-term home-from-home base to improve 
academic performance and graduate retention 
rates within the City.

Integration with the Local Community 
Encourage links between the University and the 
local community.

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

P
age 80



Draft Crescent Development Framework

People, Community and 
Tackling Inequality

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

88 89

PRIORITY 2

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 81



October 2020 

91

Deliver initiatives with the local community 
- not for them, and ensuring they are 
meaningful and inclusive, evolving as 
community needs change, such as:

Provide and prioritise training, employment 
and business opportunities for Salford 
residents;

Raise people most in need out of poverty 
and reduce inequalities;

Contribute to protecting and enhancing the 
natural, built and historic; environments; 

Prudent use of natural resources, the 
minimisation of waste; and pollution, and 
adapting to a low carbon economy.

Engage stakeholders and communities 
at the earliest possible stage to design policies, 
programmes and services. Ensuring that any 
barriers to people participating in that process 
are removed or reduced.

Encourage proposals to embed social value 
by committing to unlock value across the 
life cycle of the development in accordance 
with the Social Value Strategy which is being 
prepared for the area.

Incorporate social value into future 
procurement processes including appointment 
of contractors, suppliers, consultants and estate 
managers. Successful companies will sign up to 
the Crescent Social Value Supply Chain Charter; 

Celebrate success of best-practice social value 
delivery by sharing learning so others can 
refine their own delivery strategies. Always look 
to improve how social value can be unlocked 
further at every stage; and

Incorporate social value into agreements with 
the businesses occupying new space. They have 
a role to play in delivering positive outcomes 
and will be expected to sign the Crescent Social 
Value Occupier Charter.

As has been set out in Section 2 of this Development 
Framework, more and more people are choosing Salford 
as a place to live, work and visit. It will be essential to 
ensure that both the existing and future community in 
and around the Crescent share in the benefits of growth 
and that the Development Framework tackles inequality 
and promotes fairness.  

The Development Framework will support development proposals which are well designed, 
functional, accessible and sustainable. The aspiration is to address issues of social deprivation 
in the area to meet the needs of existing residents and businesses whilst encouraging inward 
investment and creating a place which is both attractive to live, work, study and visit. 

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

90

Providing High Quality Homes
A range of high quality homes 
Provision of high quality homes across a 
mix of types and tenures designed to meet 
the need of a wide range of users and are 
adaptable to change, if required, over time.  

Responding to changing demographics 
Both the existing and changing demographic 
of the area will be considered in all proposals. 

Ensuring Healthy Lifestyles
Support healthy lifestyles 
Ensure healthy lifestyles and the improved 
well-being of University students and staff and 
of current and new residents and employees 
through the provision of safe and accessible green 
infrastructure, sustainable transport, enhanced 
public realm, quality new homes and a range of 
employment opportunities. 

Support proposals which promote access 
to green infrastructure and enhanced public realm.

Encourage walking and cycling  
through infrastructure and public realm 
improvements and improved connectivity.

Tackling Inequality and 
Promoting Fairness
Integrate with existing communities 
Respond to, and fully integrate with existing 
communities which surround the area.

Improve connectivity with 
adjacent communities 
Create new connections to surrounding 
communities to ensure that new buildings, 
places and infrastructure created within 
the Development Framework area benefit 
communities adjoining the area.

Improve health outcomes 
and provide health facilities 
Explore opportunities to develop and enhance 
physical health infrastructure and facilities in 
the locality to improve health outcomes.

Reduce inequalities 
Increase average levels of health and 
educational attainment and reduce disparities 
including through the Social Value Strategy.

Generating Social Value
Maximise social value and social inclusion 
Create opportunities for everyone, maximising wider 
social value and contributing to social inclusion, with 
the aim of leaving a positive legacy for communities 
within and surrounding the area.

Develop a Social Value Strategy  
This will follow a four-step process including 
assessing needs, engaging with the community, 
development of set of interventions and working 
with local partners to deliver these.  Once completed, 
management and monitoring against objectives will 
be undertaken.

Draft Crescent Development Framework

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

Development Principles

P
age 82



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

92 93

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Placemaking
Develop a successful placemaking strategy 
Develop a successful placemaking strategy for 
the Crescent to harness the culture, green spaces 
and heritage assets, and to grow and develop 
a community and destination through targeted 
activities, interventions, support and promotion.

The Right Mix of Uses 
Develop a 24/7 Economy 
Ensure that the Crescent has a successful 
and vibrant day and night time economy by 
providing a rich mix of land uses. This would 
include commercial uses such as food and drink, 
retail, restaurants, bars and cafés to create a 
24/7 economy across a range of venues. This 
would also include world-class conferencing, 
convention, leisure and hospitality offer which 
will draw audiences from across the region and 
beyond. Development will build upon the existing 
offering and introduce new elements to improve 
the offering available for people using the space 
throughout the week and weekends.

Enhancing the Character of the Area
Celebrate the Crescent’s Character 
Celebrating the Crescent area's heritage 
assets,architecture and outstanding open spaces.

New Iconic Architecture 
and High Quality Public Realm 
Development of new, iconic architecture and 
high quality public realm which will further 
establish the Crescent as a recognised destination.

Improve Arrival Experience 
Downgrading and greening of arterial  
routes such as the A6.

Temporary and Meanwhile Uses
A Meanwhile Use is used to describe a diverse 
range of pop-up cafés, shops and temporary uses 
of empty property and land.

Activate the Area 
Encourage footfall and generate interest through 
development of temporary and meanwhile uses 
in key locations to activate the area, particularly 
in early phases of development to put the 
Crescent ‘on the map’.

Temporary and Permanent Events and Activities 
Well-placed temporary interventions along 
important site connections will animate key 
routes and create dwell spaces and opportunities 
for trails and themed linking spaces.

Improved connectivity, accessibility 
and enhanced feeling of safety
Enhance physical connections 
and redesign key spaces 
Create new and enhance existing physical 
connections and redesign key spaces throughout 
the Development Framework area to ensure 
clearer paths into the Crescent District and to 
improve connectivity across the area and between 
the six key zones.

Ensure Accessibility and Improve Wayfinding 
Ensure that both new and enhanced existing 
physical connections and any signage/ wayfinding 
schemes are fully accessible to a diverse group 
of people and are designed against crime. 
This would typically include dementia friendly 
signage/ hidden disability signage and commonly 
recognised symbols.

Public, Civic and Green Space 
Greening of the urban area 
Greening of the urban area as a whole, including 
the A6 and other arterial routes. Improve 
connectivity and the relationship between 
Salford Museum & Art Gallery and Peel Park.

Develop a Programme of Activities 
Maximise the opportunity which Peel Park and 
other spaces present for a regular programme of 
activities ranging from small events through to 
large-scale initiatives. This would anchor people 
to the area and engage the community whilst 
providing income for local businesses.

Create New Public Spaces 
Create new complementary public areas, which 
have diverse communities and sustainability 
at their heart such as the development of the 
Frederick Road podium and creation of a new 
central plaza within the Innovation Zone to 
improve connectivity, provide amenity space 
and to facilitate collaboration and collision of 
ideas between employees, students and staff.

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

Riverside walk 
Opportunity to enhance 
the surface and provide 
increased number of access 
points to the waters edge

Entrance 
Opportunity to create 
improved access into the site, 
waters edge and playing 
fields

Riverside dwell/play spaces 
Opportunity for a series of 

spaces along the river edge

Key nodes 
Opportunity to create a 
series of spaces along the 
primary pedestrian spine

Site Boundary 

Key connective routes

Route animation zones

Opportunity for new connections

Large scale green space 

Major function / event space

KEY

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

Figure 5.3 / Opportunities for Placemaking activities

P
age 83



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Examples of Placemaking Activities and Meanwhile Uses

River Edge Street Games dwell

Performance/Installation Space

Route Animation

Event Space

Nature learning/play Outdoor markets Urban farming

Art installation / exhibition

Green/ Public Spaces

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

94 95

Pop-ups

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

P
age 84



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Culture and Creativity

9796

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 3

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 85



October 2020 

99

Salford Crescent has an active creative scene 
and unique cultural assets that should be 
embraced and promoted. The aspiration for the 
Framework area is to build on this potential to 
create a quality place that will transform Salford 
Crescent into a major visitor ‘destination’ within 
the City Centre. The area will be become a 
recognised destination for arts, culture and food 
and drink that rivals the offer in established 
locations in Manchester and the North West.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Draft Crescent Development Framework

98

Creation of a cultural 
and creative ‘gateway’
A new ‘gateway’ for creative and cultural uses 
will be created, building on the potential of 
existing performance venues and exhibition 
space including Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, the University’s New Adelphi and Peel 
Buildings, Hemsley House and the Working Class 
Movement Museum. In this area support will be 
given to new creative spaces including Maxwell 
Hall as well as artist-led studio space which will 
tap into Salford’s unrivalled grass-roots creative 
scene and provide a focal point locally.  

Creation of a City Centre Park
A fundamental strength of the area is its unique 
blue and green infrastructure (the River Irwell, 
Meadow and Peel Park). These assets collectively 
represent a significant recreational and leisure 
asset within the study area with potential to serve 
the wider City Centre. As development reaches out 
to envelope them, Peel Park and the Meadow will 
become THE “City Centre Park” - a focus for leisure 
activities, well-being, community gatherings and 
events for urban residents and city visitors alike.  
The way in which the parkland connects with and is 
visible from the Crescent and Adelphi areas will be 
fundamental to the re-positioning and profile of the 
parkland and to the connectivity of the entire area.

Embracing the Area’s 
History and Heritage 
Heritage is an extremely valuable and unique 
selling point across the Framework area. Cultural 
programming and events will be supported 
that seek to re-frame the areas rich heritage by 
interacting with historic buildings, monuments and 
public spaces in a modern way whilst respecting the 
need for their ongoing conservation and protection.

Events and Experiences  
The area has a small, but highly authentic 
programme of events running throughout the 
year, however given the quality of artists, creators 
and producers within this part of Salford, there 
are significant opportunities to work with existing 
event organisers to help them improve their 
current programmes – in terms of profile, scale 
and impact. Support will be provided to event 
promoters in order develop a more comprehensive 
programme of events, to help raise the profile of 
the area and attract new audiences. 

Encouraging ‘Meanwhile uses’  
A meanwhile use is used to describe a diverse 
range of pop-up cafés, shops and temporary 
uses of empty property and land. These types 
of uses represent a key opportunity to better 
utilise vacant or underused spaces and animate 
the Framework area with activity in the short-
term. They also provide an opportunity to 
raise the profile of the area through a more 
comprehensive events programme. The 
promotion of suitable meanwhile uses will be 
encouraged subject to landowner agreement. 

Arts and Cultural Offer   
The area has the potential to become “the City 
Centre’s Arts Playground”, a unique district where 
the established grass roots art ecology blends with 
incoming names and energy to take advantage of 
the myriad of flexible spaces available, producing 
world-class interventions and engagement with the 
support of the Partners.

PRIORITY 3, CULTURE AND CREATIVITY

Development Principles

P
age 86



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Strong and Diverse 
Economy

100 101

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 4

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 87



October 2020 

103

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Within the Framework area, the University is a 
major employer. There are well over 50,000 jobs 
currently located within the Salford Innovation 
Triangle area, concentrated primarily at 
MediaCityUK & the Quays, City Centre Salford, 
at the Salford Royal campus and in the various 
existing industrial employment areas in their 
vicinity. Taken together, the Framework area 
already accounts for between one third and a 
half of the local Salford economy.

102

The area contains many comparative advantages:

Strategic location
Close proximity to the GM regional centre 
and access to markets in Manchester, 
across GM and the wider north.

Strong foundations
The existing assets and opportunities 
already located in the area in the anchors 
(MediaCityUK, University and Hospital) 
and existing business base.

Talent
The availability of skills and talent on the 
doorstep in a rapidly growing residential 
area, but also with access to a wider travel 
to work area via strong transport links.

Land
Availability of underutilised land for future 
development.

Culture
Access to urban green space and waterside settings 
alongside an established and growing cultural offer.

Investor confidence
High levels of commercial investment in recent 
years and an exceptionally strong future 
development pipeline including MediaCityUK plans 
to double in size over the next decade which will 
generate 7,000 jobs as part of the overall +15,000 
jobs that can be created in the area (including the 
wider Quays area) as a whole.

Maintaining a wide range of uses  
Proposals within the Framework area will seek 
to maintain a wide a range of uses, reflecting its 
importance within the City Centre, supporting 
its roles as a business location, tourism, cultural 
and leisure destination and centre of learning 
and knowledge. The Framework will look 
to capitalise on the broader economic and 
innovation potential of the area. Promotion of 
suitable meanwhile uses will be encouraged 
subject to landowner agreement. 

Enhancing Digital Infrastructure    
The significance of digital technology goes 
beyond the specialised sector itself, and 
increasingly cuts across all sectors, and so in 
this sense is best understood as a cross-cutting 
enabling opportunity. It is also closely related 
to other developing technologies such as 
robotics where the innovation potential will 
stem from knowledge transfer between and 
across sectors, firms and workers. The continued 
enhancement of digital infrastructure (i.e. 
broadband, 5G mobile networks, the internet of 
things) to create an affordable, high speed and 
high capacity network across the Framework 
area will be supported. Furthermore, 
opportunities to design in Building Information 
Modelling (BIM) to new development to 
accommodate existing and future smart cities 
applications, including data collection and 
communications facilities, will be encouraged 
line with emerging Local Plan Policy DG1. 

Opportunities for all    
It is essential that everyone gets the opportunity 
to benefit from the areas strong and diverse 
economy. Skills training, both online and physical, 
will be incorporated into the proposals to enable 
local residents to learn new skills, especially those 
related to the growth sectors identified. 

Supporting Growth Sectors 
with Innovation Potential   
Building on the strengths of the University’s 
research capabilities, critical mass of notable 
businesses and opportunities to trial close-to-
market goods and services, the following 
growth sectors will be supported across the 
Framework area:

Digital and Creative Industries

Financial and Professional Services

Robotics and Automation 

Health and Social Care

Built Environment/ Construction 

Manufacturing and the Low Carbon Economy

Development Principles

PRIORITY 4, STRONG AND DIVERSE ECONOMY

Draft Crescent Development Framework

P
age 88



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 

104 105

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 5

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 89



October 2020 

107

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

106

Draft Crescent Development Framework

The Crescent area is a major transport gateway to the City and 
this part of Salford. The Development Framework will provide 
a genuine choice of sustainable transport options including 
improved pedestrian and cycle routes and infrastructure, bus and 
rail connectivity and in future years, Metrolink. In turn, through 
improved infrastructure, the Development Framework will 
promote activity and social interaction, contributing to health, 
well-being, accessibility and inclusion. 

The Development Framework seeks to achieve 
the right mix of sustainable travel choices for 
the area by limiting the impacts of car use 
through de-engineering the A6 and removing 
some car traffic and upgrading this route to 
include bus provision and a safeguarded corridor 
for future Metrolink provision. Salford Crescent 
Rail Station is proposed for a major upgrade 
which will improve this area significantly and 
establish a real arrival point.  By prioritising 
and encouraging walking, cycling and public 
transport, this will aid in mitigating and 
adapting to the impacts of climate change and 
identifying opportunities to improve air quality. 

The Development Framework will also 
incorporate green infrastructure and sustainable 
drainage, including street trees to soften the 
impact of hard transport infrastructure i.e. 
surface car parking, particularly around the 

Re-Thinking Road Structures 
and Car Parking and Servicing 
Despite recent traffic calming measures 
the Framework area continues to be a car 
dominated environment that doesn’t maximise 
the potential of its sustainable location within 
City Centre Salford. The following development 
principles seek to address these challenges:

Public Transport  
The Framework area is well served by public 
transport; however, more can be done to make 
the existing provision more accessible and to 
facilitate a modal shift away from private motor 
car to more sustainable modes such as walking, 
cycling and public transport.

Greater Role for Bus Services 
The de-engineering and upgrading of the A6 to 
reduce general traffic provides opportunities to 
enhance existing bus services that operate within 
the Framework area and expand the role and 
attractiveness of buses as part of the wider 
modal mix.

Provision of a new Metrolink Line 
Working closely with TfGM there is potential to 
provide a new Metrolink line connecting Salford 
Quays and Salford Crescent Station, supporting 
the enhanced connectivity between Salford 
Crescent and Salford Quays. A key aim is to provide 
additional network resilience and capacity. 

Creation of a Transport Gateway 
Working collaboratively with TfGM and Network 
Rail, the aspiration is for Salford Crescent Station 
to be transformed into a major public transport 
interchange for rail, Metrolink and bus services. The 
station will be subject to significant improvements 
to create a high-quality mixed-use gateway 
including the potential for a ‘build-over’ to create 
a new area of public realm around the rail facility 
linking into the University and Crescent areas. 

PRIORITY 5, CONNECTIVITY, MOVEMENT AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 

Development Principles

De-engineering the A6 
The aspiration is for the A6 to be de-engineered to 
reduce and eventually remove general traffic from 
this route. This will enable the A6 to be upgraded, 
creating opportunities for wide pedestrian footways 
and fully segregated cycle lanes. This will also allow 
for enhanced bus services along the A6 Crescent 
and a corridor to be safeguarded for the expansion 
of the Metrolink network to Salford Crescent. These 
elements would be separated by new planting and 
landscaping in order to establish a pleasant, safe 
and efficient route into and out of City Centre Salford.

Rationalising the Car Parking Strategy 
Existing surface car parks represent an inefficient 
use of land and do not align with the Vision and 
Objectives for area moving forward. The provision 
and operation of car parking is a key tool in 
supporting and promoting sustainable travel modes, 
therefore provision of spaces should be minimised 
where feasible operationally for the University and 
controlled via reduced maximum parking standards. 
Parking provision across the Framework area will be 
rationalised in a phased manner in order that overall 
parking levels are controlled and that their location 
is appropriate to serve key uses such as exhibition/
event space. Connections between parking and key 
sites across the areas should be legible, comfortable, 
direct and of a high quality.

Creation of new Movement Hubs 
In order to provide sufficient car parking on site for 
existing and future demand, a series of adaptable 
'movement hubs', will be created within the 
Framework area with the first to be delivered on 
Frederick Road and integrated with the proposed 
Podium. These hubs will potentially incorporate not 
only car parking spaces, but also car club provision, 
electric vehicle charging points, cycle parking/ hire 
and potentially other emerging modes of transport 
such as e-scooters. These hubs will become focal 
points for sustainable transport.

Servicing and Deliveries 
Consolidation of servicing and deliveries will be 
encouraged with access to be via key access routes 
with efficient movement through the six zones and 
minimum/ no lay-over. There is an aspiration to trial 
such arrangements and act as an exemplar site.

Crescent, to help improve air quality, reduce 
noise and contribute to biodiversity.

The following development principles seek 
to maximise the Crescent’s strategic location 
within City Centre Salford and further enhance 
its excellent connectivity to surrounding 
communities including Chapel Street, Pendleton, 
Upper and Lower Broughton, Charlestown and 
Greengate. The principles have been ordered 
around the following key aspects:

Public Transport and creation 
of a new Transport Gateway

Walking and Cycle Connectivity 

Rethinking Road Structures, 
Car Parking and Servicing

P
age 90



Draft Crescent Development Framework

108

Activate the 
area around the 
Transport Hub

Improve access 
to water & visual 
river connection

Improve cycle 
infrastructure /
connections

Improve setting 
of listed buildings

Connectivity & Legibility

De-Engineering Highways 

Watercourse Activation

Primary Gateway

Secondary Gateway

October 2020

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

109

Walking and Cycle Connectivity  
The existing pedestrian and cycle network within 
the Framework area is fragmented, severed by 
heavily trafficked major arterial routes or the 
natural barriers such as the River Irwell, which limits 
connectivity with surrounding communities and 
also internally. Furthermore, certain areas within 
the existing public realm are not well maintained, 
having poor street lighting and lack natural 
surveillance all of which can make people feel 
unsafe and thus unlikely to use regularly, especially 
in winter. The following key principles are proposed 
to address these issues and encourage increased 
walking and cycling and improve connectivity with 
surrounding communities.

Enhance the Pedestrian and Cycle Network 
Existing pedestrian and cycle infrastructure will be 
enhanced through the removal of existing barriers 
to movement; improved route continuity and 
accessibility through and within the Framework 
area; stronger key linkages to surrounding areas 
and pedestrian/ cycle network (i.e. Bee Network) 
and better legibility. The aspiration is to create 
an environment which encourages people to 
walk and cycle more regularly and that improves 
the permeability of the area. Delivery will be 
accelerated where feasible and in the interests of 
the development.

Movement and Legibility
Existing pedestrian and cycle infrastructure will be 
enhanced through the removal of existing barriers 
to movement; improved route continuity and 
accessibility through and within the Framework 
area; stronger key linkages to surrounding areas 
and pedestrian/ cycle network (i.e. Bee Network) 
and better legibility. The aspiration is to create 
an environment which encourages people to 
walk and cycle more regularly and that improves 
the permeability of the area. Delivery will be 
accelerated where feasible and in the interests of 
the development.

Make Best Use of Natural Assets 
The Framework will make best use of the area’s 
natural assets, including opening up the River Irwell 
frontage along the A6, enhancing access to the 
Parks and green spaces and referencing the disused 
Manchester, Bolton and Bury canal alignment. 

Creation of a Podium across Frederick Road 
Currently Frederick Road creates a significant barrier 
to movement from the surrounding residential 
communities, particularly Lower Broughton and 
Charlestown, through to the University Campus, 
the Parks and the Crescent. It also divides the 
Innovation Zone creating an island site around 
Winders Way. To remove this barrier, and enhance 
this important north-south link, a new iconic 
pedestrian/ cycle ‘podium’, or land bridge is 
proposed that will connect the areas and act as 
a catalyst for the Innovation Zone. The podium 
will incorporate high quality public realm that will 
extend towards the University Campus and Peel 
Park, providing safe and inclusive access for all.

Enhancing Access to the Meadows  
Existing east-west connectivity between the 
Adelphi Village/ the Crescent and the Meadows is 
poor due to severance created by the River Irwell 
which limits the accessibility of this important green 
space to many people both within the Framework 
area and surrounding communities, particularly 
Chapel Street to the east and Pendleton to the 
west. In order to address this, new bridge links 
across the River are proposed that will enable 
pedestrians and cyclists to access and enjoy the 
Meadows more easily.

Cycle Parking and Facilities 
Enhancement and new provision of appropriate 
cycle facilities within the Framework area will 
be supported. These should be adaptable and 
embrace emerging technologies relating to digital 
infrastructure, user information systems and 
emerging sustainable modes such as e-scooters.

PRIORITY 5, CONNECTIVITY, MOVEMENT AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 

Figure 5.4 / Connectivity, 
Movement and Sustainable 
Transport Plan

KEY

P
age 91



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Environment and 
Blue-Green Infrastructure 

110 111

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 6

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 92



October 2020 

112 113

Heritage

Flood Risk and Drainage

Residential AmenityBiodiversity

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

In order to realise the ambitions for the Framework area, 
consideration should be given to positively responding 
to the existing context and improving the built and 
natural environment wherever possible. The following key 
development principles should be read in conjunction with 
Salford's planning policies set out within the adopted UDP 
and emerging Publication Local Plan.

Protecting and Conserving Heritage Assets 
Within the Framework area, designated heritage 
assets (such as scheduled monuments, listed 
buildings, registered parks and gardens and 
Conservation Areas) and non-designated assets 
(such as locally listed buildings) will be conserved 
and their enhancement encouraged ensuring that 
they continue to make a positive contribution to 
the character and identity of the Crescent area.  
Proposals for works that affect heritage assets will 
be assessed in line with the provisions of relevant 
legislation and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Managing Change in Historic Locations 
New development proposals in historic locations 
within in the Framework area, such as the Crescent, 
will be required to protect, conserve and enhance 
the historic character of places and positively 
respond to the history of the area, enabling people 
to understand how places have changed over 
time. New development will need to be carefully 
designed to ensure it does not detract from the 
large number of heritage assets, and where 
appropriate, opportunities to secure enhancements 
of existing assets will be sought.

Flood Risk and Drainage 
Given that areas towards the north of the 
Framework boundary and around the River 
Irwell are designated as being within Flood 
Zones 2 and 3, careful consideration will need 
to be given to addressing any potential flood 
risk issues and developing an appropriate 
drainage strategy, potentially including 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs). A site-
specific flood risk assessment would need to 
be submitted with any planning application 
for new development within Flood Zones 2 or 3 
or an area at risk from other forms of flooding 
(such as surface water, sewer or groundwater 
flooding). New development should seek to 
reduce flood risk wherever practicable.

‘Agent of Change’ Principle 
Within and surrounding the Framework area 
there are diverse range of land uses including 
residential, cultural, educational and industrial, in 
close proximity. There are a number of established 
industrial operations (for example, CEMEX located 
to the south of the Crescent) and cultural assets 
which represent noisier activities that could 
potentially impact on more sensitive uses such 
as residential. In the interest of ensuring that the 
area remains vibrant and business can continue to 
operate effectively whilst protecting the amenity 
of residents, the ‘agent of change’ principle will 
be adopted in assessing new developments. This 
means that where existing business or community 
facilities could have a significant adverse effect 
on new development (for example noise) in its 
vicinity, those proposing it (or ‘agent of change’) 
will be required to provide suitable mitigation 
before the development has been completed.

Tall Buildings 
Any future proposals for taller buildings within 
the Framework area will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within 
‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’ and draft 
Local Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’.

Protecting and Enhancing Biodiversity Assets
Existing biodiversity assets within the Framework 
area, including the River Irwell Site of Biological 
Importance (SBI), the Meadows and Peel 
Park, will be protected and where practicable 
enhanced. The following proposals to further 
improve local biodiversity will be supported:

Re-greening the streets, encouraging greater 
biodiversity and improving connectivity 
between habitats;

New planting of native tree and flower 
species along the bankside of the river and 
pedestrian/ cycle paths;

Management of invasive species; and

Incorporating Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) as part of future drainage strategies.

Re-use of Vacant and Underutilised 
Historic Buildings 
The positive re-use of vacant or underutilised 
heritage assets will be supported and encouraged 
where it helps to ensure that building are 
appropriately maintained. Proposed uses should be 
consistent with the protection and enhancement of 
the asset’s heritage significance and its sustainable 
long-term use.

Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal 
The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal will be protected as an important heritage 
asset. In order that people can appreciate the 
history of the canal, reference will be made to its 
former line by way of a new pedestrian/ cycle route 
that signposts the route and provides heritage 
interpretation along the way. Where historic 
areas of the canal can potentially be incorporated 
into the landscaping proposals then further 
investigation will be undertaken as to the feasibility 
of doing so. In places, the original line of the canal 
has been severed by significant infrastructure 
(including the A6 and railway lines) and therefore 
at these pinch points there may need to be some 
deviation from it in order to deliver a route that 
could potentially be fully navigable in the future.

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Development Principles

P
age 93



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

114 115

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The Framework area is serviced by a strong 
hierarchy of streets and spaces. It builds on the 
existing road network and paths, as well as 
envisioning new roads and linkages to improve 
the permeability of the whole of the Crescent area. 
These include:

A New Linear Park
Key sequential north-south and east-west 
pedestrian streets connecting  the neighbourhoods, 
and key destinations while linking to the wider 
network of routes, each having a distinctive 
character and function.

Enhanced River Corridor
Focused around the River Irwell. Enhancement 
and extension of the existing route with improved 
access for cyclists and pedestrians. Strengthening of 
the wildlife corridor and river edge habitats.

Pedestrian-focused Streets
Pedestrian streets with minimal vehicular access 
which allow safe movement will be promoted. 
Their design will seek to creating a comfortable 
environment of human scale for all users moving 
through the spaces in different ways, and a sense of 
place and orientation.

Green Transport Corridors
Key primary vehicular routes used for Metrolink, 
train, bus and private cars. These will be enhanced 
with new tree planting, and where possible, rain 
gardens to improve environmental performance.

Enhanced Green Spaces
The site contains a large area of green space. 
Enhancement of these existing green spaces will 
be vital to create a mix of recreational, social and 
commercial spaces and pocket parks that reference 
the history of the site, particularly Peel Park. 

Squares and Public Open Spaces
Mainly hard spaces, though in appropriate 
locations this will be balanced with tree planting 
and soft landscape areas.

Hierarchy of Streets Spaces

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

The MeadowsThe Meadows

Peel ParkPeel Park

Green Transport Corridors

Linear Park

Greenways

Key Streets

River Corridor

Green Spaces

Squares

KEY

Development Principles for each 
of these elements are provided 
on the following pages.

Public Realm
Create a High Quality Public Realm
A high-quality public realm will create a more 
coherent sense of place with a diverse range of 
street typologies and character of spaces. This 
will be achieved through the provision of high 
quality routes, civic spaces and green spaces. 
Other measures will include the improved 
permeability for pedestrians and cyclists, 
ensuring that all new and upgraded parts of the 
public realm achieve the highest quality design.  

Sustainable Landscape Strategy
Development of an overarching sustainable 
landscape strategy will also be incorporated 
which will include sustainable stormwater 
management as an essential element.

A Network of Public Spaces
The public realm will be designed to be 
attractive, diverse and create a network of public 
spaces that relate to the wider urban context and 
are driven by public life and people first design.

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.5 / Hierarchy of Street and Spaces

P
age 94



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

New tree planting along The Crescent 
and Frederick Road to create a softer 
environment, whilst also improving 
air quality.

Introduce sustainable drainage systems 
(SuDs) and planting where possible.

Create vegetated surface on 
Metrolink routes.

Improved pedestrian permeability 
by upgrading existing crossings and 
adding new crossings.

Improved environment for walking and 
cycling to encourage these sustainable 
and active modes of transport.

Create an active movement corridor 
that is  car-free and which connects 
a number of zones within the 
Framework area and links to the 
wider area.

Promote generous planting to create 
a verdant character - there is an 
opportunity for the whole stretch to 
incorporate a sustainable drainage 
system (SuDS)

Provide opportunities for seating and 
increasing dwell time.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

117116

Green Transport Corridors Linear Parks

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.6 / Green Transport Corridors Figure 5.7 / Linear Parks

P
age 95



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Promote activation of the watercourse.

Improve visual connection with 
the water.

Enhance access and new connections 
to the existing path adjacent to the 
River Irwell.

Create small spaces for dwell or 
opportunity for temporary/ pop-up 
food and beverage vans/stalls.

Improve connectivity to the river, with 
a new path at lower levels adjacent to 
the Crescent.

Enhance biodiversity and wildlife with 
new tree planting and habitat creation. 
Selective removal of invasive species.

Create arrival spaces and signage to 
improve access and navigation.

Deliver a network of high-quality 
pedestrian streets that have a 
comfortable human scale.

Ensure that spaces for spill out 
activities are provided.

Deliver street trees and planting 
wherever possible.

Ensure vehicular traffic is incorporated 
within a balanced street environment 
where required for access.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

119118

River Corridor Pedestrian Streets

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.8 / River Corridor Figure 5.9 / Pedestrian Streets

P
age 96



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Enhance the aesthetic, 
biodiversity and recreational 
value of the existing parks.

Encourage the use of the parks by 
the public through development 
of a strong events programme.

Create a central linear park that 
integrates the University campus 
with each of the surrounding 
character areas.

Create a large area of green 
space around the transport 
hub that will provide a tranquil 
retreat for dwell and recreational 
uses while creating a  transitional 
movement space to service the 
Transport Hub.

Ensure that newly created squares 
and spaces are of a high quality and 
robust design in order to become 
destinations for students, residents, 
workers and visitors.

Create gateway spaces that 
announce the Crescent  with a 
selected choice of street furniture 
and surfacing, trees and gateway 
features.

Accommodate spill-out activities from 
active ground floors on the edges of 
squares and streets.

Design squares to be flexible, 
allowing for a range of events and 
activities.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

121120

Green Spaces Squares and Public Open Spaces

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.10 / Green Spaces Figure 5.11 / Squares and Public 
Open Spaces

P
age 97



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Ecology and Planting  

Existing trees should be retained wherever 
possible and new planting established 
to enhance the ‘green’ character of the 
Framework area.

The layout and specification of trees should 
reflect the character and scale of the 
adjacent development and should include 
both native and non-native species.

Take advantage of habitat creation within 
the development, as well as its role within 
the whole.

Roads should where possible be tree lined 
and/or with rain gardens.

Planting should be allowed for in the 
semi-private spaces and used as elements 
distinguishing the public and private sphere.

Within open spaces and streets ease of 
maintenance should be a key consideration 
in selecting species; more flexibility can be 
allowed within semi-private and private 
spaces.

Green façades will be encouraged.

A clear maintenance strategy will be 
developed to ensure the legacy of the site 
and maximise the opportunity for improved 
ecology and habitats.

Street Furniture, Signage and Materiality

An integrated approach to street furniture 
will be taken to minimise clutter and facilitate 
easy pedestrian and cycle movement.

Street furniture should be of flexible design 
and inviting for everyday uses and add to the 
sense of place; consideration should also be 
given to any maintenance required. 

High-quality play equipment of modern 
design should be provided.

Secure high-quality cycle storage should be 
accommodated at key gateway spaces and 
centrally within each neighbourhood; each 
new development should secure quality 
cycle parking.

Lighting design should be integral and 
appropriate to create a safe environment 
throughout; this includes buildings, gateways, 
open spaces and landscape features.

The signage and wayfinding strategy should 
acknowledge all user groups and be accessible 
to all.  It should expand that already in place 
around the University Campus and be designed 
around the following principles:

• Consider spatial layout, materiality, clear 
routes and sensory clues to assist all people 
to move through spaces intuitively.

• Ensure clear signage throughout the site 
utilising appropriate fonts, colour contrasts 
and universally recognised symbols. 

• Information on signage to be provided at 
varying heights from the ground

• Signage will be well lit

• A range of signage from larger totems 
down to directional signage to provide 
clear direction.

Choice of materials should be carefully 
considered and where possible recycled, reused 
and sustainably sourced materials should be 
used.

To support the sustainable drainage strategy, 
permeable and flexibly laid paving should be 
used wherever possible.

The materials will take inspiration from the 
existing palette of materials and colours set 
as part of the University campus.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

123122

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

P
age 98



Draft Crescent Development Framework

124

Green Infrastructure
'Green infrastructure' refers to the network of multi-functional 
green  spaces and other green features, including parks, trees and 
planting, playing fields and other green spaces which are present 
throughout the Framework area.

The Framework seeks to bring green infrastructure and water 
management together using adaptive and resilient measures 
within the landscape that will provide environmental, ecological, 
social, cultural and economic benefits.

The benefits of green space on health and well-being have been 
widely documented and there is a substantial evidence base linking 
improved physical and mental health with access to green spaces. 

Trees, Planting & Green Connections
The site will use trees and planting in an intelligent 
way, both for the area’s beautification, as well as in 
the form of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs) and 
other storm-water mitigation measures. Trees as a key 
element of design will line main streets to form urban 
boulevards and announce destinations, with anchor 
trees accentuating corners.

The extent of the proposed green infrastructure 
throughout the site is considerable and ties in 
well with the existing green assets of the locality.  
Enhancing the existing green areas and linking new 
proposals to them will have a huge benefit to all site 
users and local wildlife.

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

October 2020

Parks and playing fields

Urban Green

River Corridor

Primary Green Corridors

Green Streets links

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

125

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.12 / Green Infrastructure

KEY

P
age 99



Draft Crescent Development Framework

126

Blue Infrastructure
'Blue Infrastructure' refers to water elements such as rivers, 
canals, ponds and Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs) which 
can be used to manage flood risk across the Framework area. 

Blue infrastructure will be integrated into the landscape to create 
a network that manages water and works with nature.

An overarching sustainable storm-water management strategy 
will be developed for the Framework area which each character 
area can contribute to.

Rain gardens should be used on main corridors 
where possible;  along residential streets they 
are encouraged in order to maximise the 
neighbourhood’s ‘sustainability’ contribution and 
positively contribute to its character. 

In line with national guidance, storm-water 
should be sustainably dealt with within each 
development; developments should demonstrate 
how they contribute to discharging storm-water by 
sustainable means.

Amongst management of run off and river flooding 
blue infrastructure also has several human health 
benefits and ecological benefits (if managed well).

The River Irwell is a key blue asset for the area, and 
there are real opportunities to improve connectivity 
to the river with new pedestrian routes.  

October 2020

Retention ponds

Infiltration park

Street swales and infiltration

Roadside swales

Water Movement

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

127

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

Figure 5.13 / Blue Infrastructure

KEY

P
age 100



Draft Crescent Development Framework

Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

128 129

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 7

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 101



October 2020 

131

In July 2019, Salford City Council declared a climate 
emergency. This included setting a date of 2038 for 
carbon neutrality in Salford, which matches the target 
for the whole of the sub-region established in the 
5-Year Environment Plan for Greater Manchester. 
To help achieve carbon neutrality by 2038, a target 
has been set in the emerging Local Plan that all new 
development should be zero carbon from 2028.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

130

Net Zero Carbon; To be net zero carbon on construction and in operation

Sustainable Transport; To transition to active and sustainable transport 
with greater local and regional connections

Climate Resilience; To be is resilient against the impacts of climate 
change, adapting to our changing world

Sustainable Water Management; To conserve and reuse water on-site 
and strive towards water positive 

Zero Waste/ Circular Economy; Eliminating waste and improving 
resource efficiency through  circularity

Biodiversity Net Gain; Delivering a net gain in biodiversity, whilst 
providing high quality green spaces

Quality Places; Creating communities that have a strong sense of place 
and identity, maximise shared value, and that delight

Health and Well-being;  Enhancing health and well-being through 
sustainable placemaking

Social Value; To have a positive impact on the local community and 
significantly increase social value

Promoting Safe and Attractive 
Opportunities for Active Travel   
In order to encourage more people to chose to 
walk and cycle when making local journeys, 
pedestrian connectivity will be enhanced 
throughout the Framework area together with 
improvements to the public realm. Special 
attention will be paid to ensuring that routes 
are safe and secure through the incorporation of 
additional lighting and better legibility.

Reducing reliance on 
private motor vehicles   
A key aspiration is to reduce reliance on private motor 
vehicles and to encourage a model shift toward 
active travel (walking and cycling) or sustainable 
modes of transport including bus, metrolink and 
train. As detailed in the Connectivity, Movement and 
Sustainable Transport section measures including the 
downgrading of the A6, rationalisation of car parking 
and creation of a new transport gateway will be 
pursued to secure a lower carbon future in the area. 

Minimising the Need to Travel   
In order to minimise the need to the travel and 
maximise the ability to make trips by sustainable 
modes of transport, higher density development 
will be directed to the most accessible and 
sustainable locations within the Framework area, 
subject to other policy considerations.

Maximising the use of 
renewable technologies    
Building on the University’s reputation for 
innovation in the built environment, the use of 
renewable zero carbon technologies, such solar PV 
and heat pumps will be embraced. Developments 
should look to incorporate appropriate zero/low 
carbon measures to offset energy requirements. 

Flexibility as Standard     
Efforts should be made to future proof new 
buildings through design, ensuring that spaces 
are flexible and adaptable. 

Energy Efficient, Low 
Carbon Design of New Buildings    
Developers will be encouraged to ensure that 
new buildings are designed to incorporate a 
high-performance envelope to minimise heat 
loss / gain, maximise the use of natural and 
use low energy lighting systems, and use low 
temperature heating and cooling systems 
based on heat pumps where practicable.

In order to contribute to achieving this aim within the Framework 
area, the following sustainability objectives have been identified:

Development Principles

PRIORITY 7, CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

Draft Crescent Development Framework

P
age 102



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

132 133

Energy Management      
Innovative solutions to energy management 
that utilises new and emerging technologies will 
be supported. These may include opportunities 
for peer-to-peer energy generation and storage 
underpinned by emerging blockchain and novel 
energy storage technologies. 

Electric Vehicle Charging Points      
Opportunities to enhance the electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure in suitable locations 
throughout the Framework area will be 
supported, having regard to existing provision 
in the local area.

Refurbishment and Re-use 
of Existing Buildings    
Proposals to refurbish or re-use existing buildings 
will be encouraged to reduce energy consumption 
including through improving the building fabric, 
lighting and heating and ventilation systems and 
to ensure that technology is used effectively to 
analyse and manage the operational performance 
of the buildings, subject to other policy 
considerations including heritage interests.

Energy Networks   
Energy networks will have an important role to 
play in enhancing energy efficiency, particularly 
around the University campus or denser 
residential communities. They are especially 
effective at providing heat for developments 
with high demand (e.g. leisure facilities, student 
accommodation and high density residential) 
together with existing buildings that may 
not be suitable for retrofit with heat pump 
systems. Opportunities to deploy phased energy 
networks in clusters to address specific needs 
should be fully investigated and implemented 
subject to further feasibility and viability. 

Whole Life Carbon Assessments  
In developing new buildings and infrastructure 
elements the commissioning whole life carbon 
assessments will be encouraged 

Climate Change Risk and 
Adaptation Appraisal
In bringing forward development across the 
Framework area, developers will be encouraged 
to provide Climate Change Risk and Adaptation 
Appraisals to support proposals

Nature-Based Solutions
Nature-based solutions should be prioritised 
as a means of reducing flood risk and reducing 
urban heat island within the Framework area.

Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDs)
An overarching SuDS Masterplan will be 
developed for the Framework area in order to 
better utilise rain gardens and swells to maximise 
retention of water on-site for re-use and to avoid 
flooding downstream.

Delivering Net Gain
New development within the Framework area 
should deliver net gains in natural capital, 
biodiversity and social return on investment.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles
PRIORITY 7, CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

P
age 103



Draft Crescent Development Framework Draft Development Framework 

134

06.

135134

Character Areas
Development Principles

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 104



06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Development Principles presented 
in Section 5 provide the overarching 
framework for future development 
within the area informed by the vision, 
objectives and design principles. 

Section 6 establishes specific 
Development Principles for each of the 
six ‘zones’ or ‘character areas’ which 
define the Development Framework.  
These Development Principles are finer 
grain and provide additional detail.

A series of options were developed for each 
zone in order to define how development could 
potentially come forward in the future. These 
options were tested by the technical team with 
a ‘preferred option’ for each area identified. 
Appendix C provides a review of the strategic 
options identified. 

The preferred options have formed the basis for 
the development of the Illustrative Masterplan 
which accompanies this Draft Development 
Framework and is set out in the following sub-
sections.

Any future planning applications within each of 
the character areas will need to be supported by 
robust technical assessments as required by the 
Council. Key planning considerations may include, 
but are not limited to, heritage, highways, flood 
risk, townscape, ecology, sustainability, sunlight and 
daylight, and design. 

The proposed development principles and strategic 
options have been informed by high-level technical 
assessments, the professional expertise of the 
partners and project team and through local 
knowledge. However, these draft development 
principles are only proposals at this stage and 
are not fixed. In this context, the Partners would 
welcome the view of local communities and key 
stakeholders in this regard.

ZONE 1
INNOVATION ZONE

ZONE 4
TRANSPORT HUB

ZONE 2
PARKS & RIVER ZONE 5

ADELPHI VILLAGE

ZONE 3
PEEL PARK CAMPUS

ZONE 6
THE CRESCENT 

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

137136

Figure 6.1 / Character Areas

P
age 105



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

139

ZONE 1

Innovation 
Zone

The Framework area sits in a 
strategic location within Salford’s 
‘Innovation Triangle’ which 
comprises an internationally 
significant clustering of innovative 
activity across a range of sectors, 
incorporating Salford Quays and 
MediaCityUK, the University of 
Salford and Salford Royal Hospital 
(see Policy AP4 of the emerging 
Salford Local Plan).  

Section 5 of this Framework provides the context for the development 
of the Innovation Zone under the ‘Learning and Innovation’ 
theme. This set out the overarching vision and key themes for the 
development of this Zone within the context of the wider Innovation 
Triangle across Salford. A ‘Healthier Living’ mission was identified for 
the Innovation Zone which encompasses the themes of Robotics & 
Autonomous Systems, Built Environment, Acoustics and Health.

The Development Principles set out within this section provide 
guidance for the future development across the Innovation Zone in 
order to ensure a successful and unified zone where a distinct identity 
can be developed, and which facilitates both research and industry 
to co-locate, and provides dedicated space for collaboration and 
partnerships to be developed. 

INNOVATION 
ZONE

138

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Figure 6.2 / Innovation Zone Boundary

P
age 106



Draft Crescent Development Framework

140

Key Components
The following committed projects/existing 
assets will be retained and embraced:

Centre for Prosthetics and Orthotics

North of England Robotics Innovation Centre

Centre of Sound & Vision

Innovation Forum

Energy House 2 

New Health and Society + Clinic

IZ multi-storey car park 

Mary Seacole building to remain

ZONE 1, INNOVATION

In addition, the Zone will include the 
following new components:

A new 40,000+ sq ft Innovation Centre 

Incubator Space

Post-Incubator Space (grow-on)

Catapult/Catalyst Centres

Faculty Space

Commercial Space for inward investment (spin-in)

Residential/ Commercial concept buildings 
(showcase)

Residential including live/ work 

Amenity space/ public realm within 
the Active Heart

Frederick Road Podium 

Movement Hub

141

October 2020

INNOVATION 
CENTRE

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

PROSTHETICS

PEEL PARK CAMPUS
Arrival: Transport Hub

TRANSPORT 
HUB

INNOVATION ZONE 
WEST

Arrival: Transport Hub

ROBOTICS

ACOUSTICS

FREDERICK ROAD CORRIDOR

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Innovation Centre will act as the catalyst for curating 
collision between the people that work and live here. It will be 
where people from different university faculties and industry 
meet and interact. It will be a destination and anchor for the 
Zone. Extending to approximately 40,000+ sq ft, it will include 
a mix of uses including office, wet/ dry lab space, workshops 
and amenity space such as cafés and breakout space to 
facilitate collaboration.  Incubation space will also provide 
opportunities for University students starting out. 

It is centrally located on the linear park which is the main spine 
route that connects this Zone into the wider area and the 
primary transport infrastructure hubs. The building, or series of 
buildings, will be transparent and outward looking with active 
ground floor uses to draw people in, which would seamlessly 
extend out and interact with the surrounding streets, routes, 
spaces and buildings to define the heart of the place.

Innovation Centre 
The Anchor for the 
Innovation Zone

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

INNOVATION ZONE 
NORTH

Innovation Centre 
Precedent Images

Further detail on some of the key components is set out on the following pages.

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

Figure 6.3 / Innovation Centre

P
age 107



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Frederick Road Podium 
The Connector
Currently the Innovation Zone is divided in two 
sections by Frederick Road which forms a barrier 
running in an east-to–west direction.  Therefore, 
a key objective for the development of this Zone 
is to remove this barrier through development 
of a major piece of infrastructure which will be, 
in essence, a podium over Frederick Road. A 
conceptual vision for the podium is provided below.

A number of options were considered for the 
creation of a central area, which acts as the active 
heart of the Innovation Zone adjacent to the 
Innovation Centre, maximising the opportunity 
presented by the linear spine which is the primary 
route through the Framework area. This space 
will be at the confluence of several pedestrian 
desire lines and will have blue/green infrastructure 
running through it, being accessed from both 
the Frederick Road corridor to the north and the 
Transport Hub to the south. This will provide a 
further space for industry and the University to 
come together and feed off one another.

Central Public Realm
The Active Heart of the Zone

There has long been an aspiration to include 
a car park within Innovation Zone North; the 
Development Framework proposes the creation 
of a ‘Movement Hub’ which will be not just a car 
park but a multi-modal sustainable transport 
hub. This is the arrival point into the Innovation 
Zone. The key design principles for this option are: 

A multi-model hub and not just a car park 

Located on the primary spine route through 
the Framework area  with easy access to 
Frederick Road 

Movement Hub
The Arrival Point

ZONE 1, INNOVATION

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Movement Hub may include:

• Car and motorbike parking 
including electric charging

• Cycle hub with secure bike parking, bike hire 
scheme, changing facilities, lockers, drying 
facilities, e-bike charging and repairs 

• Gym and wellness facility Café, 
amenity to anchor use

143142

Figure 6.4 / Frederick Road Podium - Visual

P
age 108



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

144 145

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
Removal of east-west barrier (Frederick Road) 
The new Podium over Frederick Road will allow 
greater movement in a north to south direction, 
opening up and connecting the northern part of 
the Innovation Zone with development to the 
south of Frederick Road and significantly improving 
pedestrian and cycle connectivity. This enhanced 
connectivity will not only benefit the Framework 
area but also surrounding communities such as 
Lower Broughton, Charlestown and Pendleton.

Improved Pedestrian and Cycle Connectivity 
The proposed Podium will link the northern part of 
the Innovation Zone (and the existing communities 
beyond) to development south of Frederick Road. 
This will be further enhanced through a revised 
urban grain in this Zone with all routes leading to/ 
from the Transport Hub, providing improved access 
not just into the Innovation Zone, but also to the 
University campus, the Parks and beyond.  This will 
benefit users and residents of this Zone and the 
wider communities.

Creation of a Safe Pedestrian Zone 
The Podium will create a safe and accessible zone 
for pedestrians and cyclists using a shared space 
surface over the road connecting into city-wide 
cycling and walking infrastructure. 

Existing Traffic Flows Not Significantly Impacted 
Frederick Road will continue to operate as existing 
without traffic flows being significantly impacted.

Movement Hub 
Creation of a multi-modal sustainable transport 
hub at the arrival point into the Zone.  This will 
provide parking for cars, bike and other modes 
such as e-scooters as well a range of other facilities 
which will benefit anyone travelling to the Crescent 
or the surrounding area.

Greenspaces 
and Public Realm
Arranged around high-quality Public Realm 
The design of the public realm and the positioning 
of the buildings within this Zone has been 
purposely designed in such a way to encourage 
collaboration in research and development and 
acts as a magnet to draw people in and deliver 
this key objective as well as providing a pleasant 
environment in which to work and study. 

Frederick Road Podium 
The Podium will create a new boulevard in the 
sky with views, seating areas and new planting – 
this will be a key piece of raised landscape which 
crosses the road using extensive planting to  blur 
the lines between built and natural environments. 

A New Public Space 
The Podium will attract visitors in its own right as 
a key piece of infrastructure and public realm. This 
will provide a significant community resource which 
will not only provide enhanced connectivity but 
will also contribute to improved health and well-
being for existing and future residents within the 
Framework area and for surrounding communities.

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species 
will be encouraged alongside the riverbank and 
pedestrian/ cycle path to encourage greater 
biodiversity and improve connectivity between 
habitats.  

Greening the urban environment  
There is an overarching aspiration to ‘green’ the 
Crescent area. This will be achieved through the 
incorporation of new street planting and dwell 
spaces, sustainable drainage systems (SuDs), 
informal nature planting, tree lined boulevards and 
green infrastructure including on the new Podium.  

Land Uses

Anchor research and industry projects 
A number of individual projects have been 
identified within the industrial/research/testing 
sphere as set out below: 

• North of England Robotics Innovation Centre 
The catalyst project which will form the 
landmark building within the Innovation 
Zone. Predominately a research facility, the 
new building will house robotics, health, 
manufacturing and automotive laboratories 
as well as industry space. This new facility will 
allow researchers to experiment, test and pilot 
innovative ideas using digital innovation. 

• A New Centre for Sound and Vision 
Creation of a new centre for Sound and 
Vision to house specialist University facilities 
currently housed within the Newton Building.

• Centre of Orthotics and Prosthetics 
To house the relocated facilities from the 
former Brian Blatchford building.

• Energy House 2.0 
A state-of-the-art climate-controlled testing 
environment for the building industry. 
Currently under construction.

• Health and Clinic building 
An on-site clinic offering a key service to 
students and local people.

Catapult Centre for research 
and specialist activities 
Locations for research and specialist 
activities such as testing of prototypes.

The Innovation Centre
The Innovation Centre will extend to 40,000+ sq ft 
and will include a mix of uses, including office, wet 
and dry lab space, workshop space and amenity 
space such as cafés and break out space to facilitate 
collaboration. Incubation space will also provide 
opportunities for university students starting out. 

Live and Innovate 
Ground floor active uses and amenity, innovation 
on lower levels above and then residential on top. 
Vibrant truly mixed use buildings to maximise 
activity. These would be located at either end of the 
land bridge/podium anchoring activity to Winders 
Way and also the heart of the Innovation Zone.

Student Accommodation 
Given the Innovation Zone's location immediately 
adjacent to the University, a further phase of 
student accommodation will be provided in this 
zone comprising high quality purpose-built units for 
existing and future students.

Future Residential Development 
A small area of new residential development is also 
proposed adjacent to the David Lewis Playing Fields. 
A broad range of house types, sizes and tenures 
will be provided in order to create a vibrant new 
community that meets the needs of a large cross-
section of society. This would be located to the east 
of the Innovation Zone making use of the views 
adjacent to the sports ground and to the River.

The Innovation Zone will incorporate a number of land uses to create a vibrant and 
diverse place. This will include a mix of land use typologies including incubator space, 
office floorspace, residential, educational and industrial. 

ZONE 1, INNOVATION

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

P
age 109



Draft Crescent Development Framework

146

Development Principles 

Scale, Massing and Density
Opportunities for Iconic Design  
The Innovation Zone represents a significant 
opportunity to incorporate iconic and innovative 
design, displaying some of the innovation thinking 
in building and modern systems of construction, 
reflecting the ongoing research and development 
which is taking place in this Zone. The proposed 
Frederick Road Podium and Innovation Centre 
have potential to be iconic projects within this 
Zone.

Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, opportunities 
for high density development of scale exist across 
the Innovation Zone. The scale will vary across the 
Zone to add character and identity to the buildings 
and the spaces and places between them.

Townscape 
Any future proposals for taller buildings in the 
Crescent area will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within ‘saved’ 
UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’ and draft Local Plan 
Policy D5 ‘Amenity’. 

Signature Arrival Point/ Destination  
The Podium will be an iconic structure of scale 
which will put the Innovation Zone ‘on the map’.

Design Quality 
Innovation Identity 
The Innovation Zone is separate to the University 
campus (although well-connected) therefore, there 
is an opportunity to create a specific 'innovation 
identity' which does not have to have a campus 
education look and feel, but a more industry-focused 
approach in its design. The Innovation Zone will 
be a place that interacts with its surroundings, is 
integrative, and encourages people from different 
communities to interact. 

High-quality Public Realm 
Public realm in this Zone should be of the highest 
quality and encourage people studying, living and 
working in the area to dwell in the central plaza 
adjacent to the Innovation Centre to encourage 
collaboration. 

Future-proofed Design
Buildings will be designed to be resilient to climate 
change and with future adaptability/flexibility. The 
Net Zero Carbon aspiration will affect the form of 
buildings to maximize passive design measures 
reducing operational energy, and also light weight 
construction methodology to reduce embodied 
carbon.  Buildings will be fundamentally designed 
with flexible use/ adaptability considered so that they 
are able to adapt to suit over time as needs change.  

Amenity 
New proposals should respect the amenity of existing 
uses and seek to undertake necessary assessments 
as part of any future planning application including, 
but not limited to, privacy/overlooking, sunlight/
daylight and wind microclimate. 

Orientation 
The orientation of future residential developments 
should have consideration to the green assets 
located to the east.

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

147

ZONE 1, INNOVATION

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Figure 6.5 / Innovation Zone, 
Illustrative Masterplan

Innovation 

Live and Innovate

Retail

Car Park

P
age 110



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

148 149

ZONE 2

Parks 
and River 

The Development Framework contains 
a large area of green space focused 
around Peel Park, the Meadows, the 
David Lewis Playing Fields and the 
River Irwell. 

These spaces act as an important 
‘green lung’ for the surrounding area, 
providing valuable recreation space 
and ecological habitats. 

All of the existing green space will 
be retained and improved under the 
Framework. Connectivity, permeability 
and accessibility to these assets will 
be enhanced so that local people and 
surrounding communities can enjoy 
them more easily.

PARKS AND 
RIVER

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Figure 6.6 / Parks and River Boundary

P
age 111



Draft Crescent Development Framework

A recreational space which will enhance the 
experience of transient users whilst offering 
varied and numerous options to dwell especially 
in the waterside setting next to the River. 

As much of this Zone is set within a 
conservation area, and close to a number of 
listed buildings, any enhancements must be 
sympathetic and work in harmony with the 
heritage setting.

Create pedestrian and cycle access 
along the length of the Irwell which 
links into existing network of cycle and 
pedestrian routes to serve local and 
city wide transient users effectively. 

Enhance riverside route with 
opportunity for dwell particularly 
along river banks offering a variety of 
permanent and temporary uses. 

Open up key gateways and improve 
access. Provision of new links across 
the River Irwell.

The following principles will guide the enhancements and improvements 
made within this zone, noting that no development is proposed.

Landscape Design Principles 

Routes 

Management and retention of the existing trees 
will be enforced to ensure the longevity. 

Where appropriate, trees of a similar species 
will be introduced to allow succession. Sensitive 
clearance of certain areas of dense vegetation on 
the banks of the River Irwell will be undertaken 
to open up views as well as access to water. 

Remove invasive species and re-plant native 
trees and vegetation to enhance biodiversity.

A robust but sensitive materials palette will be 
used which is suitable for cycling and pedestrian 
movement which fits within a more natural setting. 

Sustainable drainage shall be incorporated within 
paving where possible. 

Existing paths surfaces will be enhanced plus new 
wayfinding elements and street furniture to create 
a unified sense of place across the area. 

Encourage the use of green spaces by 
students and staff of the University and the 
wider public. 

Trees and Planting 

Materiality  

Spaces 

150 151

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

ZONE 2, PARKS AND RIVER

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Development Principles 

Figure 6.7 / Parks and River, 
Illustrative Masterplan

P
age 112



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

ZONE 3

Peel Park 
Campus 

The University’s Peel Campus sits 
at the heart of the Development 
Framework area. In 1960, the 
University had a visionary masterplan 
drawn up which saw the development 
of the University adjacent to Peel 
Park. With a modest population of 
just 5,000, the vision saw the campus 
develop northwards towards Frederick 
Road rather than an expansion along 
the A6 as it exists today.  

The Masterplan of the 1960s 
incorporated the library, lecture 
theatre block – both completed in 
1970-71, the student’s union building, 
staff house, sports hall and 
additional refectories.  

Today’s Vision for the Campus, as 
expressed within the University's 
2020 Refresh, is focused around 
20,000 students.

Peel Campus Vision
The University’s existing 5-year (2016-21) 
strategy has responded to the Government's 
Industrial Strategy White Paper. Powered 
by new technologies, the way we live our 
lives as workers, citizens and consumers are 
being transformed across the globe; the 
University’s vision takes this into account 
and intends to bring enormous benefits to 
students, colleagues and industry partners.

To deliver these benefits, the University’s 
current strategy is focused on developing 
Industry Collaboration Zones as their single 
institution-wide strategic priority.

153152

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

PEEL PARK 
CAMPUS

Draft Crescent Development Framework

The Industry Collaboration Strategy focuses 
on three key areas: 

Smart living;

Robotics; and

Digital.

These areas will boost productivity by backing 
businesses to create jobs and increase the earning 
power of individuals. The University is investing 
in skills, industries and infrastructure to prepare 
students and colleagues to be fit for the future.

There are a number of other key components 
identified within the 2020 Masterplan Refresh 
which fall within the Innovation Zone and the 
Parks and River Zone. As such, these have not 
been included in this sub-section.

Figure 6.8 / Peel Park Campus Boundary

P
age 113



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

Existing Assets
There are a number of existing assets within the 
Peel Park Campus Zone which will be retained and 
enhanced in the Development Framework.

The University comprises four academic Schools, 
occupying a range of buildings across different 
sites and campuses. Some Schools have multiple 
buildings and facilities, whilst others have limited 
visible campus presence. The four schools are:

School of Arts & Media

School of Science, Engineering 
and Environment (SEE)

School of Health & Society

Salford Business School

Each School is supported by a range of other 
campus buildings providing facilities including 
sports facilities, libraries and lecture theatres 
amongst others.

In addition, there are a number of buildings across 
campus, including those which are surplus to future 
requirements and those which are potentially 
earmarked for demolition such as Maxwell Main 
which provide a range of professional services 
and staff accommodation. Overall the University 
community comprises approximately 20,000 
students and circa 2,000 staff. 

A major challenge for the 2020 Masterplan 
Refresh was to address the fragmented nature of 
School activity and to consolidate, where possible, 
academic activity by School and by Building and 
begin to establish new identities for instance for 
Salford Business School which currently is co-
located along with other uses in Maxwell Main.  
This has been maintained within the Development 
Framework.

A number of proposals have been put forward 
to address this - for example the proposed SEE 
Building will be the first project to begin to establish 
this new academic campus identity.

The location, size and overall quantum of general 
and pooled teaching space was also reviewed 
through the 2020 Masterplan refresh. The teaching 
and learning model moving forward will be to 
ensure that the academic buildings for each school 
contain largely specialist and general teaching, 
workshops, laboratories and staff offices, whilst 
there is a clustering of ‘pooled’ teaching space 
located centrally on campus and accessible by all.

A new central Hub building is proposed which will 
provide a range of cross-campus resources such 
as a Library, bookable pooled teaching rooms 
and Student Services. This will involve removing 
pooled teaching and library facilities out from each 
academic building, with the exception of the lecture 
theatre spaces and will facilitate the creation of 
'academic neighbourhoods'.

As part of the desire to improve campus life and to 
establish itself as a local cultural and arts venue, 
Maxwell Hall will be redeveloped as a new state-of-
the-art concert and conference venue which could 
also serve as a venue for student open days, visiting 
speakers, concerts and degree-award ceremonies. 
Aligned to this is the proposed establishment of a 
new destination for food and beverage, Arts and 
Culture in and around Fire Station Square.  

Key Components
Key assets identified within the Masterplan Refresh 
2020 are to be retained within the Development 
Framework, including:

Maxwell Hall + public realm

Science, Engineering and Environment (SEE) Building

Hub Building + University Gateway public realm

Salford Business School + public realm

Professional Services 

154

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

155

Figure 6.9 / Fire Station Square and Crescent Cross-Section Visual

P
age 114



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
De-engineering the A6 and highway 
improvements works 
To establish a proper sense of arrival for students, 
staff and visitors of the University, it is proposed 
to upgrade the A6 through calming and slowing 
traffic, prioritising pedestrians and cyclists, 
provision of a bus corridor and safeguarded 
route for the Metrolink in future years, as well as 
new planting and landscaping will be central to 
realising the University’s vision, which, coupled 
with iconic architectural design of new University 
buildings, will fundamentally change the initial 
impressions of the Peel Park Campus.

A Connected Campus 
Improving the arrival experience and improving 
connectivity within the wider region through 
proposals to enhance Salford Crescent Rail Station 
and bringing in Metrolink will ensure that the 
University can continue to attract talent. It is key 
that staff and students can access the campus 
in a safe and secure way and with a welcoming 
atmosphere. 

Improved pedestrian and cycle connectivity 
This will be facilitated through revised urban 
grain improving legibility through the Zone and 
improving connectivity within and into/ out of 
the Campus with all routes leading to/from the 
Transport Hub at the heart of the Framework area. 

A safe, diverse & inclusive campus 
Using all modes of transport and allowing 
access for all.

Consolidated car parking 
This is critical to improving the existing public 
realm. It will also be critical that the University 
enact a sustainable transport plan making use of 
the new infrastructure planned in other Zones.

Greenspaces 
and Public Realm
Creation of a ‘Single Campus’ 
Through one single vision and approach to public 
realm and landscaping, the ambition is to establish a 
united placemaking experience across both campuses.

A vibrant public plaza within the main campus 
The main campus is characterised by old and new 
academic buildings (such as the Adelphi building) 
which generally address the main public space.  
This will be enhanced in line with the overarching 
placemaking principles for the Development 
Framework in order to create an enhanced experience 
for students, staff and visitors. 

A Campus in the Park 
The release of land from surface car parks not 
only reduces on campus car movements, but also 
significantly allows for a transformation in the greening 
of the campus with the concept of extending Peel Park 
into the University estate.

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species will 
be encouraged alongside pedestrian/ cycle paths 
to encourage greater biodiversity and improve 
connectivity between habitats, particularly linking into 
and out of Peel Park.  

Greening the Urban Environment 
'Greening’ the Crescent, which frames the Campus, will 
be achieved through new street planting and dwell 
spaces, sustainable drainage systems (SuDs), informal 
nature planting, tree lined boulevards and green 
infrastructure including on the new podium.  

Water Reduction 
Proposals to diversify the public realm; to improve the 
biodiversity and use the landscape as an opportunity 
to address the University’s requirement to reduce water 
consumption and increase green-water recycling and 
flood risk mitigation.

157156

Land Uses

The Peel Campus will largely focus on educational and academic uses but will also 
incorporate a number of land uses to create a vibrant and interesting place. This will 
include a mix of land use typologies including teaching and research space, student 
accommodation and some commercial uses.

Development of high quality 
education floorspace
A number of the existing schools will be upgraded 
and developed in terms of their teaching and 
research space which remains the key function of 
this zone

A New Multifunction Centralised Student Hub
This will enable the co-location of several student-
centred support services including the library, 
study spaces, food hall and student services in one 
centralised service and will provide somewhere 
for students to socialise, and study between 
core teaching hours in a modern and flexible 
environment which currently isn’t provided.  

Technology & Digital Teaching & Learning
With a significant shift in focus towards a Virtual 
Learning Environment and a wider use of online 
delivery modes, the University anticipate a need 
to shift the focus of traditional school-based 
seminar, tutorial and lecture space towards spaces 
more suited for group-based, student-centred 
personalised learning.  The new Hub and Digital 
Teaching Building will be used to explore this 
concept further. The facility is considered a digitally 
rich learning environment where students will have 
the ability to access live and pre-recorded seminar 
and content and well as use traditional seminar 
space for ‘flipped learning’ and group-based 
enquiry.

Diversifying the Commercial / Retail offer
New commercial uses including food and beverage 
offerings will create a ‘sticky campus’ which will 
encourage students to stay on campus longer rather 
than going elsewhere for food and drink or going 
home.  This will improve the student experience 
overall, through providing additional services for 
students such as gyms, restaurants, bars, galleries 

and other cultural venues. Furthermore, this 
will help to integrate the University with the 
surrounding local Salford community and could 
also provide opportunities for local businesses.  

A Cultural Hub
The University sits at an important location 
and has an opportunity to make a significant 
contribution towards the growing cultural and 
arts community in this location. This will be in 
part facilitated by the downgrade of the A6 to 
create an urban square that unifies the Salford 
Museum/ Maxwall Hall and Fire Station Square, 
making the cultural district an extension of the 
campus.  Diversifying existing land uses such as 
the use of Maxwell Hall for cultural, concert and 
conference events will contribute towards this.  

Revitalised Sports Centre
As part of the Health and Well-being agenda, the 
Tom Husband Sports Centre will be redeveloped 
and extended to provide a modern fit-for-purpose 
centre for use by the School of Health and Society 
as well as for students sports and recreation.  

Student Accommodation
Additional student accommodation will be 
provided in this zone providing high quality 
purpose-built units (c. 2,000) for existing and 
future students and adding to the existing offer.

Links to Industry and the Innovation Zone
Research and innovation is not exclusive to the 
Innovation Zone; the existing Energy House is 
located on this site, along with the Clinic, located 
in the new School of Health and Society building. 
The on-site clinic is a good example of how the 
University encourage industry collaboration 
between students and the NHS by offering a key 
service to students and local people.

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

P
age 115



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Development Principles 

158

Scale, Massing and Density Design Quality 
Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, 
opportunities for high density development 
of scale exist across the Peel Park Campus 
Zone. This would take into account the setting 
of any listed buildings as set out below.  The 
Illustrative Masterplan for this Zone seeks to 
create an optimum campus volume that reduces 
university sprawl.

Heritage 
The Crescent zone is partially covered by the 
Crescent Conservation Area and contains a 
number of Listed Buildings and non-designated 
heritage assets. Any future proposals would 
need to be informed by an assessment of 
heritage impacts in line with ‘saved’ UDP policy 
ST15 and emerging heritage policies contained in 
Chapter 20 of the Publication Local Plan (2020).

Townscape 
Any future proposals for taller buildings in the 
Peel Park Campus will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within 
‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’, draft Local 
Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’.

Creating an inviting campus 
To meet its objectives, the University of Salford 
needs a high-quality, modern, attractive campus 
with outstanding facilities to attract both 
industry collaborators and students. 

Creation of a world-class gateway along the A6 
The Development Framework will facilitate 
significant transformation of the existing 
townscape (demolition of Maxwell Main and the 
new Maxwell Hall), landscape, public realm and 
highway which will create an important ‘front 
door’ to the University.

Opportunities for iconic design 
Given the key gateway location of this zone, 
there are opportunities for iconic architectural 
design of the highest quality to create interest 
and cement the location as a Campus of 
Excellence.  One example could be the new Hub 
building which is highly visible from the A6.

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

159

Figure 6.10 / Peel Park Campus, 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Student Residential

Cultural

P
age 116



October 2020 

ZONE 4

Transport 
Hub

The Transport Hub is centred around 
the existing Salford Crescent Station 
which sits at the heart of the 
Development Framework area. The 
Station is currently only served by 
mainline trains. Improvements to the 
station and the surrounding area 
are key to the success of the Crescent 
area. The proposed improvements 
will create a new Transport Hub 
which will become the focus of 
movement in and out of the area. 

The Transport Hub will be a 
landmark infrastructure project which 
reduces car dominance, connects 
communities and provides a hub for 
sustainable mass transit in Salford.

Transport Hub Vision
The vision is for the Transport Hub to be an integrated transport 
interchange providing public transport services across the city 
region and beyond. The improvements to the station will create a 
destination in its own right where people are encouraged to spend 
time. The hub will become a place to meet at and travel to. 

To achieve this Vision, the Hub will provide:

Mainline train station 
and interchange

Metrolink Stop

Cycle hub 

End of trip facilities

The Hub will address the existing issues around the Station, including 
the significant level changes, severance caused by the A6 and lack of 
legibility.  This will be realised by building over the existing station 
and rail lines to create a new high-quality area of public realm.

161160

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

TRANSPORT 
HUB

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Figure 6.11 / Transport Hub Boundary

P
age 117



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

ZONE 4, TRANSPORT HUB

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

163162

Figure 6.12 / Transport Hub - Visual

Seamless Connectivity
The station build-over will provide seamless 
connectivity across the railway lines, linking the 
south-western part of the Innovation Zone with the 
Peel Park Campus Zone – including Energy House 
2.0 (within the Innovation Zone) with the new SEE 
building (within the Peel Park Campus Zone). The 
railway lines are currently a major barrier splitting 
the existing University campus into two sites and at 
a more strategic level, separating the communities 
on each side, and is a major barrier.

Improved access to public transport 
This will be facilitated through integrated public 
transport services and the development of a 
Metrolink connection between Salford Crescent and 
Salford Quays. 

Build over the railway 
Improving pedestrian and cycle connectivity 
through the site and creating clear sight 
lines to increase safety will be facilitated 
through the station build-over. This provides 
a significant opportunity to create new high-
quality public realm and a sense of arrival for 
visitors arriving at Salford Crescent station.

Cycle hub development 
Encouraging sustainable modes of transport 
through creating end to end facilities at the 
station and encouraging healthy living. 

Re-alignment of the A6 
Public transport and pedestrians are prioritised 
and a safe crossing over the A6 is created.

Development Principles

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity

P
age 118



Draft Crescent Development Framework

164

Development Principles

Land Uses
Transport led residential community 
Increased connectivity will make the area 
an attractive place to live, therefore the 
area immediately adjacent to the station is 
proposed for residential use. 

Leisure, Food and Beverage 
The Hub will attract a high level of footfall 
therefore providing an opportunity for ground 
floor leisure uses, café and bars. These will be 
dual level linking to the station below ground. 

Redevelopment Opportunities 
The realignment of the A6 and the station 
build-over may provide redevelopment 
opportunities in the vicinity of the Transport 
Hub to link the site to the surrounding area. 

Metrolink Stop 
The extension of the Metrolink will provide 
increased connectivity to and from the wider 
city region, addressing a current deficiency in 
Metrolink provision.

Scale, Massing and Density
Tall building cluster 
Both local and national planning policy encourages 
increased density within sustainable locations close 
to public transport. Clusters of tall buildings are 
found adjacent to transport hubs across Greater 
Manchester and major cities throughout the UK. The 
improvements to the Crescent Station, including the 
build-over, present a unique opportunity to explore the 
development of a tall building cluster in this location. 

Navigable and Human Scale
Care has been taken to ensure that the proposed 
station design provides an arrival point into a public 
and inviting plaza, representative of the historic 
stations which are navigable and human in scale.

Design Quality
Station design 
Enhancing Salford Crescent Station provides an 
opportunity to create an iconic station building 
which will become a key western gateway into the 
City Centre. The majority of the station infrastructure 
and terminal are enclosed below the build-over 
at platform level, reducing the footprint of the 
station at grade. The station entrance is identified 
through and iconic lantern which brings people and 
light down to station level. Additional roof lights 
integrated into the landscape are proposed to 
provide a visual sky connection to the platform level.

Active Frontages 
Active frontages which face onto the new public 
realm will be encouraged to increase dwell time and 
make the Hub a destination in its own right.

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

ZONE 4, TRANSPORT HUB

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Greenspaces and Public Realm
New green space 
The build-over will create new green space 
which will encourage dwell time and contribute 
to general health and well-being.

New public realm 
The improvements will create a space which is 
inviting and safe encouraging people to use the 
station to access the Crescent area.

165

Figure 6.13 / Transport Hub, 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

Station over-build 

University of Salford

Residential

Mixed Use

Retail

P
age 119



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

ZONE 5

Adelphi 
Village 

The Adelphi Village is situated to 
the east of the River Irwell and 
comprises a mix of uses including the 
vacant Centenary Building, vacant 
Old Adelphi building and surface car 
parking at Farmer Norton. The area 
is surrounded by medium to low rise 
residential communities including 
new developments at Valette 
Square and Timekeepers Square and 
Adelphi Wharf together with more 
established properties around North 
George Street and Cannon Street. 

The Adelphi Village is distinctly separate from the higher 
density Crescent area and educational and research grain of 
the Innovation zone. Adelphi is representative of the old civic 
district in Salford, laid on a grid system, where a few main 
roads give way to smaller residential streets. The proposals 
for the area seek to retain the domestic scale and road grid 
structure of the neighbouring streets  with the Centenary 
Building and Old Adelphi forming the community anchor at 
the heart of the local community.

167166

Development Principles 

Pedestrian and Cycle Connectivity 
A strong emphasis will be placed on pedestrian 
and cycle accessibility within the Adelphi 
Village Zone with sustainable transport 
choices being actively promoted through public 
realm treatments. It is vital that residential 
neighbourhoods are connected by an urban 
grain of streets which can be safely inhabited, 
navigated, and liveable throughout the day and 
night. The Adelphi Zone is connected to the wider 
Framework area through a primary walking route 
along the Crescent and around the River which in 
turn provides connections for wider communities 
to the east and north, such as Chapel Street, into 
and out of the Framework area.

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Vehicular Access  
The use of sustainable transport modes will be 
championed; however, it is acknowledged that 
access by private transport will still be required 
by some residents. Adelphi Village will allow for 
car access but will seek to keep vehicles on the 
periphery of the area to allow community blocks 
to flourish with pedestrian only routes at its heart.  
There are a number of existing precedents for this in 
the vicinity and elsewhere within Salford.

Vehicular Movement 
The residential focus within the Adelphi Village 
means that tertiary routes (i.e. lanes) and their 
associated scale will be the primary road types 
within the area. The routes will be scaled to reflect 
the lower density housing and to create liveable 
streets which form an extension of the public 
realm. This network of lanes will help to define the 
character of the neighbourhood.

ADELPHI 
VILLAGE

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Figure 6.14 / Adelphi Village Boundary

P
age 120



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Development Principles 

169168

Land Uses
New Residential-Led Community 
Adelphi Village will become a high quality residential 
community anchored by new creative/ community uses 
and a unified public realm. 

Redevelopment of the Farmer Norton Car Park 
The existing car park will be redeveloped to create a 
new residential community comprising a mix of low-
medium density apartments and townhouses set 
around high quality public realm. 

Re-purposing the Centenary Building  
The Centenary Building, winner of the inaugural Stirling 
Prize, was lauded for its architectural design; however, 
the building is currently vacant as, functionally, it does 
not meet academic requirements. Alternative uses for 
the building will be supported. Given the emerging 
residential community around the Adelphi Village and 
the Crescent, re-purposing the building to create a new 
community/ social facility would generate a number 
of benefits - the facility could include uses including a 
GP, dentist practice, library, crèche, and/or community 
space.  Any proposal for alternative uses would need to 
retain key architectural features, spatial configuration 
and contemporary use of steel, glass and concrete. 

Redevelopment of the Centenary Building Car Park 
The development of new medium to high density 
residential apartments on the existing car park to the 
rear of the Centenary Building is proposed. Design 
consideration would needed as to how the new 
development relates to the Centenary Building and 
surrounding residential community. 

Re-use of Old Adelphi 
The re-use, extension and adaptation of the vacant 
Old Adelphi building will be supported. It is considered 
that the building may be suitable for a number of uses 
including cultural/ creative or residential. Proposals 
which retain the facade of this building will be 
encouraged. 

Scale, Massing and Density
Low to Medium Density Development 
The indicative proposals for the Adelphi Village 
have been designed to reflect the existing 
massing, street scale and character of the local 
neighbourhood providing terraced housing and 
small apartment blocks in the centre of the 
development which do not exceed 4 storeys. 
These blocks reflect the existing terrace streets 
and builds in the success of local developments 
such as Timekeepers square.

Greenspaces and Public Realm
The Meadows  
The relationship with the Meadows to the west 
provides an abundance of green space for 
residents to use and enjoy.  Opportunities to 
provide enhanced connectivity by way of new 
bridges across the River Irwell will be explored. 

Pocket Parks  
The domestic scale of the Adelphi Village allows 
for public and private garden spaces which 
weave between the streets. Pocket parks will be 
promoted in this zone, providing an extension of 
the wider green infrastructure.

Street Hierarchy   
The hierarchy of street profile both in terms of 
access and materiality is key to the success of 
the neighbourhood and the ability to create 
liveable streets which connect and integrate the 
community and surrounding areas.

Materiality   
The surfaces of the streets and its furniture 
at the heart of the development must reflect 
the desire for pedestrian activation enabling 
residents to dwell, using the space as an 
extension of their homes.

Permeability with the River 
The existing residential developments along the 
River Irwell currently restrict the permeability 
of the community with the River edge. The 
aspiration is to address this by inviting the public 
realm between the blocks to the River enabling 
tangible pedestrian connections between the 
heart of the Adelphi Village and the River Irwell.

Medium to Higher Density 
As the Adelphi Village extends West across Adelphi 
Street, the existing blocks on the edge of the River 
Irwell provide scope for an increase in scale to 
maximise the views provided by the River. 

ZONE 5, ADELPHI VILLAGE 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

P
age 121



Draft Crescent Development Framework

170

Development Principles 

Design Quality
Active Frontages  
Whilst active ground floors are traditionally 
associated with commercial uses such as cafés, 
proposals should look to incorporate active 
residential frontages which provide an outward 
looking design allowing for connectivity between 
the private residence and the neighbourhood 
where desired. This ground floor activation 
helps to connect the community and assists in 
promoting the liveable streets which are enabled 
through managed connectivity routes.

High Quality Design
To reflect the successful new residential 
developments surrounding Adelphi Village, high 
quality design and materiality will need to be 
demonstrated as part of any future proposals. 

Heritage
Adelphi Village is partially covered by the Adelphi 
Bexley Square Conservation Area and sits adjacent 
to a number of Listed Buildings and non-designated 
heritage assets. Any future proposals will need to 
include an assessment of heritage impacts in line 
with ‘saved’ UDP policy ST15 and emerging heritage 
policies contained in Chapter 20 of the Publication 
Local Plan (2020).

Passive Design Features
The integration of passive environmental design 
principles and high aspiration energy performance 
targets will be encouraged where possible to 
provide highly efficiency homes targeting Net Zero 
Carbon in-use energy.

ZONE 5, ADELPHI VILLAGE 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

171

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

Figure 6.15 / Adelphi Village, 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Mixed Use

Existing Buildings

Retail

P
age 122



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

173

ZONE 6

The 
Crescent

The Crescent Zone is situated in a 
highly sustainable location along the 
A6 Crescent and contains a wealth 
of unique historic and cultural assets 
including Fire Station Square, the 
Working Class Movement Library and 
the Former Police HQ. It also contains 
a number of underutilised University 
Buildings, surface car parks and 
vacant plots which present substantial 
opportunities for development, 
aligning with the regeneration that 
has taken place in Salford Central over 
the past 10 years. 

It is proposed that the Crescent will become a vibrant, 
residential-led mixed use community  comprising a varied 
range of medium to high density housing together with 
other community and leisure uses. To further enhance the 
areas connectivity and access to sustainable transport, the 
de-engineering of the A6 Crescent and improved access to 
the River coupled with enhanced green spaces and public 
realm is proposed.

172

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
De-engineering the A6  
Currently the A6 is characterised by heavy 
infrastructure with very limited greening. There 
is very poor visibility across the street looking 
towards the River Irwell and The Meadows. The 
aspiration is for the A6 to be de-engineering to 
remove some car traffic and to be upgraded to 
improve provision for cyclists and pedestrians and 
to include a dedicated bus route and a safeguarded 
corridor for Metrolink in future years. This presents 
a significant opportunity to create an enhanced 
sustainable route to and from Salford Crescent.

Creation of Shared Space on the Crescent 
The aspiration is to create opportunities for wide 
pedestrian footways and fully segregated cycle 
lanes. This will also allow for enhanced bus services 
along the A6 Crescent and safeguard a corridor for 
the expansion of the Metrolink network to Salford 
Crescent. These elements would be separated 
by new planting in order to establish a safe and 
efficient route into and out of City Centre Salford.

Riverside Shared Space 
Opportunities will be explored to create a 
boulevard by removing the cantilevered sections of 
the existing road to create a new riverside shared 
space with River views, seating areas and new 
planting. 

Combination of Bus and Metrolink route 
The central area of the A6 Crescent will be 
remodelled to combine bus and Metrolink routes, 
enhancing the sustainable travel options available, 
and significantly increasing connectivity in this area.  
This will benefit not only those in the Crescent Zone 
but the entire Framework are and communities 
beyond. 

Pedestrian and Cycle Connectivity 
Permeability will be enhanced throughout the 
Crescent Zone with improved links created from 
north to south, including connecting the enhanced 
A6 Crescent boulevard with the River Irwell and a 
new green link provided within a linear park to the 
southern boundary (along the line of the former 
Manchester, Bolton and Bury canal). 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

THE CRESCENT

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Figure 6.16 / The Crescent Boundary

P
age 123



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

ZONE 6, THE CRESCENT

Development Principles 

Removal of Invasive Species 
In improving watercourse activation, current 
invasive species (Japanese Knotweed and Giant 
Hogweed) will need to be removed from the bank 
of the River. 

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species 
will be encouraged alongside the riverbank and 
pedestrian/ cycle path to encourage greater 
biodiversity and improve connectivity between 
habitats.  

Greening the A6 Crescent 
In combination with the de-engineering of the 
A6, there is an aspiration to 'green' the Crescent. 
This will be achieved through the incorporation 
of new street tree planting and dwell spaces, 
sustainable drainage systems (SuDs), informal 
nature planting and street tree planting to create 
the feel of a tree-lined boulevard.  

Land Uses

The Crescent is a mixed-use area comprising a range of land use typologies 
including residential, cultural, educational and industrial.

Greenspaces and Public Realm
Linear Park 
A new linear park containing pedestrian and 
cycle routes will be created along the southern 
boundary of the area adjacent to the railway line 
(along the link of the former Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury canal). 

Pedestrian and Cycle Access to the River 
A new pedestrian and cycle path at a lower 
level alongside the River Irwell will be created 
to facilitate access to the watercourse. This will 
provide a significant community resource which will 
not only provide enhanced connectivity but will 
also contribute to improved health and well-being. 

Enhancing visual connectivity with the River 
An enhanced visual connection with the River 
from the Crescent will be achieved through the 
downgrading of the A6 and through selective 
clearance of vegetation alongside the bank side, 
subject to appropriate surveys. This will create 
clear lines of sight from the Crescent through 
to the Meadow beyond. 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

175174

New Residential-Led Community 
Given the areas excellent connectivity, 
employment opportunities and proximity to 
extensive green space, the Crescent Zone is 
proposed to be the focus for new housing within 
the Framework area. A broad range of house 
types, sizes and tenures will be provided in order 
to create a vibrant new community that meets 
the needs of a large cross section of society.

Leisure & Retail 
In order to take advantage of the areas unique 
location close to the University and local cultural/ 
creative assets together with the potential future 
growth in residential . There are opportunities for 
small scale ground floor leisure uses and retail 
uses within the area, including cafés and bars 

Car Parking/ Movement Hub 
The level of surface car parking in the area 
represents an inefficient use of land in a prime 
gateway location. In light of the proposals to 
de-engineer the A6 and the aspiration to achieve 
the sustainability objectives presented in Section 
5, there is an opportunity to rationalise and 
consolidate existing car parking spaces. Whilst 
sustainable modes will be encouraged and are 
expected to used by the majority, a provision of 
controlled car parking will be required to support 
the University, Police HQ hotel, Maxwell Hall 
and the cultural Quarter visitors. This could be 
within a dedicated 'Movement Hub' as detailed 
in previous sections.

Former Police HQ 
The vacant former Police HQ is ideally located 
on the Crescent road frontage within walking 
distance to the University campus and a range 
of existing cultural assets including Salford 
Museum and Art Gallery (SMAG), Hemsley House 
and once, complete, the new Maxwell Hall 
venue. The re-purposing of the building and 
extension to the rear for use as a hotel to cater 
for visitors will be supported, subject to being 
supported by appropriate technical information. 

The Old Fire Station 
The Old Fire Station is a unique and 
underutilised asset - alternative uses such as 
the creation of a multi-use community space or 
leisure uses will be encouraged, in conjunction 
with the development of the Cultural Quarter. 
Significant placemaking opportunities exist here 
to reinvigorate the space and encourage activity. 

Humphrey Booth House, Crescent House 
and Faraday Building 
In line with the University’s aspirations, it 
is proposed that Humphrey Booth House, 
Crescent House and the Faraday Building will 
be demolished once vacant and replaced with 
residential development. 

Figure 6.17 / The Crescent - Visual

P
age 124



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

Development Principles 

Scale, Massing and Density

Existing Crescent Building Line 
The existing building line along the Crescent, 
typified by lower scale terraces should be retained 
as part of any future redevelopment where 
practicable. 

Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, opportunities 
for high density development of scale exist to the 
south of the Crescent taking in Irwell Place Car Park 
and Hulme Street. Looking North to South there is 
the potential for traditional low-scale development 
on the Crescent front to sequentially step up 
towards the centre of the area before scaling back 
down towards the linear park. Looking East to 
West, development should transition from high 
density apartments around Outwood Wharf to low 
density townhouses around the historic core. 

Heritage 
The Crescent Zone is partially covered by the 
Crescent Conservation Area and contains a number 
of Listed Buildings and non-designated heritage 
assets. Future proposals would need to be include 
an assessment of heritage impacts in line with 
‘saved’ UDP policy ST15 and emerging heritage 
policies contained in Chapter 20 of the Publication 
Local Plan (2020).

Townscape 
Future proposals for taller buildings in the Crescent 
will need to provide sufficient information to justify 
the scale of development taking into account 
guidance set out within ‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 
‘Tall Buildings’, draft Local Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’ 
and Historic England’s Guidance on Tall Buildings 
(December 2015).

Design Quality

Active Frontages 
Active frontages along the A6 will be encouraged at 
ground floor level to encourage interaction with the 
street. It is acknowledged that active frontages will 
not be possible throughout the whole zone; however, 
new buildings should incorporate overlooking of public 
spaces where possible. 

Amenity 
Proposals should respect the amenity of existing uses 
and seek to undertake necessary assessments as part 
of any future planning application including, but not 
limited to, privacy/overlooking, sunlight/daylight and 
wind microclimate. 

Noise  
Due to surrounding industrial uses along the south 
boundary beyond the railway line any proposals 
within this location would need to suitably assess and 
mitigate any potential noise impacts associated with 
current operations to protect existing business and 
residential amenity for new occupiers. 

Orientation 
Future residential development should minimise single 
aspect, north facing apartments utilising passive 
design principles to maximise daylight availability and 
natural ventilation potential. This orientation would 
simultaneously maximise the physical and visual 
connections with the Crescent, River Irwell and the 
Meadows beyond.

Climate Change and Embracing Low Carbon
Buildings will be designed to be resilient to climate 
change and with future adaptability/flexibility. The Net 
Zero Carbon aspiration will affect the form of buildings 
to maximize passive design measures reducing 
operational energy, and also lightweight construction 
methodology to reduce embodied carbon. Buildings 
will be fundamentally designed with in-built flexibility 
so that they can adapt over time as needs change.  

176

ZONE 6, THE CRESCENT

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Hotel/Retail

177

Figure 6.18 / The Crescent, 
Illustrative Masterplan

Cultural

Car Park

Existing Buildings

P
age 125



Draft Crescent Development Framework Draft Development Framework 

178

07. Illustrative 
Masterplan

179178

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

P
age 126



Draft Crescent Development Framework

07. Illustrative Masterplan 
This Development Framework has established a 
clear vision for the Crescent from which a series of 
key objectives have flowed. These objectives coupled 
with a detailed understanding of challenges and 
opportunities across the Framework area have 
informed a series of overarching development 
principles to guide future development. At finer grain 
level these objectives have been further distilled 
to establish a set of character area development 
principles for each of the six zones. 

The Illustrative Masterplan adjacent demonstrates 
how the preferred option for the Crescent could 
potentially be accommodated over the next 20 
years.  This is not fixed and the Framework will be 
responsive to changing circumstances. 

181180

Figure 7.1 / Illustrative Masterplan

P
age 127



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 Draft Development Framework 

182

08.
Delivering the 
Development 

Framework
Implementation and Phasing 

Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020

182 183

P
age 128



October 2020 

185

The Salford Crescent 
Development Framework 
covers an area of 102 hectares 
and comprises six separate 
zones each with their own 
unique identity as well as 
specific challenges and 
opportunities.

A number of significant infrastructure interventions 
are proposed as part of the Development Framework 
that will dramatically transform the area and catalyse 
regeneration over the longer term. Given the scale 
and ambition of the proposals and the level of 
investment required to realise the vision, a phased 
approach to delivery is proposed. This Section sets out 
an indication of when new development will come 
forward and how new infrastructure will be funded.

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

Indicative implementation and phasing 

PHASE 1

This section provides an indication of when certain development 
projects will come forward across the Development Framework area 
over the next 20 years based on current understanding.

Years 2020-2024

Figure 8.1 / Phase 1

184

Draft Crescent Development Framework

Development of Buildings

Non-University Buildings University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

P
age 129



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

186 187

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

PHASE 3PHASE 2

Years 2029-2033Years 2025-2029

Figure 8.3 / Phase 3Figure 8.2 / Phase 2

Development of Buildings

Non-University Buildings University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

Development of Buildings

Non-University Buildings University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

P
age 130



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

188

Infrastructure Investment 
In order to realise the ambitions for the 
Development Framework it is critical that major 
infrastructure interventions including, but not 
limited to:

Creation of a new public podium 
across Frederick Road; 

De-engineering and greening of the A6;

Creation of pedestrian links down to 
and along the River Irwell;

Developing a new transport gateway 
including Metrolink stop; and

Significant public realm works throughout 
the Development Framework area.

The podium across Frederick Road, de-
engineering of the A6, creation of a new transport 
hub and wider pubic realm works are financed 
and delivered as early as possible. 

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

Years 2033-2040

PHASE 4

Developer Contributions 
In addition to the above, Salford City Council may 
require developer contributions agreements to be 
secured in respect of future proposals in accordance 
with saved UDP policy DEV5, the Planning 
Obligations Supplementary Planning Document 
(December 2019) and emerging Local Plan policy 
PC1 (once adopted). Developer contributions would 
be subject to the requirements of Regulations 
122 and 123 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 or subsequent legislation. 

189

These interventions will require significant levels of 
investment. This is proposed to be funded by both 
the English Cities Fund equity and through the 
rigorous assessment of public sources of funding 
available. This approach has been successfully 
demonstrated by the English Cities Fund and Salford 
City Council at Chapel Street and Salford Central 
where significant improvements to infrastructure 
were secured utilising a range of funding streams 
including local growth funding and DTA Pinchpoint 
funding. 

The availability of this type of funding acts as 
an accelerant to the delivery of regeneration 
schemes ensuring that infrastructure is in place 
ahead of subsequent development. This in turn 
provides a catalysing effect for potential investors 
considering the development as they can see that 
transformation has begun and it is committed.

Figure 8.4 / Phase 4

Development of Buildings

Non-University Buildings University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

P
age 131



Draft Crescent Development Framework October 2020 

190 191

The Crescent Zone - Visual

P
age 132



Draft Crescent Development Framework

192
Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester
	3b Play Streets
	03bii Appx A Play Street Guidance
	03biii App B Example Door-knock-letter
	03biv App C Example Street Closure Letter
	03bv App D Risk Assessment Template

	3c Draft Crescent Development Framework - Public Consultation
	03cii Appx A Salford Crescent Development Framework


